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We exist to shape
and support

safe, robust and
well-understood

pension schemes for
the benefit of people
and society.

Our strategy is to be the best provider
of services to the UK pensions market,
as a one stop shop for everything
Trustees and Employers need in

this market.
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Strategic rcadmap

What we want
to achieve

We are a forward-looking, ambitious business. We are a
leading independent pensions consulting and administration
services firm and want to be the best provider of services
to the UK pensions market.

Our values
We are We do the We are We are We are
ambitious right thing agile helpful experts

Read more page 29

Our strategic priorities

Regulatory Expand Grow Mergers and
change services market share acquisitions

Read more page 14

Our sustainability framework focuses on...

Qur Our Our Qur
Governance employees clients communities environment

Read more page 26
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Highlights

Financial highlights

Revenue
FY 2023 £166.6m + 2 0/
FY 2022 £138.6m o o

Adjusted EBITDA’
FY 2023 £42.4m

+24%

Fy 2022 £341m

Adjusted diluted earnings per share?

FY 2023 12.6p
+24%

FY 2022 10.2p

FTE Employees?

FY 2023 1,570
+9%

FY 2022 1,442

Operational highlights

Sixth successive year of growth in revenue and
adjusted EBITDA

Development of our proprietary Administration
platform Aurora - launched in June 2023 and

expected to drive significant operational efficiencies

Qur agile response to the Liability Driven Investment

(LD} Crisis arising from the government’s
mini-budget of 23 September 2022

Acquisition of Penfida, a leading independent
covenant adviser

Multiple award wins, including at Professional
Pensions UK Pensions Awards; Third Party
Administrator of the Year, Actuarial and Pensions
Consultancy of the Year and Investment
Consultancy of the Year

Carbon neutral for the second year in a row and
retained signatory to the FRC's Stewardship Code

1 Adjus:ed EBITDA excludes the mpact of share-based paymen:.
cos:s, far va-de ad, ustments of cont'ngent cons deration, and
exceptional Cos:s

2 Adusted diluted earn ngs per share from continuing operat ons
I1.s based on adjusted profit ater tax, which exc udes the impac: of
amort sar on of niangib ¢ assc:s, share-based paymen: costs, far
valoe ad uslmen: of conungent consideration, excepnona <osts, and
‘he tax mpac: of thesc tems See Note 6 n the fnancia statemen:s

3 As at year end

4 Exclud ng iease 1ab L es

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023

Proposed full year dividend

FY 2023

FY 2022

Net debt*
FY 2023

FY 2022

Profit before tax
FY 2023

FY 2022

Basic EPS
FY 2023

FY 2022 4.6p

Named as one of the Best Places to Work

2023 by The Sunday Times

8.4p

1.2p

E55.3m

£54.6m

£19.1m

£16.9m

7.7p

+17%

+1%

+13%

+67%

+33eNPS

achieved
{FY 2022 +5)

uodad J16ajens



At a glance

Scale, agility and expertise

What we do

XPS Pensions Group is a leading
independent pensions consulting
and administration business in

the UK. We have benefits of scale
- we have a breadth of experience
to draw on and can invest in
solutions for the benefit of our
clients - yet we remain agile, able
to respond quickly as the world
around our clients shifts.

Our services

Pensions

We provide pragmatic advice that addresses
the specific and often complex challenges
faced by UK pension schemes and their
corporate sponsors.

www.xpsgroup.com/what-we-do/
pensions-advisory/

Investment

We provide clear and independent investment
advice which we help clients implement quickly
and effectively.

WWW.Xpsgroup.com/what-we-do/
investment-consulting/

Administration

Qur award-winning pensions administration
service puts scheme members at the heart of
everything we do.

www.xpsgroup.com/what-we-do/
administration/

Our locations

16

UK locations
Qur 16 locations
give uUs access to
staff, expertise
and clients
across the UK.

1,600+

employees

National Pension Trust

The National Pension Trust (NPT) is a
multi-employer defined contribution master
trust providing a high-quality service that
offers choice and flexibility to members.

www.nationalpensiontrust.com

Self Invested Pensions

XPS Self Invested Pensions is an award-winning
SIPP and SSAS pension provider, trustee and
administrator, which has specialised in self
invested pensions for more than 40 years.

www.xpsselfinvestedpensions.com

>1,500

pension scheme clients

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023



Investment case

Why invest in XPS?

Diversified and stable client base

We have long-standing relationships with a large and diverse client base, consisting
of over 1,500 clients. We have a strong brand and have won multiple industry awards
for our client service.

Read more page 19

Well positioned in a sustainable market with favourable
market trends and a strong competitive position

There are c.£1.5 trilhon of habilities of private UK defined benefit pension schemes
and a rapdly growing defined contribution market Regulatory developments are
driving increased client activity and demand for our services.

Recad more page 10

Track record of positive financial performance
and dividend yield

XPS has delivered year on year revenue growth, through a range of macroeconomic
conditions, since hsting on the London Stock Exchange.

Read more page 42

Trusted expertise and highly engaged colleagues

The outstanding expertise and chent service focus ¢f our colleagues is widely relied
upon and highly valued by our ¢clients. We have high client satisfaction scores and our
people think XPS 1s a great place to work

Read more page 30

Non-cyclical and recurring revenues with inflation linkage

Qur services are typically provided on the basis of an cpen-ended engagement with clients,
have inflation linkage, and are compliance driven to a statutory timetable. They are therefore
required in all parts of the economic cycle We have a high degree of visibility of our revenue.

Read more page 10

Opportunities for earnings enhancing M&A and scale up

We have a proven track record of successful earnings enhancing M&A which
demonstrates our ability to execute deals that are aligned to our corporate strategy.

Read mare page 6

Strong cash conversion and growing dividends

The Group has a robust balance sheet and consistently high cash conversion and has
continued to pay two-thirds of adjusted profit in dividends each year since listing

Read more page 42

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023

1,500+

clients
Top ten chents represent
18% of revenue

>£2bn

size of annual fee market
Long-dated liabilities in UK
defined benefit schemes

23%

revenue CAGR
since hsting in 2017

98%

of our people
think XPS 1s a great
place to work

>90%

repeat recurring
revenue
across the business

6

acquisitions
since hsting in 2017

99%

adjusted operating
cash conversion

Hodal J16atens



Mergers and acquisitions

Penfida joins
the XPS family

With Penfida as part of XPS Group, we can now offer the full range
of services to trustees and employers, strengthening our position
in the market and creating greater value for our stakeholders.

Our strategy 15 to be the best Penfida was established in 2005 as

provider of ail the services that a provider of employer covenant £1 2m
pension scheme trustees and advice, both in respect of complex

employers need. We aim to achieve corporate transactions as well as price of acquisition
this through developing our own regular advisory work In connection

services and growing orgenically, and  with pension schemes’ triennial

also by making strategic acquisitions valuations and monitoring. Penfida

to accelerate progress in important has built up a substantial presence n+
areas when gpportunities arise in the market as the leading

independent specialist adviser, with of client assets

clients representing In aggregate in
excess of £300 billion of assets

Under the pensions regulatory
framework, alt pension scheme

trustees require actuanal advice.

investment advice and admimstration  In September 2022 XPS acquired 1 7

services and the fourth pillar of Penfida dramatically increasing

support they need s ‘employer our capacity and capability in the FTE employees at year end

covenant’ advice, about the strength employer covenant space. The
of the sponsoring employer XPS has acguisition enables XPS to offer
for many years had a strong offering covenant advisory services to a wider

in the first three of these areas. In range of XPS clients while Penfida
the area of employer covenant, we chents and staff will benefit from
had a small capable team, achieving access to the wider capability of XPS

good organic growth, but we lacked
critical mass.

/4 V /4

We have enjoyed getting to With award-winning businesses
know our XPS colleagues, in the three other critical areas of
and have had a very positive support (actuarial, investment and
response from our clients and administration), the acquisition
people about the combination, of Penfida gives us strength and
which is good for everyone. depth across all of the key areas

of support our clients need.

Paul Jameson Patrick McCoy
Penfida Managirg Partner Head of Advisory

6 XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023



Business model

Delivering strong and
stable growth

XPS Pensions Group is a leading independent pensions
consulting and administration business focused on UK
pbension schemes.

Inputs

Qur people

Experts in their fields, our people drive

the business. They’re the innovators, the

problem-solvers, the forward-thinkers,

and that's why we invest in them Full service,

independent offering

Our culture Non-cyclical and recurring
Values driven, employee centric, inclusive, revenues + better outcomes for
friendly, meritocratic - our culture pension scheme members

empowers our business

Large, highly visibie
and growing workplace
pensions market

Our technology

We invest in technelogy to deliver our
services efficiently, and to bring clarity and
understanding to the complex problems we
help to solve

Supported by our sustainability strategy

8 XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023



Our mission

To be a sustainable business that allows us to build
long-term relationships with our clients, offers a great
place to work for our people and delivers value to all

our stakeholders.

Outputs

Blue-chip client base

High levels of service

Innovative solutions

Thought leadership

Strong award-winning brand

Read more about ESG page 26

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023

Value for all stakeholders

Clients
+ Specialist insight and expertise leading to
better outcormes for all stakehclders

« High-guality service and tallored solutions
+ Value for money
Read more page 24

Employees

* Stimulating working anvironmeont and
attractive career prospects

+ First-class training and support towards
professional quahfications

+ Competitive remuneration and benefits

Read more page 25

Shareholders

* Track record of growing revenues, profits
and dividends - more than £73 million paid
in dividends since hsting in 2017

* Non-cychcal demand for services
* Highly predictable revenues
* Strong cash generation

Read more page 24

Qther stakeholders
* Communities
* Positive impact on communities through
supporting local and national charities

* Regulators and suppliers
* Establishing open and fair relationships
through regular engagernent
and commun caticn
¢ Environment
» Carbon neutral across Scope 1,2and 3
ernissions and ¢n a path to net zero

Read more page 25

yodal J16aje435



Market overview

A strong business model
in a specialist market

We are a non-cyclical business, with predictable core revenues for the
non-discretionary and recurring compliance work we do for workplace
pension schemes. At the same time regulatory change and market
volatility increase the demand for additional expert advice and services.
Across the industry, it is standard practice for client contracts to contain
annual price increases in line with inflation - a defensive feature in
today’s high inflation environment.

All-weather markets

Defensive, non-cyclical, all-weather
- our end markets can be described
as all of these. They can alsa be
described as large and growing

in terms of size, we estimate the
fee market In which we operate at
around £2.5 billion p.a. The overall
private sector pensions market s
estimated to comprise £1.7 trillion
of assets. Of this, £1.5 trillicn relates
to defined benefit (DB) schemes,
where members are promised a
specified pension on retiremeant

by employers, with the remaining
£0 2 trillion accounted for by
defined contribution (DC) schemes,
where employee and employer
caontributions are iInvested with the
proceeds used to purchase a pansion
and/or other benefits at retirement.

In terms of groewth, the market

has historically grown at a rate of
between 3% and 4% per annum in
line with the rate of inflation. The
market 15 currently grow'ng at a
faster rate partly due to today's
higher-inflat-onary environment, but
also due to elevated activity levels

Growth drivers

Today's elevated levels of activity
are primarily being driven by
reguiatory change and evolving
markets. Whenever change occurs,
whether it is regulatory or market
driven, pensicn scheme trustees and
corporate sponsors are regurred to
act to ensure all members receive
ther pensions in full Change can
have a positive or negative effect on
a pension scheme’s financial position

10

In-built Non-
inflation discretionary,
protection recurring
revenues
Non-cyclical

The key 15 change has occurred, so
action will be required. As weli as
providing assistance and support to
trustees and employers with the day-
to-day running of pension schemes,
we advise trustees, corpcerate
sponscrs and members on how
change affects them, what action
cught to be taken and how best to
implement this across al: four key
areas of pension services

The four areas of pension services
« Administration: doing all the
things required tc ensure members
receive their correct pensions
at the right t'me, including a |
the record keeping, calculations,
communications and payroll
services to achieve this.

Actuarial: to work out If pensicn
schemes have suffic.ent assets to
cover their iabshities, namely the
promises made to members, and
overseeng strategies to delver on
this over the decades-long I fe of &
pension scheme.

Investment: to provide advice on
how a scheme's funds should be
invested to enable habilities to be
met over the long term, balancing
risk and reward.

Employer covenant: to assess the
financial strength of the employer
inrelation to its ability to meet its
pension cbligations and the level of
investment risk that can be taken.

Regulations require schemes to
seek support across all four areas
Regulatory changes and market
volatility sncrease the complexity of
delivering these services and thus
drive fee market growth.

Regulatory change

Regulations surrounding pension
schemes are constantly evolving
Below are key regulations that
have recently or are due to, come
into force.

The Pension Schemes Act 2021:
relates to how corporates finance
their pension arrangements and
the treatment of schemes foilow:ng
ME&A activity,

+ New Funding Code: focuses on
how pension schemes are funded,
heav.ly tria.led ahead of likely
implementation in 2024

« GMP equalisation: requires
compan:es te correct the unequal
treatment of men and women in
relation to a small part of pension
schemes dating back to the
19805/90s.

+ Single Code of Practice: s
expected to ncrease governance
reguirements for trustees when -t
comeas Into force later this year

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023



= Tashk Furce on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD):
requires trustees to improve
the guality of governance and
reporting i respect of climate-
related nisks and opportunities.

» CMA Review: recommends
trustees seek :ncdependent advice.

Market-driven change
A number of market drivers are at
play today

* Qutsourcing: to ensure members’
benefits are protected, the
regulatory backdrop governing
pensions 15 ever changing and ever
more complex. Because of this,

internally admmnistered schemes are

increasingly looking to outsource
administration. Outsourcing

can involve the transfer of the
administration of schemes to third
parties such as XPS. The market in
this area comprises large schemes
as historically only employers

with big workforces have done
administration in house. There

are many of these large legacy
schemes that we expect tc come
to the agministration market in the
Coming years.

Paradigm shift in interest rates:
the era of interest rates at or close
to zero generally saw pension
scheme deficits widen. Today's
higher interest rates, by contrast,
have been good for pension
schemes as they have largely
reduced deficits Regime change,
such as the one experienced in
2022, does mean pension schemes
naed to know how their financial
position has been affected In
some cases, deficits will have
turned into surpluses. Trustees

of a pension scheme in surplus
may lock to de-risk to lock in the
improved financial profile and
protect members' benefits, there
may be reopened discussions with
employers about contribution
levels and use of surplus, and there
will be a need for strategic advice
on what to do against a backdrop
that has fundamentally changed.

Bulk annuities: one way to de-risk

is via bulk annuities, a market that
Is already huge. Private sector
pension habilities alone stand at
£1.5 trillion, and where the pace of
growth has picked up volumes have
increased from £30 billlon a year to
a projected £50-60 bilhon by 2025,
Bulk annuities can take the form of
etther a buy-in or a buyout.

Administration

Employer
covenant

Change

Actuarial

Investment

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023

Buy-ins involve 8 pension scheme
buying an insurance policy to secure
part or ali of the promises made

to members. Under a buy-in, the
pensicn scheme makes an upfront
payment Lo an insurance company
and in exchange the insurer takes
on the responsibility of ensuring
members’ benefits are met as well
as associated risks such as inflation,
longevity and demographics. A
buyout involves insuring 100% of the
frabilities in this way and ultimately
winding up the pension scheme,

There s a matenal amount of work
associated with such activity for a

firm like XPS This work is the broking

of the transaction itself, work on
data cleansing and advice cn the
wider strategic consegquences such
as re-engineering the leng-term
investrent strategy of a scheme
where part of the assets are invested
in an 'nsurance contract.

« Insurance companies: as scme
pension schemes turn to the
bulk annuities markets, insurance
companies Increasingly require
support N writing business, meeting
regulatory reguirements and
administering growing books
of business, thereby potentially
growing the size of the fee market.

*« Fragmented marketplace:
workplace pensions s a
fragmented market. Fragmented
markets offer considerable
potential to grow by increasing
market share, either crganically or
via M&A. Sitting beneath the big
three players for whom workplace
peansions are not 100% of their
business, XPS 1s one of the largest
mid-tier companies and sa 15
well placed to continue to grow
market share

Today's elevated levels of regulatory
and market-driven change will likely
drive high activity levels for years

to come. Against a backdrop of

a high-inflaticnary environment,

the workp-ace pensions market is
therefore expected to continue to
build on its track record of delivering
all-weather growth

11
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The LDI crisis

Our agile
response

In 2022 our clients had
to navigate the biggest
pension investment
crisis in living memory.
We are proud of how
quickly we were able
to help our clients

(as evidenced by
many testimonials)
and how we led the
industry thinking in
the aftermath by being
the first to publish

our fundamental
review of the LDI
manager universe,
which has gone on

to be an unofficial
industry benchmark
used by many.

12

During the LDl crisis, as the price of
gilts fell rapidly, many schemes had
to scramble to post coilateral to keep
their hability hedges in place and,
across the industry, lots of schemes
had their hedges reduced just as gilt
prices started rising again causng
funding position losses

in contrast to this, aimost two-thirds
of XPS clients did not expenence any
redyction in ther habiity hadge; the
average reduction was a modest 3%
across alt our clients. This is testament
to our advice in the months and years
leading up to the crisis and prompt
action during the cnsis.

We were on the front foot,
Although no one could ant:cipate
the magnitude of the LD{ ¢r sis.
as inflation increased in the first
half of 2022, we were already
recommending chents review
therr LDI strategy to ensure it
remained appropr ate for the new
economic envircrment.

When the cris.s hit we acted guickly
and decsively, including rapid
communications with ctients and
out-of-the-box thinking to halp

/4

them meet urgent collateral calis.
Within six days of the crisis breaking
we ra~ a webinar ta helo over 7C0
trustees and sponsors navigate the
extrame circumstances.

After the crisis, we were the first
(ara possicly only) consultancy o
pubiicly puklish gur market review

of LDt providers covering the

actions the managers took and the
implications for pension schemes
This research has since gone to be an
unofficial benchmark used by many
within the iIndustry.

We were also the only fiduciary
manager evaluator o publish
research on how each FM fiduciary
manager reacted to the gilts crisis,
providing a deep understanding and
nsight inte a part of the market that
many previously thought would be
immune from such 1ssues.

We continue to help clents with the
ramifications and have developed

a second opinton LDI heaith check
for schemes we didn't previously
advise, but which were asking for our
valued input

I'm incredibly proud of how our team was
so agile, working so hard in very challenging
circumstances to help our clients navigate
the crisis, and the feedback from clients
shows that they really appreciated this too.

Ben Gold
Head of Investment

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023



6 days

into the crisis we ran a
webinar to heip trustees and
sponsors navigate the extreme
circumstances (with over

700 registrations)

average of only 3% loss of hedging
across our entire client base, with
around two-thirds of our clients

not suffering any loss of hedging
during the LDI crisis

99%

of our clients’ LDI funds remain
positively rated post LDi crisis

Ben Gold
Head of Investrnent

XPS Penslons Group Annuai Report 2023

Simeon Willis
Chief Investment Officer

LD! press coverage

“We are delighted with the
exceflent advice and attentive
service we have received from
XPS... (the) lead consultant has
been a constant source of wise
counsel at aff stages and...
ensured that the trustees were
fully aware of the issues when
vields rose suddeniy.”

independent Trustee
Belron UK Pegnsion Plan

“Thank you for your prompt
and comprehensive response
which is reassuring... | have
to say | have been very
impressed with both the
timeliness and quality of
information that has been
forthcoming from XPS given
the testing circumstances.”
Chair of Trustees

“You guys have been amazing
with the armount of proactivity
and great emalls this week! You
have been exemplary at
keeping us up to date.”

Bruce Gibson
Chair of Caravan Club Retirement
Benefits Scheme

“Your appointment

coincided with the LD! hquidity
crisis and your insight and
recommendations

regarding the activity and
actions proved... invaluable.”

Chair of Trustees
Go-Ahead Group

13
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Qur strategy

Our strategic priorities

We are a forward-looking and ambitious business.

Qur objective 15 to be the best provider of services to the UK pensions market, as a one stop shop
for everything Trustees and Empioyers need in this market One that offers a clearly differentiated

alternative to the Big 3 - able to operate at scale and yet agile enough to provide clients with

superior service at better vaiue than our larger rivals.

Our strategy 1s to deliver our objective, while remaining focused on achieving preftable growth,

and 1s centred around four key pillars.

Regulatory change

Whenever there 1s regu'atery change,
our clients need bespoke advice

and suppott Periods of significant
regulatory upheaval are therefore
drivers of market growth. Today, more
regulatory change s taking place, or 1s
n the gioelng, than at any time in the
past 20 years

Priorities for FY 2024

* Ensureclients are preoared for

Progress
We helped our chents Lo

adap: to the Pension Schemes
Act 2021 and we cont nued

o deve.op solut ons ':n line

w th the evo ving fund ng
rogu ations We heiped our
cients nav gate the LDI

¢r 515N adidmn 2022 Cur

tne uocoming Single Code of
Practice, focused on truslees’
governagnce requirements

* Contnuera.-out o GMP
eqJalsatonso Jron

¢ Offcr enhanced LDI
repar:ng and oversight

serv.ce 1o schemes that are
not ¢ ien:s

markel-'ead ng approach on
OME won us wicde-ra~ging
manda:es includ ng on some .
large schemes gJurs de o7 our Key risks
ex st'ng clien: port’o o ¢ Third pariy supp er/
OuLlS0Ure Ng

' Strategy

* Errors

* Therand fraud

£7.4m

revenue from GMP
equalisation work

61

phase 1 GMP
equalisation
reports issued

14

Expand services

We provide a full range of services
that pension trustees and corporate
sponsors need. But for many clients,
we only provide cne service and could
deliver more. Expanding our current
service offerings to exist:ng clients
represents a significant oppaortunity,
as does aevelooing new services

that help deliver better outcomes

for members

Progress

We malera ly sirengthened
our offer ng in the area of
employer covenan: adv ce,

a key service reguired by a
pens on trustess, through the
acqd s ton of Penf da We
grow our rsk transfer team
sigr icant y, woth the new
head of th s team who arrived
at the start o the “nancial
year overseeng fdriher sen or
hres wh cn combined with
tra n ng of exist ng XPS staff
rmore than doub ed our team
nthis area We conunued to
nvest ndataanay:cs, and
estabished a ded cated team
n this arca We a so nvesied
‘N the prov s on o serv ces Lo
nsarers, esiab shngamat -
g sC Di.nary eam to pursJae
apooriJnies na

co-ord nated way

46

number of risk transfer
engagements during
the year

Priorities for FY 2024

Conunued growrh of

our de-risk ng pracuce
ncluding deliver-ng arge
rsurgeee ransactions,
Conl nued grow:h n Trustee
Governance Services
Expansion of services nto
suppor: required by nsurers
and expansicn of our data
anaytcs capab iy

Key risks

.

Sirateg ¢ planning

ana exec.bior

F nancial performance
Informan onfoyber secur Ly
Siaff/haman resources
Crnent engagemen:
Business conduct
ansoreptat on

£6.4m

revenue from risk
transfer engagements
(76% growth year

on year)

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023



Grow market share

We seek to grow our business by
winning ‘new logo' clients - those
pension schemes and sponNsors
with whom we have no existing
relationship.

Priorities for FY 2024

* Con:inueroil-out of

Progress
Qur Markel Force In tauve

Mergers and acquisitions

We operate in a fragmented market
Being one of the largest mid-tier
independent companies in the sector,
there is an opportunity to grow our
market share through the acquisiticn
of businesses that can boost our
scale and capability In certain
specialist areas.

Progress Priorities for FY 2024
Acquisiion of Pen‘ida * Fuly integrate Penfida

generated mu tip'e now
business leads from the
large pens’on schemes
targeted Severa of these
were convearled durng the
year n borh advisory and
pens on admirn strat on
.nclud'ng Mencap, GoAhead

Marxet | orce In halive

Lo grow and convert ~ow
bus ness pipe ne

Max.m-se opporiuanity

Lo wn now nvestment
consdlt ng cients in wake @
LDl *a out

Focus on first t'me

3

Lim ted, a ong es:ab- shed
covenant advisory bus:ness
with a sirong marker posit on
Ihe acqu sit or compie~™ean s
our ex 5. ng capabiit'es

and expands the reach of
our offer ng 1o a wider base
of clients

L mited and expand
provision of covenant
adv'sory services for more
KPS clents

Coninue to avaluae
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anc strategic ariteria
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sector opportan ties
within Admriristration

F:at, Jacobs

Key risks

* Strategy

* Errors

* Thrd parly suppler/
outsourcing

* Strategic p.anning
and execulion

81+

Client schemes with
over £1 billion assets

17%

Organic revenue
growth
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Key risks
* Financal performance
* Business conducs

and reputat-on

5 £26m

Earnings enhancing
capital deployed

Bolt-on transactions in
the last 5 years
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Award wins

Getting it right
for our clients

In 2022 we won a number of
awards and are proud to be
recognised for the hard work of
our colleagues to provide excellent
service to our clients.

XPS Pensions Group wins four awards
at UK Pensions Awards 2022

XPS Pensicns Group waon four awards at Professional
Pensions’ UK Pensions Awards on 13 September 2022,
taking home Third Party Administrator of the Year, as well
as Actuaria: and Pensions Consultancy of the Year and
Investment Consultancy of the Year for the second year
narow. Thswas the first ime that these three awards
have been won outright by one company 'n a single

year. The Company was alsc highly commended in the
Technology Innovation of the Year category
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We are absolutely delighted to win
these awards, which recognises
the value we are adding for our
clients, helping them to meel Lhe
challenges that a volatile world is
throwing at them.

Paul Cuff
Co-Chief Executive Cfficar

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023

XPS Pensions Group wins
Best SIPP Provider

XPS won the Best 51PP Provider award at the Investment
Life & Pensions Moneyfacts 2022 Awards. We were also
highly commended in the Best $SSAS and Best Pension
Service categories This win reinforces our commitment
to guality, which has already been recognised by
Moneyfacts in the form of its prestigious five-star

rating for cur SIPP anc SSAS.
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Co-Chief Executives’ review

Sixth consecutive year

of growth

The resilience and predictability of our business model
have driven a strong performance for the year and we
are continuing to focus on our strategy to be the best

provider of all services to the UK pensions market.

Sixth consecutive year of growth
A year of record revenues, record
dividends, a strategic bolt-on
acquisition, multiple award wins,

a strong culture with excellent
employee feedback sustainably
delivered including carbon neutrahty
- shareholders would be forgiven
for thinking they are reading last
year's Co-CEQ Statement. There's
even another five-year anniversary
to mention. It 1s true all the above
were milestones achieved during

the year ended 31 March 2022 but

12 months on and many of those same
achievernents have been repeated.
and in many cases bettered This

is testament to the successful
execution of the strategy we have
pursued since we listed to deliver our
societal purpose

Record revenues: the year ended
31 March 2023 saw a record 20%
mncrease in year on vear revenues
to £166.6 million, of which 17% was
organic growth,

Record dividends: the Board 1s
proposing a 17% increase in the
ful-year payout to 8.4p per share.

Strategic acquisition: this year we
acquired Penfida, a leading covenant
adviser to UK pansion funos Just
as the prev ous year's acquis-tion

of M.chael J Field brought scale to
our SIP division, Penfida has done
the same for our existrng employer
covenant practice. Together with
our award-winning Administration,
Actuarial and Investment Advisory
divisions, XPS 1s now a one-stop
shop of scale for al services needed
by pension trustees and sponsaring
employers

Multiple awards; we won arguaby
the three most Important awards
at the 2022 Professiona’ Pensions'

18

UK Pensions Awards - Third Party
Administrator of the Year; Actuarial
and Pensions Consultancy of the
Year (second consecutive year),

and Investment Consultancy of the
Year (second consecutive year) This
represents the first time all three

of these categories have been won
outright by one company in the same
year - third-party validation of our
continued excellence In ¢client service
and innovation. Our SIP business
also won Best SIP Provider at the
Moneyfacts awards.

Carbon neutral: for the second

year in a row, our activities have
been carbon neutral, just one
example of how we strive to do
business sustainably. This has been
achieved through a combination of a

Paul Cuff
Co-Chief Sxecutve Officer

reduction in cur direct footprint and
the purchase of high-qualty carbon
offsets Fostering a strong and caring
culture 1s another, and with this in
mingd it 1s encouraging to note that
98% of our people rate XPS a good
place to work.

Fifth anniversary: 2023 marks the
fifth anniversary cf the launch of XPS
as @ new brand in the market with
clear objectives to be the best for
people and for clients,

By developing content, investing in
people and innovating consistently,
our brand has grown stronger each
year aver since, 5o that five years
on we are reporting revenues of
£166.6 milllon Furthermore, this
60% revenaue growth has been

Ben Bramhall
Co-Chief Executve Officer
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achieved during a period which
included the pandemic, heightened
macreeconomic uncertainty and
decades-high inflation, evidence

of our non-cyclical, all-weather

end markets - our defined benefit
(DB) and defined contrnibution (DC)
pension scheme clients require our
advice and services regardless of the
prevailling economic environment.

The progress made 15 also down to our
pecple. Without their commitment
and expertise, becoming the first
company to win all three key awards
at the 2022 Professional Pensions’
UK Pensions Awards while reporting
a sixth consecutive year of growth
would have been impossible.

Record financial performance
Total Group revenues for the year
ended 31 March 2023 came n at a
record £166 .6 millicn, a 20% increase
on FY 2022's £138.6 millicn. Of this,
17% of the growth was organic.

The record revenues represent 3
step-change compared to the mid-
to-high singie-digit revenue growth
we have repcrted for each of the
years since our listing. This i1s partly
down to higher inflation being passed
through to clients and onboarding
of new client wins but is also due te
a considerahle amount of regulatory
and market change - the two chief
drivers of activity in our client base
The record revenue performance
can also be attributed to the scaling
up of our platform into high-growth
areas - the product of investment

in staff, technology and acquisitions
to respond to these market and
regulatory changes. Because of this,
we are now able to service larger
pensions schemes and offer a wider
range of value-add services. The
increased scale of cur capabitities

is being reflected in our financial

V/4

It was a year of extraordinary

change in financial markets, with
rising interest rates and inflation
posing significant challenges for

performance, a trend we expect to
continue going forward.

In the past, the investments we have
made in our business have meant
growth in earnings has not outpaced
revenues. Last year, we reported a
significant narrowing in this historical
revenue and earnings gap. We also
stated that we expected this metric
to improve further in the years
ahead as cur efficiency drive and
investment into higher-growth areas
increasingly translated into higher
margins This has proven tc be the
case with FY 2023 adjusted EBITDA
increasing 24% to £42.4 millicn

(FY 2022: £34.1 million); statutory
profit before tax rising 13% to

E19.1 milhien {(FY 2022 £16.9 mill:on);
and adjusted diluted EPS up 24%

to 12.6p (FY 2022:10.2p). The
mproved profitability and continued
confidence in future prospects

has enabled us to propose ai/%
ncrease in the full-year dividend,
another record.

Divisionally, Adwvisory (comprising
Pensions Actuarial & Consulting and
Pension Investment Consultancy)
was the top performer with full-year
revenues growing 26% to £95 4 millicn
(FY 2022: £75.9 milhon), while
Administration increased revenues
10% to £57.5 millon (FY 2022.

£52.2 milion).

Pension Actuarial & Consulting
revenues grew 24% to £77.4 milhon
(FY 2022 £62.2 million) thanks to
inflationary fee increases, new client
wins such as BT Group plc contributing
for a full year and elevated levels of
activity centred around regulatory/
market-driven dynamics. Risk transfer
work was a stand-out performer with
revenues rising sharply to £6.4 million
compared to £1.5 millicn the previous
year thanks to big new mandate wins.
This foliows the appointment of a

V/4

our clients. | am very proud of

how well we served our clients

throughout.

Paul Cuff
Co-Chief Executive Officer

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023

Ben Bramhall

Head of Risk Settlerment and further
team hires in 2022,

Pension Investment Consulting
has also been a beneficiary of new
business wins. Increased demand
from clients for support in navigating
regulatory and financial market
upheaval (including the gilts crisis
N autumn 2022) has also been a
taillwind, as has inflation-aligned fee
increases. In all, YoY revenues grew
31% YoY to £18 O millicn (FY 2022:
£13.7 rnillion).

Pension Administration revenues
rose 10% to £57.5 million (FY 2022
£52.3 milhon) helped by new client
wins including Peugeot and BAA
and a full year of our outsourced
contract with IBM. The wins saw

the number of members we have
under administration surpass the one
milbon mark for the first time We see
further growth opportunities within
Admunistration and continue to invest
in our capability here. For example,
this year we successfully developed
our own proprietary Administration
platform which, as well as giving us
greater control, will drive efficiencies
and differentiate us as we look to win
further mandates.

8IP revenues benefited from a
full-year contribution from the
acguisition of the Michaet J Field
SIPP and 5SAS bocoks, as well as
strong organic growth and the higher
bank base rate Cverall, SIP revenues
rose 54% to £9 4 million (FY 2022
£6." milhon). We conlinue to expanc
the distribution channels for our SiPP
offering and we were recently added
to the panel of recommended SIPP
providers for St James' Place, one of
the UK’s leading financial advisers.
We view our inciusion on the panel
as a major endorsement of our

SIPP offering.

We have delivered strong growth
ahead of expectations, showing the
highest operating result since our
listing in 2017.

Co-Chief Exacutive Officer
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Co-Chief Executives’ review continued

Record financial performance
continued

National Pensions Trust (NPT), our
defined contribution (DC) master
trust, posted another year of growth
in assets under management (AUM)
which grew 8% to £1.4 bilhon (FY
20272 £1.3 bilhon), while revenues
came in flat at £4 2 million (FY 2022
£4 3 miliion) driven by lower asset
prices early in the financial year as
well as competitive price pressures,
Growth in AUM was driven by an
increase in client numbers to 152
during the year but was suppressed a
littie by reductions in asset prices.

Four core strategic pillars to capture
growth in our all-weather markets
Qur markets are driven by regulatory
and market change rather than by
econcmic cycles - pension schemas
require support to navigate the
ever-changing regulatory/market
landscape, which leads to increased
demand for services and in turn
market growth. Our markets are
therefore all-weather and to capture
the regulatory and market-driven
growth, we have in place four core
strategic pillars

1. Regulatory change as a driver
of activity

2. Growth through
expanding services

3. Growing market share
4. Growth through M&A

Every time a regulatory change is
made. pension schemes require
bespoke advice and guidance on how
the change affects them. Examples of
this in action include the November
2020 GMP equalisation ruling which
stipulated that companies rectify

the unequal treatment of men and
women who were members of
pension schemes in the 19805 and
1890s. The ruling triggered a work
stream that did not exist prior to
November 2020 and will take years
to compiete Further regulatory
change is en the honizon The Sngle
Code of Practice, which 15 focused on
trustees’ governance requirements, 1s
expected to come into force later th s
year or in early 2024

Compared to regulations, markeat-
driven change has been relativeiy
muted in recent years thanks to

the prevalence of iow interest

rates. Low interest rates have had a
largely negative mpact on schemes’
financial positions, but the stable
environment meant strategy/advice

20
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| look forward to the year ahead, knowing that
the talent and commitment of our people, and
the operational and financial strength of our
business, put us in a good place to meet the
expectations of our stakeholders.

Paul Cuff
Co-Chief Executive Officer

did not reguire frequent resets. All
this changed in 2022 with aggressive
rate hikes to tackle inflation causing a
paradigm shift in interest rates

By reducing pension scheme
labilities, higher interest rates

are generally positive for pension
schemes - we estimate in aggregate
schemes moved from a deficit of
around £300 billion at the start of
2022 to a surplus of around £60
billion by the end of the year This
was a positive mave for many of our
chents, but one that has generated
much work fer pension schemes
Clients have needed wide-ranging
adv.ce on the consequences for

them specificatly, with many seeking
support to lock in improvements
through changes in their iInvestment
strategy in some cases employers
have sought to reduce their cash
commitments towards deficits. This
has caused a major uptick in work,

as all of our clients have needed to
reassess the ‘journey plans' they have
n piace. We expected to remain busy
supporting clients for the foreseeable
future, particularly aganst the
backdrop of evolving regulat ons

Anocther conseguence of the increase in
ong-term interest rates s that bulk
annuities, insurance policies purchased
by definad benefit schemes to secure
members' benefits, have become more
afforaable for many schemes The bulk

annuities market has grown in recent
vears as pension schemes have
sought te de-risk and transaction
volumes are expected to nse further,
from arcund £30-40 billion a year to
£50-60 billion a year in 2024 and
beyond. High interest rates are
expected to spur this further growth,
as financially healthier pension schemes
re-evaluate de-risking options. This
will generate more work for cur Risk
Transfer team, which provides all the
support reguired including broking
insurance transactions and all of the
‘behind the scenes’ additional werk
that I1s required, which typically
includes complex data cleansing
proiects. We expect tangential
growth opportunities 1o open up too,;
one such opportunity 1s working
maore closely with insurance companies
that take on the liabilitres of pension
schemes In these transactions.
Insurers are resource constrained and
frequently outsource to meet scme
of their needs and we therefore see
considerabie scope o expand our
footprint here.

Aside from higher nteres: rates,
e Loty Jrven Irvestmenrt {20
crisis was the standout market
development of 2022 LDI allows
pens on schemes to hedge against
valathity and financ al risk caused

by moves in interest rates If these
risks are not heaged the risks can be

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023



material - for a typical scheme a 1%
fall in interest rates could increase the
mark to market value of the scheme’s
liabilities by 25%, all else being equal,
which can put huge pressure on cash
funding requirements and company
balance sheets. LDI funds have
crotected schemes from sharply
widening deficits as interest rates

fell during the last 20 years. What
triggered the 2022 crisis was the
speed of interest rate moves - bond
yields rose 1% in the space of three
days causing bond prices to fall 25%.
Whilst in terms of funding levels this
resulted in an improvement of the
financial position of many schemes

it put LDI funds under stress, with
many facing significant lquidity
challenges Clients needed advice to
navigate the crisis. This gave us a real
chance to differentiate ourselves and
we are very proud of how well we
looked after our chents.

Despite the crisis, LD continues

toc have an important role to play,
particularly in helping te protect the
improved financial position many
pension schemes find themselves in
today There are learnings to be had
though. Schemes need to ensure
they invest in sound LDI funds with
strong controls and more oversight is
required. Post-crisis, we are offering
ah enhanced LDI reporting and
oversight service that is open to
schemes, including those that are
not clients - a further example of
market changes giving rise to growth
cppoertunities and cur response to it

M&A is a route to growing market
share, and/or addressing any gaps in
cur capability. This year we acquired
Penfida, a firm that specialises in
‘employer covenant’ advice - this is
advice that pension trustees need
about the strength of the sponsoring
employer that stands behind the
scheme. We had a team in this

area of work, but it was small - the
addition of Penfida brings scale

to our existing offering, in the one
remaining area in the pensicns
business where cur presence had
teen sub-scale. We will continue

to look at M&A and partnership
opportunities which we believe make
strategic sense as well as those that
allow us to expand into tangeantial
markets, for example, around suppaort
for insurars.

We value our people

Gur revenues are not the only area
seeing growth. So too is the numiber
of our people. The year under

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023

review saw our numbers increase

by a further 200 sc that today our
employee count stands at over 1,600,
Regardless of how many we are,

we take our responsitility to every
one of our people seriously. Our
people work hard for the Group and
the Group must work hard for our
peopie This 1s why we have a growing
number of employee committees and
networks as part of our inclusion and
diversity ('1&D") drive so that all our
peopie feel they are a part of XPS
regardless of background. gender or
ethnicity. it is why we introduced our
flexible working model, My XPS My
Choice, last year and why, during the
year under review, we awarded an
additional mid-year pay rise to all staff
(apart from those in senior positions) In
response o the cost-of-living crisis.

We are proud of ocur eNPS of +33%,
a very high score for a professiona!l
services firm, and that 89% of our
people think we are truly committed
te 1&D. We will continue te work
hard for cur people, caring for their
wellbeing, supporting their many
volunteering efforts and providing
opportunities for career progression.
Not only Is this the right thing to do
but it also helps attract and retain
talented pecple.

Fveryone at XPS plays A part in the
continued success of the Group Cne
individual who has played an invaluable
role in XPS's success to date is Tom
Cross Brown, who was cur Chairman
until September 2022. Tom had

held the Chair since our listing and

has therefore gverseen tremendous
change at the Company. We thank

him wholeheartedly for the substantial
contribution he has made over the
years and we and the rest of the Board
wish him all the best with his retirement.

We value our environment
Environmental and chimate
considerations shape our strategy
and culture. We are proud of the
growth we have achieved to date put
we are eqgualty proud of our efforts
to ensure we grow in a sustainable
way The year under review was

the second in which XPS has been

a carbon-neutral business. We

have reduced our emissicns and
additionally as with last year, we
achieved this by purchasing UN
Approved Carbon Credits that cover
our own Scope 1 and 2 emissions, as
well as Scope 3 emissions produced
by our suppliers.

Carbon neutrality 's not the sum of
our ambitions Qur ultimate atm is
to achieve a sign'ficant reduction in

our direct carbon tootprint which

we aim to accomplish as part of our
science-based net zerc objective,
which we committed to in 2023, Our
pnledge includes ambitious targets to
halve our operational Scope 1and 2
ernissions by 2030, sourcing 100%
renewable energy in all our offices,
while promoting a low-carbon culture
amangst our staff and suppliers.
Utimately this can support our ambition
of reducing all emissions to net

zero by 2050

Outlook

The FY 2023 results demonstrate the
non-cyclical, resilient and predictable
nature of our business and the
opportunities for growth. Qur brand
has strengthened further in the year
with multiple awards, we have won
further new mandates and have
achieved high levels of client and
staff satisfaction. The investments we
have made into high-growth, high-
margin areas are increasingly being
reflected In our earnings.

We expect the demand for our
services to remain high as we help
our chients navigate the complex and
avolving regulatory backdrop as well
as economic and financial market
developments. We have continued
to grow market share, but with this
stilt under 10% there are continued
opportunitias to grow, supported by
both markat and regulatory tailwinds
We expect the operational gearing
that has come through this year to be
a continued feature of our results In
the future.

The Group has made a strong start to
the new financial year with continued
high levels of demand for our services
narticularly within Advisory and
further success in winning new
husiness. We remain confident in
delvering against our expectations
for the current year.

Paul Cuff
Co-Chief Executive Officer
21 June 2023

w4

Ben Bramhall
Co-Chief Executive Officer
21 June 2023
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Culture

Our culture

Actively listening
to colleagues

We are committed tc developing an
inclusive, collaborative culture where
everyone is respected and where
people at every level of the Company
can develop therr talents, make an
impact and have successful careers.
Our success in attracting, retaiming
and motivating employees is of

vital importance to our future and
therefore we need to ensure XPS
Group remains a highly attractive
place to work. We understand that
importance of engagement and that
It 1s a two-way process, so 1in 2022,
we refresned how we listen to our
colleagues tc provide a morea regular
and complete picture of sentiment.
This included redesigning our annual
survey, using an independent survey
provider platform, and launching

a 24/7 tool "Employee Voice” for
colleagues to give us feedback
anonymously. The feedback is shared
with the leadership team to take
swift action.

The results from the annual employee
engagement survey last adtumn
were tremendols,

V/4

a5% of colleagues felt they
"belongad” at XPS and this 15 down
to the robust 1&D strategy put in
place 18 months ago. Colleagues aiso
told us that they felt that anycne
from any background could thrive
here We were delighted that 98%
of colleagues said "XPS was a goed
company to work for” and 98% said
“working here makes me want to do
the best work | can'. These results
demonstrate our commitrnent to
bulding a community at XPS where
everyone can flourish.

We are most proud of the employee
Ne: Promoter Score (eNPS): we
asked colleagues how likely they
would be to "recommend working
here to ther friends and family” the
benchmark was +5b and we achieved
a massive +33 This result epitomises
how our people feel about working
at XPS and endorses the culture we
have developed at XPS

Actively listening to our colleagues and
acting on insights helps us make real,
positive changes. It helps us build a
culture of trust, strengthens relationships,
encourages collaboration and ultimately
helps us to attract and retain exceptional
employees, who are central to our purpose
and critical in delivering our strategy.

Rachel Gillion
HR Director

22

This year, our annual Values in
Practice Awards attracted over

130 norminatons, a record! We ask
colleagues to nominate anyone in
the firm who has demonstrated one
of our values: It could be they have
developed an innovative process or
gone above and beyond ther job
role. We were overwhelmed with the
enthusiasm and passion our people
showed in their everyday role making
XPS a truly great place to work

As a testament to XPS creating a
culture and working envircnment that
nJdrtures employees, we were named
as one of the Best Places to Work
2023 by The Sunday Times This truly
demonstrates our commitment to
putting our peopie first.

74%

response rate in our Annual
Employee Survey

98%

think XPS is a forward thinking
and innovative

99%

enjoy working with their team

XPS$S Pensions Group Annual Report 2023



Stakeholder engagement

Engaging

with our

stakeholders

Section 172 Statement

Stakehol!der engagement 1s central to
the Group's strategy and sustainable
success. The Board of Directors

of the Company acts in goed faith

to promote the long-term success

of the Company for the benefit

of its members as a whale, taking
into account the factors as listed

in Section 172 of the Companies

Act 2006

a. the likely conseguences of any
decision in the long term;

b. the interests of the
Company s employees,

Key interests

¢. the need to foster the Company's
business relationships with
supphers, customers and cthers;

d. the impact of the Company's
operations on the community
and the envronment,

e. the desirability of the Company
maintaining a reputation for
high standards of business
conduct; and

f. the need to act farrly as between
members of the Company.

The Company's purpose, values and
culture are established by the Board
and embedded throughout the
Group and key decisions made.

Engagement strategy

When making key decisions,

the Board is careful to consider

the interests and priorities of
stakeholders, and the conseguences
the decisions may have. The Board
recognises that stakehaolders have
differing interests and gives careful
consideration to balancing the views
of all stakeholder groups.

You can read about the Group's
orincipal risks and key mitigations,
ncluding those in relation to clients,
employees and supplers, on

pages 46 tc bl

Clients * Progucts and services

» Service performance
ang officiency

* Cormpetitiveness and vatue

* Cornphance and
data protecuon

* Sustainable prooucts

The Company engages with clients through key contacts who work day

to day with the clients, We also complete client satisfaction surveys every
two years, ana the Boara reviews tne results We also holo conferences,
weoinars ana training exercises for clients throughout the year, of which we

sce a fantastic uptake

Ben Bramhall (Co-CEQ) 1s Scheme Actuary on some of our largest clent
accounts, and Paut Cuff (Co-CEO) also works on corporate advisory

projects from time to time

Financal performance
and growth

Shareholders .

* Dividenas

* Timnely ano relevant
compunications

* Souno corporate
gaovearnance
ard stewardship

* Strategy aligned with

long-term sustainability

ard value creat on

We engage with our shareholders in various ways throughout the year
incluging meetings with investors and resuits roadshows hostea by the
Executive Directors and regular calls with analysts, investors and potential
investors The Investars section of the XP5 website 1s upgateo throughout
the year, to nclude useful informatior for cur shareholders.

The Boarg a'so attends the Annual Gereral Mecting ana 1s avalable to answer
shareholaer guestions Sarah 'ng 1s appointea as the designated Shareholaer
Engagement hon-Executive Director. Saran, along witk the Chairman, attenas

the Company's results presentations for analysts and shareholders. Sarah meets
ana speaks to shareholoers ana prospective Investors as well as sell side analysts

Margaret Snowaoon OBE, as the Remuneration Commttee Chair, engages
through consultation and meetings with major shareholaers in relation to
cxcculive remunaration. This year, Margaret has engageg wth shareholoers
in relation to the upgates Directors’ Remuneration Policy, being tatlea for

approval at the 2023 AGM

Folowing Tom Cross Brown iaforming the horminat.on Committee of

ks smtention to retire earlier 1In the year, Margaret Snowaon QBE ed the
Normination Committee through a recruitment process to aentify the new
Charman The Nomination Cormmittee engageda with six of the Group's
largest shareho-aers regularty throughout this process, througn both
consu-tatior letiers ano meetings You can read more acout the process

on page 67

Follow.ng Alan Bannatyne’'s appointment as Chairmar, Alan has helo
introductory meet ngs with the Group's largest shareholders ana cont nuously
cngages with snarenoloers .n relation to 1ssues pertinent to them

The Group's first Capita: Markets Day was relc on 24 May 2023, ano was
attendaea by sharcholaers ana prospactive sharehoigers, who Feara from the
senor management team ana haa opportun .ty to engage ana ask guestions

24
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Key Interests

Frgagemert strategy

Regulators

Transparency and cpenness
Proactivity ana
engdgemert 0 consultatbion
Comphance with regulation
and legislation

The Company warks with the regulators by responding to rcauests ana
consultations, submitting returns and attenang industry meetings,. Margaret
Snowdon OBE 15 an adviser to The Pensions Regulater and regulariy
upoates the Board on industry developments

This year, the introduction of the FCA Consumer Duty has been a pertinent
1ssue for the Boaro, ana Margaret Snowdon OBE was appointea as the
Group’s Consumer Duty Champion,

Employees

Engagement

Reward

Career apportunities
Training and development
Welibeing

Egualty, inctusion

aNna giversity

Work-life balance

and flexibihty

Margaret Snowdon OBE 1s appointeo as the Designated Employee
Engagement Non-Executive Director, Margaret 1s Chair of the Employee
Engagerment Group (EEG) and updates the Board after each £EG meeting.
Employees complete an annual employee survey, the results of whicn are
analysed in detall ana shared with the Board, ana an action plan s agreea

An external ana anonymous whistleblowing hotling 1s avallable to employees
24/7, any reports can be escalateo to the Board as reauired You can read
mare about erployee engagernent on pages 30 to 33.

The Board has re-introduced Board and employee networking sessians,
previcusly halted oue to COVID.

Suppllers

Responsible procurement
and ethics

Fair contract ana
payrment terms

Cost efficiency and value

The Group has a designated Procurerment team and an external company
which engages with and carries cut due diligence on 1ts supphers. We
conauct formal and transparent tenaer processes when reauired. An annual
review of existing suppliers, which provide scrvices that are deemed as
higher risk (1 @ process large amounts of our data or have access to our
offices), 1s completed in acdition to guarterly performance reviews with key
supphers, and the Board 15 maade aware of any 1ssues in relation to supplier
performance or agreements, Qur Supplier Code of Conduct communicates
what we expect from our supphers The Boarg annualty approves the XPS
Modern Slavery Statement

Communities,
charlties and
environment

Local ana worldwiae social
and environmental impact

Health anag safoty

The Sustaimabihty Commuttee 1s a Committee of the Board, and the majornity
of members are Board members The Commuittee Chair, Sarah Ing, updates
the Board following each meeting You can read the Committee report

an pages 74 ana 75 XPS% s excellently positioned to ensure our positive
impact 1s wider than the Group itself as we aovise our chents on sustainable
Investments: you can read about this on pages 36 and 37 You can read the
Group's TCFD report on pages 52 to 55, and our commitment to net zero on
cages 38 to 41, You can also read about our cormmurity support on pages
24 ang 35.

Example of stakeholder key interests being considered and impacting decisions during the year:

Penfida acquisition:

Shareholders - Our shareholders’ key interests are
the growth of the Group and value creation. It is with
this in mind that part of the XPS strategy is growth

through acquisition.

Employees - Through the acquisition, we welcomed

Chairman succession:

Shareholders - Following Tom Cross Brown
informing us of his intention to retire, the Nomination
Committee led by Margaret Snowdon OBE consulted
the Group’s largest shareholders in relation to both
the process and the key candidate criteria for the
Chairman role succession.

new employees to the Group. It is important to us

that these employees feel welcomed and integrated
as quickly and effectively as nossible, with as minima!

disruption as possible.

Clients - The clients we welcomed as a result of the

Empioyees - |t is important to us that during periods
of change to leadership, our employees experience
minimal impact and disruption. The appointment of
a Chairman who was very famiiiar with the business
helped to ensure this was the case.

acquisition are important to us and the success of

the acquisition. We aim to ensure minimal impact
and disruption to our new clients, whilst developing
the relationships and access to XPS's experience,
offerings and skills.

Regulators - We ensure that we meet all regulatory
reguirements when completing an acquisition.

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023

Regulators - We pride ourselves on our high
governance standards, and throughout the process
and appointment of Alan Bannatyne we upheld
these standards, and continue to comply with the UK
Corporate Governance Code.
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Sustainability

Embedding sustainability
across our business

Our sustainability strategy is fully aligned to our purpose:
to shape and support safe, robust and well-understood
pension schemes for the benefit of people and society.
But we know sustainability must go beyond our purpose.
It must also be embedded in our business.

Qur approach to sustainability
forms a major part of our corporate
strategy. It 1s integrated into our
business model so that by delivering
on our Mission to be leaders in
pensions, investment consulting
and administration, we are able te
challenge our brilliant people and the
wider pensions industry to improve
and achieve better outcomes

for members.

Celebrating our

FY 2023 milestones

As part of further embedding
sustainability across our business,
we made good progress last year
towards our targets, with a particular
focus on understanding the impact
of our business operations on

the environment; and support:ng
and developing our people Our
highlights from last year include.

Focus on
people

Focus on
governance

* Completed ar Ach eved 98%
ex:ernaly ‘ac aled
Board evaiuat on

O WwWorR’
* Acheved 43% ‘cmae G wa

agreement that
'¥PS s agoodoace

V/4

As we grow, our responsible business
ambition is to ensure that we do so ina
responsible and sustainable way. As well as
advancing sustainability across our business,
we are working with our clients, communities,
suppliers and colleagues to do the right
thing, focusing on areas that are material

to our business and stakeholders.

Snehal Shah
Chief Financial Officer

Focus on

communities

* Over £58.000
cang.ed w0 chdrty

* P oted avolunicer ng
programme rear

representat on on
ke Board

Embedded

sJsia nab oy
cons.deral ons n

I xacutive aoectives
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Prov ded cosi-o!-
VING SUPPOrL 20
everyone uander
Partner eve n “orm
of md-year pay r se

Ach eved 31% ‘ema ¢
reproseniaton n

seniar raragerment

our offies

Updated our supp- er
Code of Conduc:

60 appren: ce
opportdn D es prov ded

Focus on
our clients

* Re-con‘rmed as a

signaory 1o new UK
Stewardsh p Code

After ndependen:
research, we

have ncreased
odr des gnated
susia nab e ‘unds
0 34

We now have 23

C ents nsustanabe
‘ands represen:ng
£19b 'on AUM

Focus on our
environment

¢ Increased SO 14001

certfcaronwith 2
addtona o ces

increased ‘rom 2.0
8 ofices w th 100%
renewab e energy

* “Mana ned carber

rnedJiraliy for a secord
year na row

* Launched emp oyee

e ectr ¢ car scheme
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Strengthening our sustainability framework

We launched our sustainability framework in 2020, and
over the course of 2021 and 2022, we further developed
ambitions and targets for each of the five pillars. From
stakeholder feedback and desk research, we believe

that our sustainability framework continues to address
cur main material issues. Our intenticn is to update our
Materiality Assessment at least every three years, and we
will be undertaking this exercise in the next financial year.

Focusing on governance

Goal
Operate to a high standard of corporate governance

Material topics
Business ethics and value, corporate governance,
cyber security and data privacy, human rights and
modern slavery

SDG alignment

Below yvou can find a high-level overview of our
sustanability framework, where we have aligned

our sustainability ambitions with the UN Sustainable
Development Goals We have focused on the goals which
are most relevant to cur business, and where we think
we can have the greatest impact, they are included in the
sustamnabilty framework below.

Focusing on our people

Goal
Create a supportive environment where employees
can thrive

Material topics

Employee engagement, inclusion, eguality
ana diversity, learning and development,
employee wellbeing

SDG alignment

Focusing on our environment

Focusing on our communities

Goal
Create a positive impact
wherever we operate

Material topics
Community engagement,
charitable giving, supply
chain engagement

SDG alignment

Focusing on our clients

Goal

Help clients and scheme
members achieve positive long-
term outcomes

Material topics

Sustainable products and
services, responsible investment

S$DbG alignment

Goal

Reduce our impact on the
envircnment and helg others
do the same

Material topics

Energy usage and chmate
change, environmentally
friendly culture

SDG alignment

Qur sustainability approach is overseen by the
Sustainability Committee, a Board Cammittee established
n 2021 and chaired by Non-Executive Director Sarah Ing
(details of the Committee’s composition can be found

on pages 74 and 75). Here you can also read about the
activities of the Committee, which included overseeing
the implementation of the 1&0 and environmental
strategies, reviewing our responsible investment solutions
and our approach to sustainability reporting.

The executive sponsor of sustainability s Snehal Shah,
Chief Financial Officer, and the entire management team
drives the implementation of our sustamnability framework
approach across the divisions and functions of XPS
Pensions Group.

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023

It 15 supported by champions from every part of the
business as well as dedicated professionals such as Alex
Quant, Head of ESG for the investment business (details
of the entire team can be found on page 75)
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Sustainability continued

Focus on governance

Promoting integrity and
ethical behaviour

Good governance underpins our purpose, allows us to meet the needs
of our stakeholders and is the foundation for all our sustainability
efforts. In FY 2023, we worked with the Board to meet evolving
corporate governance expectations.

At the heart of our approach to good
governance sits our goal to operate
to a high standard of corporate
governance. This means complying
with the UK Corporate Governance
Code as well as new and evolving
regulations such as the new FCA
Listing Rules. Compliance with our
internal processes and procedures
can only be achieved through ethica:
behaviour in hne with our values

and culture.

Ensuring the Board is diverse

and experienced

Good governance starts with the
right tone being set from the tcp.
That's why we're pleased that in

FY 2023 43% of our Board was
female With the appointment of
Margaret Snowdon OBE as Senior
Independent Director we also meet
the requirement of at teast one senior
Board position beng occupied by a
woman You can read more about the
composition of the Board on pages
60 and €7,

As three years have passed s:nce the
last one, the year under raview saw
us complete an externaly facilitated
Board evaluat-on The focus was on
ensuring that the Bearad has the right
knowledge, expertise and experience
to provide robust oversight. From

a sustainability pont of vew, we
have strong capakbility at 3card level
spread across several Directors You
can read more about the resuits

of :he Board evaluation on pages

64 and 65
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Sustainability 1s not just the purview
of the Sustainability Committee.
Other Beard Committees also
provide oversight over matters
relating to sustainability, the Audit
& Risk Committee oversee the
dentfication and mitigation of
sustainabiiity-related risks You can
read more about the Audit & Risk
Committee on pages 70 to 73.

During the year, the Investment
Cormmittee (which comprises of

the most senior members of the
investment business and led by Ben
Gold, Head of Investment at XPS
and a Director of XPS Investrment
Limited) oversaw the cverall XPS
nvestment approach and as such
took & keen interest in how ESG and
stewardshp are embedded in our
advice to clients.

We continue to comply with the
UK Corporate Governance Code
20°8. Please refer to page 57 for cur
Statermment of Corporate Governance

Aligning performance

with sustainability

Key to the success of our sustainabiity
framework s incentrvising the
delvery of our ambitions That's why
n 2022 we embedded sustamability
considerations in the Execulive
performance evaluation process.

L nked to our sustainabiiity framework,

we introduced sustanablity as

part of the executive objectives.

You can read more about how
Executive performance 1s managed
and rewarded n the Remuneration
Committee report on pages 76 to 99

435%

of Board members
are female

Completed

an externally facilitated
Board evaluation

Integrated

sustainability consideration in
Executive objectives

Sustainability s further embedded
across our business by usng our
values and culture to promote the
right behaviour.

In 2020, we introduced the Values
In Practice (VIP) Programme,
accompanied by our VIP Awards.
Last year, the nominees and
winners of our VIP Awards stood
out for their comm+-tment to
sustainability Thisis how we
recognise the contribution that
everyone can make to dehvering
our sustaimabiiiny ambitions.
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Qur values

Our values and our culture drive
everything we do in the business.
Firstly, our culture defines our
interactions with all our stakeholders

- clients, shareholders, regulators,
employees. contractors, suppliers,
communities, charities and the
environment The interests of all our
stakeholders shape our decision

making and business model and are
vital to our ongoing ability to achieve
our goais. Read more about how we
engage with our stakeholders on
pages 24 and 25.

We are ambitious xps is an ambitious business We're aiming high to achieve our purpose of

benefiting people and society. We have ambitious goals for our clients, our ndustry and ourselves.
This means leading our incustry in thought, action and opinion It means we are progressive and
think differently about pensions. We invite bold thinking and actions within our business, and we give
each person the support they need to become their very best.

We are agile We're forward thinking, innovative and guick moving. When we see a better and
more sustainable way to do something. we make change happen. We don't just stick to the way
things have always been done in our industry. We take a fresh lock and find new ways of achieving
the best outcomes for our clents while benefiting people and society.

We are helpfu| We bulld and sustain great relationships with our clients and with each other.
This means we're always ready and willing to help cut. Clients and colleagues know they can trust us
We listen and we are helpfui. Ultimately, we aim to make people's ves better and we play an active
role across our industry and wider society to help achieve this. We work hard together, we support
each other, and we have fun together.

We are experts we know our stuff and we each bring something special to our coliective
knowledge. We make a point of cultivating our individual expertise and diversity of thought - and we
use it, share it and support each other for the benefit of our clients and colleagues every single day
We understand the responsibilities that corme with aur skills and abilities, so we each put them te
good use and build on them with constant learning

We do the right thing we're inclusive. approachatle. honest and farr, both with our chents
and each other. We value everyone’s unigue contributicn, recognising and rewarding hard work We
act with integrity and honesty, speaking up If something doesn’'t meet our standards

By following these values we'll grow responsibly and sustainably, for everyone’s benefit.

Secondly, cur values and cufture
underpin our compliance with
our core corporate policies and
procedures. These include:

» Business Code of Ethics: this
outlines the principles and values
that we expect all our people
to adhere to in relation to areas
such as harassment and bullying,
treating customers farly, inclusion
and diversity, financial crime andg
dealing with vulnerable customers

In FY 2023, 100% of our employees

completed an annual programme
of mandatory traiming Topics
nclude financial crime, bribery and
corruption, insider trading, modern
slavery, data protection, and cyber
secunty. This training 1s managed
and monitored by the Compiiance
and Information Security teams
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« Anti-bribery and Corruption

Pelicy: this outlines our zero
tolerance for any activities or
behaviours that are not in line

with our values and specifically
spells out our expectations around
financial dealings. This policy 1s
supported by a whistieblowing
process. In FY 2023 there were no
reports of suspected misbehaviour.

Modern Slavery Policy: this
outhines our expectations of our
business and cur suppliers to

value and behave in a way that s
respectful of human rights 100% cf
our people completed awareness
training on modern slavery and
how to spot It last year.

Supplier Code of Conduct:

this contains our commitments

and expectations around human
rights and social responsibilities,
discrimination, freedom of association,
environmental protection and health
and safety in our supply chain.

* Cyber security and data privacy:
our Information Security
Management System (1SMS) was
certified to 150 27001 1n 2022 and
the effective deployment of our
ISMS 15 independently verified
through our Cyber Essentials
Plus certification Last year,
all our colleagues undertook
mandatory training cn protecting
client, employee and corporate
information, including regular
phishing awareness exercises. We
continuously review and develop
our controls to meet new and
emerging threats.

At qur policy-related training

1S supported by reguiar
communications with staff to raise
awareness of how we can safeguard
customer information.
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Sustainability continued

Focus on our people

Empowering people

to thrive

Our people are our greatest asset. We want to provide them with
a positive and collaborative working environment where they

are members of diverse and inclusive teams. During the year, we
achieved very positive employee engagement scores and set
ambitious targets for gender diversity.

Qur goa' is to create a supportive
environment where people can
thrive. This means that we engage
with cur people on issues such as
diversity, inclusion, and learning and
development to ensure they have a
chance to reach therr potential, which
in turn means we are well placed to
deliver for our stakeholders.

Engaging our people

We want to provide a positive,
open and collaborative working
envirenment, with rewarding work
and development opportunities to
ensure our people have the chance
to fulfil therr potential. This 1s crucial
to our continued busingss success
and in meeting the expectations of
our clients, because an engaged
team helps us operate effectively and
provide excellent client service.

Management regularly engages with
our employees via an Employee
Engagement Group and through a
range of formal and informal channels.
These include weekly all-staff messages
from our Co-CEQOs, senior ‘eader
webcasts, town halls, team meetings,
and onlfine publications v-.a our intranet.
We expanded our communication
further in 2022, both to ailow
colleagues’ input Into decisions that
may affect therr interests and to share
key information reguiarly.

Qur Employee Engagement Group
(EEG), charred by Non-Executive
orector Margaret Snowdon OBE,
cont.nued to meet on a regular
basis in FY 2023, facihitaung direct
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communication between employees
and the Board CQur EEG duties
inciugte reviewing the Directors’
Remuneration Report and Executive
Remuneration Policy (reviewed every
three years), providing feedback on
palcies and empioyee surveys and
any other issues the Chair wishes

to ciscuss with XPS colleagues. The
group prov.des a channel to ensure
senior management focuses on
things that matter to our employees.

in summer 2022, we partnered with
The Happiness Index {(TH1) and rolled
out an employee voice tool. Thisisa
24/7 listening tool which provides a
safe and anonymous platform that
empowers our employees to give
feedback on their terms. It 15 not
designed to replace other aspects
of our hstening strategy but 1s a
platform which allows the sharing
of ideas and feedback. It drives
engagement and allows us to be
agile. It also helps us find ways to
improve their experience at work
and invest in our people's skills and
development,

We also used THI to help us launch
a new programme of group-wide
employee engagement surveys
The platform was useaq for our
annual Empioyee Engagement
Survey ‘ast Ociober and the results
demonstrated that our empioyees
are engaged with ther roles,

rhat they unders:anao our values,
ana that they believe we have an
ncusive culture where anyene can
thrive no matter their background.

98%

think XPS is a good piace to work

+33

eNPsS

99%

are committed to helping
XPS succeed

Forinstance, 98% said that "XPS

15 & goed place to work' and 99%
felt ‘committed to helping XPS
succeed’. We also asked colleagues
an Emplcyee Net Promoter Score
question, which asked ‘How lkety
are you tec recommend working here
to a friend or relative? This scored
+33 which is a goed indicater of our
progress mn creating a good place to
work (2027 survey' +5)

Following the results, act.on plans
were put In place to address some
of the 1ssues raised, namely around
resourcing, career progression,
recognition and wel’being

Fach office has the ability to
recognise colleagues’ efforts We use
Actus, our performance management
tool, te give more formal recognit on
for good work. We also have our
Values in Practice (VIPs) Awards,
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which provide opportunities to
acknowledge our people’s valued
contribution to performance. Qur
people nominate colleagues for
going above and beyond in making
XPS a good place to work. The
Jjudging committee 1s comprised of
colleagues making the whole process
inclusive and employee driven.

We continue tc drive business
performance by incentivising
colleagues through our bonus
schemes and employee share plans,
alongside our market-conforming
remuneration and benefits package
All XPS colieagues work to an annual
performance management cycle,
and all have access to a performance-
related bonus scheme that is based
on clear cbjectives stemming from
Group business objectives.

Promoting learning

and development

Empowering cur colleagues

to identify career paths and

aceess {raining and development
opportunities helps us retain

and develop cur people. We
continued to offer a wide range

of technical training at all levels as
well as management development
programmes for our more senior
employees. All employees can
reguest additional traning alongside
anything that's been agreed upon
within their performance reviews,
while coaching and mentoring are
also encouraged During FY 2023,
we recorded 28,956 hours of training.
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Support is provided for employees
studying for professional gualifications
via bespoke technical programmes
across ail areas of our business We
continued to support early career
talent through our graduate Actuarial
and Administration programmes

and Advisory apprenticeships. wWe
have also continued to develop our
induction programme based on
foeodback from colleagues.

Over
28,000

hours of training delivered across
a wide range of professional and
technical courses

Advancing inclusion and diversity
We are committed to fostering an
inclusive culture of diversity across
XPS Pensions Group. This is led by
our Inclusion & Diversity Committee
which includes cur Co-CECs and
Non-Executive Director Margaret
Snowdon OBE is the Board member
responsible for inclusion and
diversity. Membership also inciudes
business line representatives, to
ensure we engage colleagues across
the business. They are responsible
for ensuring decisions made by

the business units take account of
inclusion, diversity and equality,

and the Network Chairs, who are
accountable for the delivery of

the ¢chjectives of their networks,
ensure we have representation from
different groups in the business.

31%

of our senior management were
female in 2023

In 2022, we bullt on our inclusicn
and diversity (1&D) framework, which
we launched in 2021. Clear priorities
have been set in each area and we
have undertaken a number of key
measures, including:

* publishing both our gender and
ethnicity pay gap for XPS Pensions
Group, providing mandatory
training to managers on diversity
Issues and unconscious bias
and participation in ‘respectful
behaviours’ training. Last year, we
introcduced a gender equality plan
to enabie us to focus on gender
inegualities and set gender-specific
measures as part of our wider |&D
waork. Our Co-CEOs endorsed this
plan to help us on our continuing
journey to gender equality,

« providing internal and external
mentoring programmes o
encourage diversity and reviewing
our family-friendiy policies We
have a range of family-friendly
pohcies to enable our colleagues
to strike a good balance between
work and family. We identified
four key areas to improve gender
equality: Institutional Governance,
Sharing Knowledge to Bring
Change, Work-life Balance and
Professional Development. We had
29% sanior management female
representation last year, and this
has increased to 31% this year
We have set a target of increasing
the proportion of women in
senior managemeant roles t0 37%
by 2028; and

+ evolving and reviewing our
workplace policies regularly to
ensure they meet the needs of cur
people. Qur current policies include
enhanced maternity, adoption
and shared parental leave for
aemployees, agile working, parental
bereavement, menopause and &
reasonable adjustments policy.
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Sustainability continued

Focus on our people continued

95%

feel like they belong

98%

feel that people of ali
backgrounds can join and
thrive at XPS

93%

feel valued as an
individual

Age distribution

<21 2.0%
21-30  30.0%
31-40  25.0%
41-50 24.0%
51-60 16.0%
60+ 3.0%

Sexual orientation
Heterosexual
LGBTQ@+

Advancing inclusion and diversity
continued

All our activities and messages are
aligned so that staff know they
have the responsibility for actively
promoting equality of opportunity
and diversity, speaking up and
actively listening to others and that
everyone should respect each other
and take the time to understand
different perspectives. We have
asked and trained our managers

to set clear expectations, lead by
example, uphold the highest of
standards and ensure decisions

are fair and free from bias. Each
manager is encouraged to bhe

an Ambassador for IED in wider
society (as are all staff). Also, al+
staff have been trained cn inclusicn
and respectful behaviours with
colleagues, and this is also part of our
onboarding process.

During the year. we had five thriving
employee rasource groups across
our business including Women's,

Gender split data

Disability, LGBTQ+, Menopause and
Multicultural. They are a key feature
of our culture as an inclusive place to
work. We are committed to prowviding
equal employment opportunities

and combating discrimination.
Where possible, we monitor the
ethnicity and gender composition

of our warkforce ard those apglying
for jobs.

XPS continued to support 18D
awareness days throughout the
year with an inclusive programme
of events and campaigns led by

our five Employee Networks We
ran a full calendar of 21 internal
firm-wide webimars hosted by
multiple networks working together
Highlights this year included
celebrating International Women's
and Men's Days, Black History Month,
Trans Awareness Week and our

‘Be Yourself at Work’ campaign. In
our 2022 engagement survay, 35%
of colleagues said they felt they
"helong” at XPS (2021 85%).

Prefer not to say/

declined to specify

Male Female
Group 811 49% 832 51%
Partners & Managing Consultants 81 £9% 37 31%
Board 4 57% 3 43%
Other employees 727 48% 795 52%
Note
Serior management s Pariners and Manag ng Consuitants
Ethnicity
White 70.4%
Ethnic minorty 9.2%
Prefer not to say/
not stated 2.3%
Based on 81 8% of staff disclosure
D dnat paric pate
Disability
56.4% Yes 6.0%
29% No 47.4%
3.8%

Based on 63 2% of staff disclosure

L drotparicea:s
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Based on 53 4% of staff d'sclosure

D.d no: par.cpate
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Since 2017, XPS has been part of
the Actuarial Mentoring Programme
(AMP), a cross-company mentoring
orogramme designed to improve
diversity within the actuarial
profession. In 2022, our XPS Women's
Network launched a mentoring
programme. This is i addibion to
the external mentoring schemes we
participate in from AMP and Mission
Gender Equity, previcusly the 30%
Club Cross-Company Mentoring
Programme which focuses on
accelerating women's leadership.

Facilitating flexible working
During the year we confirmed to
colleagues that 'My XPS My Choice’
was a permanent policy change
and would be embedded as one
element of our approach to flexible
working. This meant that colleagues
agreed with thewr line manager ¢n
the location where they felt they
could work at their best for XPS.
Mast colleagues chose a “flexiple”
opticn which means they attend an
office at least one day per week and
far the rest of the week, they would
work from home Colleagues were
delighted to be given the cpportunity
to select their location and we know
via engagement surveys that they
value this flexibility My XPS My
Chosce also makes us attractive when
hiring as many compgetitors do not
offer such flexibility.
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In addition to My XPS My Choice,

we also updated our Agile Working
Policy: this means that colleagues can
ask for a variation to their contractual
hours due to an unforeseen event, for
example, caring for an elderly parent
or if they are strugglng wit~ 2 health
1IssUe such as the menopause. This
approach reinforces one of our values,
“doing the right thing”, because

It means that as an employer we

can adapt to change guickly and
support colleagues when they need
It the most.

Enhancing employee wellbeing
We have a multi-generationa’
workforce, and it 1s vital that our
people are provided with the
support and opportunities they
need to optimise their health and
wellbeing All our colleagues benefit
from a wide range of wellbeing

and mental health supports. These
nclude options for private medical
nsurance, permanent health
nsurance, criticat illness and hfe
cover, occupational health, access
to counselling and other support via
an Employee Assistance Programme
(EAP). Thus precgramme includes

a confidential 24-hour helpline for
colleagues to share preblems and
receive actionable advice, and legal
information services including debt
and financial information. We alsc
provide a comprehensive calendar
of monthly wellbeing events for

our people across four key areas’
emotional, physical, financial and
spiritual. There |15 also extensive
resilience and mental health traning
embedded within our learning and
development programmes.

Our memberships
+ Business Disability Forum

* Business in the Community

* Diversity Project

+ Menopause in the Workplace
* Stonewall

* Valuable 500

We have been actively work:ing with
Mental Health at Work (MHaW)
since 2020 and have developed a
robust and welli-thought-through
approach to supporting meantal
health at every level within XPS
Leadership visibility has been key,
and there s an cverarching cultural
driver for managers and employees
to do all that they can to support
one another We have trained over
70 MHaw Allies’, ali of whom have
become integral to our wellbeing
offering at XPS.

Employees have felt the impact

of the cost-of-living crisis, and we
have provided support in the form
of a mid-year pay rise to everyone
betow Partner grade (£3.2 million
annualised). We have also supported
colleagues with financial welibeing
webinars covering topics such as
financial resilience, budgeting, credit
borrowing and debt savings.
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Sustainability continued

Focus on community

Expanding our
community investment

Our continued success depends on the talent present in our
local communities; without a thriving society we are unable

to build a successful team. At the same time, our teams can
contribute meaningfully to the health of local communities.
This year we launched our volunteering programme to expand
our commitment in the communities in which we operate.

Our goal 15 to create a positive
impact wherever we operate It

atso means enabling our pecople to
donate their time, their skills and their
enthusiasm to achieve things that a
financial donation cannot. We extend
this partnership approach into our
supply chain too

Enabling our people to give back
Last year, we continued to support
school students and individuals

n thelr early careers We provide
work placements to 75 students to
undertake work experience at XPS
Pensions Group. As well as offering
work experience to secondary school
students within our Administration
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business, we also offered the
opportunity for university students
to join our Investment team for a
week to gain valuable insights into
the workplace This was undertaken,
as part of the UpReach Investment
Springboard Project, which supports
high-potential students from
less-advantaged backgrounds,

who may nct otherwise be able to
access high-quabty work experience
within professional environments.

In addition, 60 apprentices joined
XPS Pensions Group during the year.
Apprenticeships provide a valuable
route for those with different
educational gqualfications to start
therr career at the Group.

XPS Pensions Group wants to
encourage employee involvemeant

in fundraising and hands-on
activities which benefit our local
communities, That's why we trialled
a new vclunteering approach in
2022 We partnered witn The
Conservation Volunteers and The
Wiidlife Trust community groups to
organise conservation work n nature
near our offices. Qur Envircnmental
Network worked with these charities
to organise conservation days.

In addition, we are working with
Business in the Community to find
other velunteering cppertunities
sJuch as job coaching.
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Financially supporting

our communities

We are proud (o support the
communities in which we operate and
actively encourage our employees o
do the same The Group offered both
financial suppocrt and paid leave to
any employee whose family has taken
Ukrainian refugees into theirr homes.
In FY 2023, several colleagues
extended heart-warming hospitality
to people fleaing this war.

Over the past year, XPS Pensions
Group continued to support some of
our key charity partners - Tax Help
for Older People, Crisis for Christmas
and TeamPolice.

We also have a Charity Matched
Fundraising Policy. All oyr people
can apply to get matched funding
from the Company when they raise
maney for an eligibie registered
charity. Staff have participated in
many events supporting charities
such as Alzheimer's Scciety,
Macmiltan Cancer Support and the
Mental Health Foundation. We have
also supported several food banks
this year across the UK. In total, the
gruup conliibuled over £58,000

In chantable donatons in the year,

Partnering with our supply chain
We have extended our sustainable
ambitions in our supply chan. In
the year, we updated our Supplier
Code of Conduct, which sets out
the high standards and behaviours
that we expect from them, including
safe working conditions. fair and
respectful treatment of employees
(including modern slavery and
human rights expectations),
consideration for the environment
and ethical practices.

XPS Penslons Group Annual Report 2023
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Sustainability continued

Focus on clients

Targeting responsible

outcomes

We are trusted advisers of pension funds on which millions of
people depend. To support our clients best, we aim to develop
long-term partnerships with them. Increasingly, ESG integration
and stewardship play an important role in these partnerships.
During the year, we made significant steps to further integrate
ESG and sustainability into our service offering.

Qur goal is to help clients and
scheme members achieve positive
iong-term outcomes. We do this
through our culture and values to
help us promote sustainabie services
for our clients. We incorperate
sustainability into our investment
strategy solutions as well as making
ESG consideraticns part of all our
nvestment research and advice. We
also focus on keeping all our clients’
money safe from scams and fraud

Strengthening our responsible
investment strategy

COur Responsible Investment Policy
makes 1t ciear that consideration

of ESG is a critical aspect of good
investment management both from
a risk as well as an opportunity
perspective We balieve that
proactively considering sustanable
themes, such as climate change

or positve social outcomes, will

lead to better long-term positive
outcomes, and we encourage our
clients to adopt this approach This
supports how we integrate ESG
and stewardsh p throughout our
processes and in our 'nteractions with
our chents, iInvestment managers ana
at firm level We now have 23 clents
N sustamable funds representing
£1.9 bilhion in assets under
management (AUM)

We recognise that one size does

not fit all when t corres to ESG

and stewardship. We have a ciear
framework to help our clients to
ungerstand the r specific priorties in
relation to ESG to ensure our advice
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Our Scam Protection
Service has helped
protect over 8,500
members’ transfers,
totalling over

£1.85 billion

We now have 23 clients
in sustainable funds
with £1.9 billion assets
under management

and solutions are tailored to ther
Junigue needs and wider objectives

XPS Pensions Group developed

its own ESG fund rating system to
ensure full consideration of ESG

factors 1s embedded .nte Nvestment
rmanagement. This entails using a
detaled questionnaire and face-to-face
meet.Ngs to assess a manager’s overall
philosophy, how ESG 1s ntegrated into
investrnent decisions with n the given
funa, climate change risk management
and stewardship ESG and sustainabiity
cons derations are embedded nto a*
aur nvestmeant recommendations and
cilent advice, cover ng £96 bilion of
assets under management

During the year, we achieved
the following

» following the Russian nvasion of
Ukraine we conducted a review of
our sustainable funds (see below)
to understand what exposure they
had to Russian entities. We found
that where there was any exposure
this was very low and the ma:ority
of managers {ooked toc remove
this exposure;

* the LDl gilts crisis was a chalenging
time for pension schemes
averywhere We were able to
guickly help our clients during the
ailts crisis in September/October
and this 1s evidenced by ocur many
client testimon:es. Ultimateiy,
although this was a difficult time
for them, the vast majority of our
chents' iabtity hedges were not
materially affected by the LDI crisis,
which 1s mainly a testament to their
preparedness and the advice they
received in the months and years
leading up to the crisis;

In 2022, we undertook our biggest
ever annual ESG ratings exercise,
Involving 255 funds across 63
managers n the nterests of
transparency and rais.ng the bar
for the inaustry, we proviaed
feedback to all of those managers
who submtied We also heid
follow-up face-to-face meetings
with all those managers who
received ared rating, as we.l as
many others, to discuss areas

for mprove~en:,
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* we carry out independent research
of available funds and have
designated a number of these to
be sustainable funds that target
environmental and social outcomes
alongside their financial objectives,
including for example, a net zero
target. We have now designated 34
sustainable funds available across
all asset classes to help our clients
meet their financial olpeclives wliilsl
targeting long-term social and
environmental outcomes; and

+ we provide detailed ESG reporting
to all clients. In additton to feedback
on the ESG ratings, we include
detail on wider sustainability
factors (such as exposure to
sin industries, climate transition
alignment, and engagement on
ESG across the portfolio) as weil
as carbon emissions reporting
(which we ntroduced in 2021) This
year we have also partnered with a
market-leading climate change data
provider which will further enhance
our reporting and analysis of climate
change risks.

By continucusly improving the
practices of investment managers
to support effective ESG risk
management and directing finance
towards positive environmental and
social sustainability outcomes, XPS
Pensions Group 1s well positioned
to make a positive impact on

wider society.
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Keeping clients safe

Qur Scam Protection Service
continues to support trustees and
our chents’ members by identifying
and managing suspicious activity
inrelation to transfers |n particular,
our Scam Protection team uses a
phone calt with scheme members to
obtain rcbust information about their
transfer and uses it to dentify any
suUspicious activity, including the rec
and amber scam warning flags set
out in the Occupational and Personal
Pension Schemes (Conditions for
Transfers) Regulations 2021 Our
service goes beyond what is in the
regulations and we continually lock
out for new potential scam warning
signs and how scammers may be
changing their behavicur.

in order to protect our clients' funds
further 2022 saw us participate

in the Department for Work and
Pensions’ 18-month review of
transfer regulations. Last year, we
also actively contributed to .ndustry
forums including the Pension Scams
Industry Group and the Pension
Scams (ndustry Forum to improve
outcomes across the Industry as a
whole in relation to scams.

Protecting vulnerable customers
We recognise that many pension
members we deal with may

be experiencing one or more
vulnergbilities, and that we must take
care tc listen to our customers’ needs
and dentify when we should apply
an extra duty of care. Our Bealing
with Vulnerable Customers Pelicy
provides guidance to all employees
around vulnerabilities our customers
may experence, barriers they may
face when dealing with professional
service providers such as us,

and what we can do tc make cur
services as accessible and Iinclusive
as possible, adapting to customers’
specific needs wherever possible

In FY 2023, all customer-facing
empioyees completed annual online
training to embed their knowledge
and skills in this area further. The
new FCA Consumer Duty Rules,
introduced last year, shine a further
spotlight on how retail clients with
characteristics of vulnerability should
be considered at every stage of
their interaction with FCA regulated
firms and we are implementing the
reguirements in the relevant XPS
business areas from 2023 ocnwards.
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Sustainability continued

Focus on environment

Our commitment
to net zero

As a large employer, we recognise that we have a responsibility to

address the environmental impacts of our operations and our investments.
Reflecting the importance our stakeholders and the Group itself attach to

this responsibility, we strengthened our environment strategy, targets and

programme in the year.

Our geal s to reduce our impact on
the envircnment and help others to
do the same - even making a positive
contribution where we can This
means identifying our climate (such
as emissions) and environmental
impacts (such as our use of water,
paper and production of waste) and
taking steps to reduce, reuse and
recycle where possible

Putting the environment on

the agenda

XPS Pensons Group considers
climate change a ‘ong-term risk to
our Industry, the economy and the
world. But we believe that, in the
short term, we currently have a low
risk in relation to environmental
matters. The Audit & Risk Committee
oversees risk identfication and
management across the Group
and reports tc the Board on risk
prigrivtsation and mitigation You
can read more on pages 4 o sl

We alsc see the transiticn to a
low-carbon world as presenting
opportunities for XPS Pensions
Group We have identfied growing
demand from our chients for
ESG-related services ranging

from ESG research to advisory
and this presents chimate-related
opportun tes for XPS to grow.
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At management level, climate risk 15
overseen by the information Secunty
& Environrmental Management
Steering Committee. The Committee
met quarterly in FY 2023 to review
aspects, Impacts. legislation upclates
and provided management with

a regular cpportunity for review.
Qutputs are then fed into both

the Sustainability and Audit & Risk
Committees for review and approval
of any actions, objectives or policy,
which then feed back to our Boaro.
This is how environmental risks

and opportunities are kept on the
agenda at XPS

Developing a

comprehensive strategy

In order to gevelop a comprehensive
chmate and environmental strategy,
XPS Pensions Group completed an
exercise to assess and identify the
most sigrnificant risks in the short,
medium and long term The most
significant transition risks for our
Group are

* Energy prices: as with all
professional services, we have a
rehance on electricity to suppiy
services to our clients. The energy
transition, exacerbated by the
pandemic and the war in Ukraine,
has driven up energy prices and
posed a risk of energy shortages

« Supply chain: many of cur key
chmate and environmental impacts
are :n our supply chain Rising
costs, lack of supply and other
supply chainissuas around waste,
water, paper and business travet
pose arisk to the Group

Results of our scenario analysis

Perce ved Rsk matenahty

Net-Zero Scenarios

Rapid
Timely

Delayed
Failed
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50%

carbon emission reduction
aimed for by 2030

2

additional offices that have
{SO 14001 certification

8

offices with certified
renewable energy

2

years of XPS being
carbon neutral

In last year's Annual Report, we
disclosed our perception of our risk
and preparedneass inrelation to a
number of possible climate scenarios
These included four potential net zero
trajectories including a rapid, timely,
delayed and failed transition. In all
four scenarios, we are confident that
XPS Pensions remains a resilient and
sustainable business. We develop ocur
climate and environmental strategy
based on our analysis which suggested
a timely transition to be preferential,
allowng for a smooth transition t¢ a
low-carbon economy while imiting
global warming to below 2°C

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023

in response to these climate risks and
opportunities, XPS Pensions Group
developed, alongside 1ts 2020
comprehensive sustainability
framework, the detailled climate and

environment strategy, outlined below,

and identified where sustainability
feeds into business planning and
investment decisicns A good
example is the Group's strategy
a~c dec.stor mak:ng in the
selection of supphers, faclines and
acquisitions now incorporate
sustainability considerations

Building our net zero pathway

In ine with the Paris Agreement,

this reporting period XPS Pensions
Group formally committed to a science-
based net zero strategy that mits
our operational emissions tc a level
consistent with or beiow 2 1.5°C
global temperature rise. On the way
to net zero by 2050, we icentified the
following interim targets:

» we will reduce operational
emissions by 50% by 2030,

* we aspire to reduce residual Scope 1
emissions to zero in the 2030s; and

« we will reduce our supply cham
ermissions by 40% by 2035

Last year, we developed an initial
transition plan to achieve our net
zero and interim milestone targets.
At its heart sits the effective
implamentation of our Environmental
Management System (EMS) The

EMS allows us to measure our climate
and environmental impacts, manage
and, where possible, reduce them.
Covering our entire Group, the EMS i
supported by an Envircnment Policy
that outlines the steps to take to
achieve net zero:

* to enhance our environmental
management, we will pursue
the certification of the EMS with
15O 14001 for envircnmental
management for all our locations
This wili help us implement our
Environment Policy consistently.
In FY 2023, we added ISO
14001 certification for ancther
two offices;
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Sustainability continued

Focus on environment continued

Building our net zero pathway

continued

* to reduce our biggest source of
emissions (heating, cooling and
powering our offices). we will
source 100% renewable electricity
by the turn of the decade for ali
our locations or, if not possible,
seek aternative locations where
this can be sourced. In FY 2023,
the number of offices with 100%
renewable energy Increased by six
to eight;

to increase cur energy efficiency.
we will implement energy-efficient
hardware and software where
possible In 2022, we made
headway on the retirement

of inefficient Iight bulbs and
equipment. New starters are
now 1ssued with greener
technology hardware, and

to tackle the indirect impacts in qur
supply chain, we deployed a range
of projects. In FY 2023,

* we rolled cut campaigns to
drive down internal printing For
instance, we've intiated a project
to centrelise ana d-artise our postat
services which offers cost-saving
and environmental benefits;

* we raised awareness of the
impact of businass travel and
intreduced an electric car scheme
for our colleagues; and
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*« we completed the sustainability-
focused refit of our Newcastle
office using sustainable materials
and repurposed furniture.

We recognise that it will take time
to achieve net zero and that urgent
acton i1s reguired on climate change
right now. That's why XPS Pensions
Group again renewed its carbon-
neutral status in FY 2023,

We offset the previous financial
year's emissians for our entire

value chain, including supply chain
emissions Carbon credits were
sourced and retired from trusted
carbon marketplaces Gold Stanaard
and the UNFCCC’s Climate Now
platforms. XPS Pensions Group
invested in two projects during this
reporting periad, natadly investing
in a biodiversity and reforestation
scheme in Panama. The projects
ensure vital existing habitats are
protected whilst faciitating the
growth and development of new
ones. In addition, the projects
provided work opportunities for the
local community and sustanable
cocoa production, promoting self-
sufficiency within the community.

Embedding sustainability in

our culture

We believe our people sharing

ouJr ambition 1s fundamenta: to

the success of our environmental
strategy. Engaging with our teams
not only helps the business achieve
its environmen:al objectives but
promotes greener habits in and cut
of the workplace for the benefit of
us all. To accelerate this behaviour
change, we are explering the benefits
of deploying an internal carbon price
in the accounting for our business
decisions in 2023.

Local volunteers act as
envircnmental champions across
the Group representing a visible
focal point for our environmenzal
strategy. The champion’s rcle
includes engaging with their local
team on environmental matters and
identifying local opportunties to
improve, As part of this initiative,
environmental champions were
nvolved in organising the first of
the Group's corporate volunteering
events to benafit our local
communibes in FY 2023 vVolunteers
local to the Reading and Birmingham
offices enjoyed getting stuck in with
forest maintenance, tree coppicing
and biodiversity tasks.
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Sharing our performance transparently

In order to monitor the progress on our net zero journey, we measure relevant key performance indicators in the
EMS. This allows the Group to quantify its carbon feotprint, effectively monitor risks and continually reduce i1ts
environmental impact. In FY 2023, we completed an 150 14064 gap anaiysis with an external provider to enhance the
accuracy, reliability and completeness cf our carbon inventory. We will implement the recommendations in 2023 in
order o share our perfor—ance better with zll our stakeholders and to meet our duties under the Streamlined Energy
and Carbon Reporting Regulations

We were successful in decouphing our emissions from our growth. Against an increase in business in the FY 2023 we
reduced our direct (Scope 1) emissions This is the result of our work ¢n rationalising cur office estate and requirnng less
heating as a result. In addition, we reduced our Scope 2 absolute emissions despite our teams returning to the office
after the pandemic. Qur Increase in renewable energy has ensured we continued the downward trend of our emissions.
QOur Scope 3 travel emissions have increased as office working and in-person client meetings resumed. The associated
volume and emissions relating to business travel remain below that of the pre-pandemic level, despite growth in revenue
and personnel In the time frame. Conseguently, the return to office working decreased our remote work-related
emissicns, which outweighed those produced by the additional commuting. This resulted in an ebsolute reduction mn
Scope 3 emissions in the period.

Annual greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023

FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021
Scope 1 ermissions (tCOe) 157 215 212
Scope 2 emissions - DEFRA location based (tCO,&) 215 244 350
Scope 2 emissions adjusted for renewable energy’ 185 230 350
Energy consumption used to calculate above emissions (kWh) 1,976,286 2,334,261 2,655,443
Scope 3 emissions (tCOze)2 1,189 1522 1,928
Total emissions 1,53 1967 2,490

FY 2023 FY 2022 Fv 2021
Revenue intensity Scope 1 & 2 (tCO,e/Em} 21 3.2 4.4
Revenue intensity Scope 1,2 & 3 (tCO;e/Em) 9.2 4.2 195
FTE intensity Scope 1& 2 (tCOe/FTE) 0.2 Q03 4
FTE intensity Scope 1. 2 & 3 (tCO &/FTE) 1.0 14 1.9

Noes

All activizies are UK based :CC,e = lonnes of CO, equivalent Unless otherwise noted a conversion to carbon s nased on current Departmen:
faor Educaton, Food and Rura. Affairs (DEFRA) faciars Calculations are made in accordance with the SECR gu'dance and the GHG Proroco
FTE = full 1ime emp oyees as a1 31 March 2023,

1 XPS has rans tioned o certified renewab e energy 1n a number of :i1s locations enablng the Group to € a'm zero-emiss'ons relat ng
g associated energy consump: on, as per the market-based accounting method |t has been determined the Company's transition to
renewable energy avoided 30 tonnes of COe n the period based upon DEFRA kWh location-based account ng

2 Scope 3 emssonfigures for FY 2023 nclude bus ness iravel, employee commut ng and domestic energy usage to support staff work ng

from nome,
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Chief Financial Officer’s review

Record revenue growth and
Improved operational gearing

Highest annual revenue growth since listing - delivered
with improved margin and profitability. Earnings growth
exceeded revenue growth for the first time since 2017.

V/4

A year of strong operational
achievements matched with record
breaking financial performance.

Snehal Shah
Chief Financial Officer

Snehal Shah
Chigf Financial Off car
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The business has performed strongly
with revenues growing 20% year on
year; 17% organically. The revenue
growth has been delivered efficiently,
with total staff cost growth now
below revenue growth We have
continued tc mnvest in areas such as
risk transfer and member analytics
and made capital investment in
developing our own administration
platform which will further enhance
our operational gearing in the future,

Significant accounting matters

Adjusted numbers

We continue to show adjusted numbaers
In our results to better reflect the
underlying business performance.
The adjusted numbers exclude
exceptional and non-trading items
such as the amortisation of acquired
intangible assets as well as share-based
payrment costs. The exceptional and
non-trading 1tems are disclosed in the
notes to the financiai statements
These alternative performance
measures may differ from theose
defined by other entities but help

to explan the progress wit~in the
underlying business
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Group income statement

FY 2023 FY 2022 Charge
£m £m %
Revenue
Pensions Actuarial & Consulting 77.4 622 24%
Pensions Investment Consuiting 18.0 137 31%
Total Advisory 95.4 75.9 26%
Pensions Administration 57.5 523 10%
SIP 9.4 61 54%
NPT 4.3 4.3 —
Total revenue 166.6 138 6 20%
Adj. EBITDA? 42.4 341 24%
Depreciation & amortisation (5.5) (5 3 (4%)
Adj]. EBIT? 369 288 28%
Exceptional & non-trading items (14.2) (9.8) {45%)
Net finance expense (3.6) @n (71%)
Proflt before tax 19 169 15%
Income tax expense (3.3) (75) 56%
Profit after tax 15.8 94 68%

1 “anagemen: respons bil ties and operat’ons for a smail part of the bus ness moved dur'ng the year ‘rom the Pens ons division 10
Admmistration Related revenuc was £1 5 m 1:on, and the prior year (which has been restated} was also E15m: ‘on

2 Ad. usted measares exclude the impact of except ona and non-irad ng Tems acguisiion-re ated amortsat on, share-based payments,
corporale transaci on costs, resiructuring ¢osls and other 'tems considered except.gna by virtue of nature, s ze and medence See note &
for deza s of exceplona and non-irading items

Revenue
Total Group revenues grew 20% year
on year; 17% organically.

Pensions Actuarnal and Consulting
is the Group's largest business.

The division achieved 24% year

on year growth in revenues, due

to hugh client activity tevels driven
by continued regulatory changes
as well as inflationary increases in
fees. The Penfida acquisition in the
year has contributed £2.3 million of
the growth.

Pensions Investment Consulting had
another strong year with a number
of new client mandates, continued
demand driven by regulatory
changes and financial market
voilatihty as well as inflationary fee
ncreases The LD crisis following
the September mini-budget led to a
significant increase in client activity.
Revenues in this division grew 31%
year on year.

Pensions Administraticn revenues
grew 10% year on year with a number

XPS Pensions Group Annuai Report 2023

of new client wins coming on stream
during the year and increased levels
of project work. As with the advisory
business, inflationary increases

in fees also drove the growth in

the year Pensions Administration
accounted for 35% of the Group
revenues (FY 2022: 38%).

SIP revenues were up 54% on prior
year, due to strong underlying sales,
and increases in commission due to
the base rate increases in the year.
The acqusition of the trade and
assets of Michael J Field Consulting
Actuaries ("Michael J Field")
completed in February 2022, and
this accounted for E2 O million of the
revenue in FY 2023

The National Pension Trust (NPT
revenues were flat year on year,
driven by competitive price
pressures, asset price volatility
partially offset by increased
contributions pand Into the trust
in the year. Total assets under
management are now aver

£1.5 billion

Operating costs

Total operating costs (excluding
exceptional and non-trading items)
for the Group grew by 19% or

£°9.7 mill or yeas on year. "he main
drivers for the cost increases are
an increase n headcount as the
business grew (1,574 FTE v 1,442
last yearn), inflationary pay increases
including a mid-year salary increase
for all cur people below Partner
level amounting to ¢ £1.5 million
additicna! cost for the year, higher
bonus cost commaensurate with

the strong financial performance
and inflationary increases in other
operating costs.

Despite the high inflation impacting
our costs, the Group has delivered
further operaticnal gearing with
adjusted EBITDA growing by 24%
year on year - ahead of the Group
revenue growth of 20% Adjusted
EBITDA margin was 255% (FY 2022
24.6%) Statutory profit before tax
grew by 13% year on year.
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Chief Financial Cfficer’s review continued

Exceptional and non-trading items
Excepticnal and non-trading items
in the year totalled £14 2 million (FY
2022. £2.8 million) Amortisation

of acquired intangible assets
armounted to £6.9 million (FY 2022:
£6 6 million) Share-based payment
charges were £4 7 million (FY 2022:
£3 9 million) with higher levels of
vasting expected due to the strong
financial performance of the Group.
The Group also incurred corporate
ransaction costs of £2.2 midlion
(FY 2022: £0 3 million) in the year
Included within that 1s £0.8 million of
contingent consideration rrespect
of the acquisition of Penfida
Limited. The maximurm contingent
cons deration of £4.4 million

would be payable on the second
anniversary of the acguisition
subject to business performance
which includes retention of clients
as well as continued employmeant
of key employees. As continued
ermployment is one part of the
contingent consideration test,
according to IFRS 3, the entire
contingent consideration must

be treated as a post transacton
employment cost accruing over the
deferment period of two years. The
contingent consideration 1s material
nsize and it 1s one-off in nature

As such, in ine with the Group's
accounting policies, it has been
ctassified as an exceptiona! item. If
the entire contingent consideration
1S not payable at the end of the two
year perod, any resulting credit will
also flow through the exceptional
category. The remainder £2 1 million
of corperate transaction costs
relate to the acquisit:on of Penfida
Limited and other potential M&A
cpportunities explored by the
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Group in the year These costs have
been partially offset by a credit of
£0.2 mill'on relating o the write pac«
of contingent consideration far the
acquisition of the business of Michael
J Freld completed in February 2022

Tax on the exceptional and non-trading
items was a credit of £2 9 milion (FY
2022, charge of £2 & million). The
charge in the prior year was due to
the revaluation of deferred tax liabilities
as a consequence of the In¢rease In
carporation tax from 1 April 2023 to
25%. The credit in the current year s
driven by the unwinding of deferred
tax habilities linked to intangible
assets acquired In previous perods

Net finance costs

Net finance costs for the year were
£3 6 million (FY 2022, £2.1 million).
The increase 1s due to the increases
inthe bank base rate during the year,
along with a modest increase in the
loan batance

Taxation

A tax charge of £6.2 millon (FY 2022,
£5.0 million) was recognised on
adjusted profits (before exceptional
and non-trading items) which represents
an effective tax rate of 19% (FYy 2022-
19%) The Group alsc recognised a
tax credit of £2.9 million (FY 2022:
charge of £2 5 millien) cn exceptional
and non-trading items, which
resulted in an overall tax charge for
the year of £3.3 mitlion (FY 2022:
£75 mithon) As previcusly disclosed,
the increase in corporation tax in FY
2024 to 25% drove an increase in

tax charges in the prior year as the
deferred tax habilities were revalued
at the higher rate

Qur businesses generate considerable
tax revenue for the government in the
UK. For the year ended 31 March 2023,
wo paid corooratiorn tax of £4.9 million
(FY 2022 £3.9 millon), we collected
employment taxes of £270 million
(FY 2022: £22.5 miilion) and VAT of
£24 7 million (FY 2022, £21.3 milhon).
Additionally, we have paid £1.2 milhon
(=Y 2022 212 milhony 1™ busiress
rates. The totat tax contribution of the
Group was therefore £57 8 milion (FY
2022: £48 9 mitlian), which equates
to 35% of revenue (FY 2022: 35%)

EPS

Bas:ic EPS for FY 2023 grew 67% year
on year to 7.7p (FY 2022: 4.6p) owing
to the strong financial performance
of the Group Adjusted fully diluted
EPS grew 24% year on year to 12.6p
in FY 2023 (FY 202210 2p) enabled
by the strong revenue growth as well
as debvery of further cperational
gearing in the business

Dividend

A final dividend of 5.7p 1s being
proposed by the Board (FY 2022
4.8p). The final dividend, f approved,
which amounts to £11.8 miliion

(EY 2022 £9.7 mitlion), wll be paic
on 21 September 2023 to those
shareholders on the register on

25 August 2623,
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Cash flow, capital expenditure and financing

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Mor-GANAP cas~ flow Em £

Operating

Adjusted EBITDA 42.4 341

Change in net working capital (0.3) (13
Adjusted operating cash flow 421 328

CCF conversion 99% 96%

Financing & tax

Net finance expense (3.3 {15)
Taxes pard (4.9) (3.9)
Proceeds from/(repayment of) new loans 4.0 39

Repayment of lease habiities (3.0) 27
Share-retated movements (1.0) (3 3)
Net cash flow after financing 33.9 253

Investing

Acguisition (8.3) (5}
Capex (5.4) (79}
Restricted cash (NPT} - —

Net cash flow after investing 20.2 15.9

Dividends paid (15.3) 41}
Exceptional items (1.8) (03
Movement in cash 3.1 15
Net debt 55.3 546

Leverage 1.38x ¥ 74x

FY 2023 has been another year of
strong cash performance for the
Group Adjusted operating cash flow
increased by £9.3 million driven by

a £8 3 milen increase in EBITDA
and a £1.0 million increase In net
working capital Overall, this resulted
in adjusted operating cash flow
conversion of 99% compared to 96%
in the prior year.

Taxes paid in tne year were £1.6 milkon
higher than the income statement
charge due to the current year tax
credit in relation to exceptional items
in the year which s largely a
deferred tax.

During the year the Group drew
gown £4.0 million of the RCF. Capital
expenditure in the year amounted to
£5.4 million (FY 2022: £7.9 million)
with £0.6 million spent on leasehold
imarovements and office fitouts

and the re~aning £4 .8 million on
software development, enhancements
to our platforms, cyber security, and
other IT equipment.

In September 2022, the Group
acguired Penfida Limited for an initial
cash consideration of £8.3 million net
of cash acquired.

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023

After paying £15 3 million in dvidends
and £1.8 million of exceptional costs,
the Group cash balance increased by
£31 million year on year 1o close at
£13.3 millon. The Group had drawn
down £68 milion of its £100 mill.on
RCF at 31 March 2023, resulting in a
net cebt of £55.3 m !l on, an Nncrease
of £0.7 il o year on year,

Going concern

Details on the Directors continuing
to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements
can be found in the Viability
Statement in the Strategic Report
in the Annuai Report. The Directors
have confirmed that, after due

consideration, they have a reasonable

expectation that the Company and
the Group have adequate resources
to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future Faor this
reason, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements

Subsidiary undertakings

The subsidiary undertakings of the
Group in the year are listed in note 35
in the Annual Report.

Share premium reduction

The Group undertook an exercise In
the year to reduce the balance in XPS
Pensions Group plc’s share premium
gccount. This was completed in
October 2022, and as a result

£116.8 million was transferred to
retained earnings.

B

Snehal Shah
Chief Financial Officer
21 June 2023
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Managing risk
effectively

The Risk Management Frameworks embedded within the Group continue
to support the growth of the business. Effective risk management
provides the Group with the information required to understand our key
risks, and identify and embrace opportunity. The frameworks also allow
us to proactively develop our controls, protecting the Group and its
customers from new and developing threats such as Cyber Crime.

Over the last year our risk
management frameworks have

been fundamental to enabling us

to react effectively to the changing
risk environment that the business
faces during its day-to-day
operations The risk profile of the
Group is regularly reviewed by senicr
management along with the controls
framework in place, to ensure they
are enhanced to acddress changes

In the external threat envircnment,
These reviews are supported by
comprehensive internal and externa:
assurance activities, which validate
controls design and effectiveness,
highlighting opportunities for further
improvements. The increasing threat
of cyber-crime continues to be a key
area of focus for management, with
particular focus on protecting the
Group from phishing, business email
compromise and ransomware attacks.

To allow the Group to address the
evolving threat environment it
faces we have continued to develop
our overall nsk management
capabilities, improving our ability

to detect, understand and manage
our risks. Since the last report there
have been a number of significant
enhancements, \ncluding:

+ the successful achieverment of
the BASA Persions adm ~istrat on
standard This standard 1s recognised
by The Pensions Regulator as a
way of demenstrating high-quality
pensions administration as provided
by XPS toits clients,

* the develcpment of the ex'sting
Risk team, through the recruitmen:
of agditional SMEs and supporting
exi1sting staff members "o achieve
this status This has been done
through supporting training to
achieve and then maintan reievan:
professional gualif.cations, e g
CISA/CRISC/CISM,
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the expansion of the existing

1SO 27001 information secunty
certification to cover all activities
provided by the Group. This external
assurance provides assurance that
the Group has the nght frameworks
in place to identify and effectively
manage its information securnity and
cyber risks;

the development of the existing
acquisitions framework, to support
the effective integration of new
businesses. This supports the
algnment of risk and controls
frameworks, including the application
of relevant assurance frameworks,

the development of the existing
third party assurance framework,
recognising the importance of
supply chain risk in refation to
cyber and business resilience risks,

the ongoing development of the
executive level Risk Management
Committee to support the
dentification of new risks and
monitoring of existing risks, and agree
prioritisanon of mitigation activities;

the further expansion of the
dedicated Information Security
team, a:ong with developing and
enhancing the suite of technical
controls n place, and

the development of the Environmental
Management System to ersure we
identify and manage our impact

on the envirgnment. This ‘ncludes
supnorting TCFD report ng and
consideration of the risks associated
w th climate change.

The Group continues to operate a

three ines of defence model which
supoorts the promotion of effective nsk
managemeant ard seeks to prevert risk
taking that exceeds tne Group’s appetite.

The Board, with the support of

the Audit & Risk Committee, has
identified the principal risks that
could maternally impact the Group's
ability to acmeve its objectives ana
deliver its strategy.

These include general business risks
that are faced by the Group and are
comparable to those that would be
faced by similar businesses operating
N the pensions sector,

These general business risks INclude,

+ political/economic/social - risks
created by the pottical, economic/
financial and social environment
in which we operate. e g war,
demographic trends, panaemics,
government influence on business,
currency changes, market volatility,
interest rates, llguidity.

Competition - risks of change

o~ cemana side 0° pusiness due
to changes in custemer aemands
or competitors, ikely to influence
the entire industry, 8.g aggressive
competitor pricing, consolidation
trends, major technologwcal innovaton,
substitute technologies These
changes may not direct y affect
the Group but could infiluence the
entire iIndustry

Legal and regulatory - risks
associated w.th the criminal and
civil juarc:al processes and contract
law, 2 g. not 1dentifying changes
required by new legislation, increasea
htigat:on in a particular field,
ndustrial accidents

Environmental - risks asscciated
with climate-related change, how
these changes can iImpact business
models and how businesses in turn
can manage the mpac: of therr
cperatons on the environment
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Board of Directors/Audit & Risk Committee

Senior management/Risk Management Committee

Operational Management Risk Management Internal Audit
First line Second line Third line
3
:‘E * Implement governance, risk » Design governance, risk + Review framework
B and control frameworks and control framewar < application objectively
1]
Fr * Measure and manage « Monitor adherence » Offer independent oversight
x project performance to Framewor < of first and second lines
* Manage risk (within agreed
nsk apoetiie) * Provide timely,
bzlanced information
g
. Confirmation of Strategic overview
8 Control of risks . 9
= control effectiveness of controls
O
Change during the year: Links to strategy:
Increased risk Regulatory change Grow market share
Steble Expand services Mergers and acquisitions

Improving

The material risks and uncertainties which are either uniaue to the Group or apply to the pensions industry in which
we operate are detalled below. They are not set out in any priority corder, nor do they include all those associated with

the Group.

Spec:fic risks that are matanal to XPS Group are:

Strategy

Description Key mitigations Rationale for change
Risks linked to the The Board approves and regularly reviews the Stable

assumptions of future Group's strategy in comjunction with budgets,

develocpment and size targeting long termncreases in shareholder value

of pers ons markeat and ensunng robust mdepencent challenge

_sed to develop the
strategy Or business
model or business
portfolio, e.g poor data,
group think or lack of
diversity of opinions

Key decisions are assessed against risk appetites for
key Group risks with a risk management framewaork
in place to dentify and escalate where strategic
decrsions may have unintended impacts.
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Change during the year:

Incredased risk
Stable

Improving

Links to strategy:
Regulatory change

Expand services

Strategic planning and execution

Description

Risks linked to

assessing, evaluating,
planning and executing
the strategy, e.g. poor
budgeting and planning,
inadeguate or misleading
communications or poor
management of change
or projects

Financial performance

Description

Risks refating to the
farlure to monitor and
appropriately manage the
financial performance of
the Group on an ongoing
basis which could lead

{0 poor management
decisions, higher costs
and/or inaccurate external
financia: reporting

Errors

Description

Risks relating to material
mistakes made by

staff including the
non-compliance with
established procedures,
e.g falure to calculate
benefits correctly or not
follow ng peer rev ew
processes,
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Key mitigations

The Beard regularly reviews the Group’s strategy,
supported by the Execubtive with responsibihties
assigned for the delivery of initiatives and provision
of reqular progress updates

Specific project management resources are used (0
deliver large scale change initiatives, allow:ng risks
to dehivery of initiatives to be clearly .denufied at
planning stage along with mitigations

Key mitigations

The Group has a highly gualified and experienced
financial reporting team. There is an extensive
financial controls framework 1n place and key
controls are regularly tested by internal and external
audits The Group undertakes detailled bottom-up
budgeting and reforecasting exercises with the final
budget ana reforecast approved by the Board

Management information 1s published on a regular
basis and the Executive Committee reviews the
financial performance of the Group at 1east monthly
The Board receves and scrutinises the financial
performance of the Group at sach Board meeting

Key mitigations

The Group recruitment precess ensures only high calibre

sta“f are recru-ted, who are then supported by training
prograrmmmes, Staff use standardised documented
processes ana checklists for key processes

Higher risk work s ‘dentified with peer rev-ew and
add nonal sign-off reauired, with reguiar quality audits
to conferrm processes are eing foliowad correctly

Insurance arrangements are in place to mit the loss
shou'd an error occur, with root cause analysis used
to identify wnere controls can be improved

Grow market share

Mergers and acquisitions

Rationale for change

XPS has bullt on previous years
minatves 1o develop frameworks
1o co-ordinate and deliver market
leading technology change. This
Is evidenced by the successful
rollout of the new Aurora
agministration system.

Rationale for change

The Group has continued to
morove iIts bodgeting ard
forecasting frameworks These
ongomng improvements are
evidenced through consistent
delivery of financial results in tine
with or ahead of market consensus

Rationale for change
Stable
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Theft and fraud (financial and physical assets)

Description

Risks relating to the
safeguarding of Group
and chent financial
and physical assets
from malicicus actors,
e g. stealing physical
assets, deliberate
misrepresentation
leading to fraud or
theft from Group or
client bark accounts.

Key mitigations

The Group deploys robust physical and systems
access controls, along with enforcing segregation
of duties to preventing individuais from making
fraudulent payments or transfers.

These controls are supported with staff vetting,
trairing and awareness and are regularly
independently audited

Insurance arrangements are in place to protect
against larger claims,

Information/cyber security

Description

Risks relating to the
confidentiality, integrity
and availlability of
information assets
including !'T systems, e g.
unauthorised access to
or disclosure of staff or
chent information, denal
of access to systems or
data reguired or business
continuity Incidents
caused by eguipment
breakdown/fire/flood.

Staff/human resources

Description

Risks relating to

our pecple e g
compensation, retention,
succession planning, skills
and competence and
management capakility.

Key mitigations

The Group has an Information Securnity Management
System (ISMS) in place to ensure that risks are
identiflied and managed effectively. This includes a
range of technical controls, a dedicated Informaticn
Security tearm, and a 24/7 Secunty Operations Centre
These are supported by regular iIndependent audits
and nenetratinn tests

All staff are provided with comprehensive policies and
guidance, with awareness of key topics reinforced with
regular training initiatives, e g phishing awareness

The Group has a range of business continuity
capabilities in place to minimise impact of incidents
impacting the Group's data, faciities or systems These
include documented plans which are tested regularly.

Key mitigations

The Group’s recruitment strategy 1s to seek
professional, experienced and gqualfied staff
utilising robust staff recrutment and select on
processes This s supported by comprehensive
training, development and performance
management processes, with longer-term
incent ves n place to a:d retention.

Regular key staff reviews ensure succession planning

is kept up to date and remains appropriate.

Staffing requirements are considered as part of the
strategy and budgeting process to ensure alignment
with business plans
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Rationale for change

Contrals frameworks continue
toc be developed to manage this
risk, including addressing areas
identified in previols auchts and
internal self assessments

We continue to see smali number
of attempts to IMpersonate pension
scheme members, with controls
identifying and preventing these

Rationale for change

The Group has continued to
develop Its capabilities to meet
the 'ncreasirg cyber ris<, Regular
threat assessments ensure that
controls frameworks in place
address new and emerging
threats. | his includes the
implementation of new technical
controls as well as maintaining
exiting assurance frameworks
inciuding 1S0O27001 and Cyber
—ssantial Plus cert f.cat.ors.

Rationale for change
Stable.
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Change during the year:

Increased risk
Stable

Improving

Links to strategy:

Regulatory change Grow market share

Expand services Mergers and acqu'sitions

Third party supplier/outsourcing

Description

Risks relating to the
use of third parties to
suppoert our operations,
e.g poor due dihgence
and selection processes,
fallure of a supplier to
follow agreed upon
proceduras or financial
failure of suppher
resulting in inabihity to
deliver service

Client engagement

Description

Risks reiating to the
provision of POoQar service
or advice to clients,

eg adwce that s not
clear, not understood

by the client or poorly
presented or uses out of
date technologies, but
not errors

Rationale for change
Stable.

Key mitigations

The Group has a formal selection process that
ensures due diigence s carned out, whichs
proportionate to the risk of tne potential faiture
oftre thard pariy.

The approvals and signing framewaork also ensure
contracts include key risks relating to services
provigded and risks identified are managed and
accepted pnor to agreements being signed This
s supported by engoing monitoring of key third
parties, including SLAs and financial status

Where there s a rellance on a single supplier,
contingency plans are in place to protect
against fallure

Rationale for change
Stable

Key mitigations

The Group client engagement process ensures that
expectations are matched to Group capabilities
Regular angoing dialogue with clients ensures that
the services provided meet their requirements and
continue to be appropriate to their specific needs

Client surveys are used to gather feedback ang
identify trends and insights

Business conduct and reputation

Description

Risks that could lead to

a breach of acceptable
conduct or ethics,
impacting the Group's
brand, Image or regutation
Falure to ensure services
are appropriate for client’s
reeds, any discriminaticen, or
a2 poor response to 2 cyber
incidet or ciient comptaint,
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Rationale for change
Stable

Key mitigations

The Group's mission, vision and values clearly set
out the tone from the top, highlighting to all staff the
cenduct and ethics that are expected from them at
atl times This s supported by a recruitment strategy
that seeks professional. experienced and gualifiea
staff who fit with the Group’s values

Due dilgence of third parties considers supply chain
rs«s, @nsurng that only suoplers that comply with
treir legal opl gations are selected

The Group has Incident management processes in
vlace 1o ensure that it 15 able 1o effectively respond
to significant events that cou.d 'mpact its brandg or
reputat on, which 1s regularly tested

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023



The Directors confirm that they have
carried out a robust assessment

of the principal risks facing the
Group, including those that would
threaten its business maodel, future
performance, solvency or liquidity
The principal nsks are those hsted
above. The Directors do not believe
there to be any additional emerging
risks that are not already addressed
within the principal risks and
uncertainties section.

Viability Statement

The Group's business activities,
together with the factors likely

to affect 1ts future development,
performance and position, are set
out in the reports referred to in the
Qverview section on page 100 of the
Directors’ Report

The Directors have assessed the
long-term prospects of the Group
based upon business plans and upon
cash flow projections for the three-
vear period ending 31 March 2026,
The three-year period was chosen as
it 15 considered the longest time
frame over which any reasonable
view can be formed. The forecasts
and cash flow projections being used
to assess going concern cover the
period up to October 2024 A
1&6-manth period from the sign-off
of the accounts is used for the going
concern review as the Group
produces more detailed budgets and
forecasts for this time frame which
have proved tc be very reliable in the
past. October is typically the lowest
point in the Group's working capital
and cash cycle, which 1s why the
going concern review extends to
October 2024,

These forecasts have been
comprehensively stress-tested

by using simulation techniques
involving sensitivity analysis The
stress-testing involved removing
revenue relating to a large part of
customers, discretionary spend from
the Group's revenue forecasts. A high
percentage of the Group's revenue
relates to compliance work which i
non-discretionary Mitigating actions,
which include reducing certain non-
fixed costs were also factored into
the stress-testing

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023

The Cirectors confirm in the
Cirectors’ Responsibility Statement
on page 104 that they consider that
the Annual Report, taken as a whole,
15 fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess
the Group's position, performance,
business model and strategy

In forming their opinion, the Directors
have performed a robust assessment
of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group as set out on

pages 46 to 51, In addition, note 2 on
page 125 of the accounts includes

the Group's objectives, policies and
processes for managing its capital, its
financial risk management objectives
and its exposure to credit risk,
lguidity risk and market rsk

The Directors believe that dramatic
changes in the future development
and size of the pensions market
which underpin the strategy of the
Group as well as risks relating to
cyber security including ransomware
attacks could threaten the longer-
term viability of the Group. These
risks have been considered 1in detal,
including potential mitigating actions
and the direction of travel for these
specific risks, on pages 47 tg 50,

The Group had £13 million of cash
at 31 March 2023 and a £1C0 million
committed financing facility with

an accordion of £50 million until
October 2025, In Aprl 2023 this
facility was extended until Qctober
2026, At 31 March 2023, £68 million
of this facility was drawn The facility
15 sugject to two coverngnts, net
leverage and interest cover Thase
covenants are forecast to be met
throughout the viability period.
Further details of the financial
position of the Group, its cash flows,
hguidity position and borrowing
facilities are described within the
financial statements and notes,

The current economuc situation
and inflationary envirgcnment is
not a significant risk to the Group

This Strategic Report has been
approved by the Beoard and signed
by order of the Board.

;@g&—,

Paul Cuff
Co-Chief Executive Officer
21 June 2023

w4

Ben Bramhall
Co-Chief Executrve Officer
21 June 2023

as increases in costs are largely
protected aganst by the Group's
contractual ability to increase
revenue from customers by an
amount hinked to inflation. The Group
has a strong balance sheet, access

to financial resources and long-term
growth prospects As a conseguence,
the Directors believe that the Group
15 well placed to manage Its business
risks successfully.

Even in the worst case scenarios
considerad plausible by the Directors,
the cost reduction actions available
to the Group. the reduction of
non-essential capital expenditure and
the management of working capital
are expected to be effective and
sufficient to ensure the continued
viability of the Group.

After making enquines, the Directors
have formed a judgement, at the time
of approving the financial statements,
that there 1s a reasonable expectation
that the Group has adeguate
resources to continue In operaticnal
existence ang meet its liabiities as
they fall due over the three-year
assessment period. For this reason,
the Directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the
financial statermnents, At the same
time, the Directors also considered
the appropriateness of adopting the
going concern basis of accounting

in preparing the financial statements
and the Directors’ identification of
any mater.al uncertainties to the
Group's and the Parent Company’s
ability to continue to do 50 over

a penod of at least 12 months

from the date of approval of the
f.nancial statements,
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TCFD

Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures Report

The TCFD reporting framework seeks integration of climate
risk with risk and operational controls.

Consistent disclosures are required
for all listed campanies in the

UK As part of the environmental
management system, XPS has
integrated climate risk into 1ts risk
management and governance
structures to ensure appropriate
consideration at Board level.

In the period XPS continued to
mature its climate and environmental
risk framework with significant
progress made. This report includes
disclosures consistent with the

TCFD framework and ail 11 TCFD
recommendations {pursuant to LR
9.8.6R(B)). XPS acknowledges its
maturity and will continue to develop
its climate and environmental
capability especially within scenario
analysis which the Group firmiy
believes will be invaluable to
informing key business decisions.

Fully compliant recommendations are denoted by

The elements of XPS TCFD
conformant disclosures can be
found in the relevant sections of this
report, as outlined below for ease

of reference. Additional clarity has
been provided where necessary. This
section, together with the statements
throughout this report, meet the
requirements of TCFD and the FCA,
and should be read in conjunction
with all elements within the below
table as well the Risk, Sustainability
and business strategy sections

Governance Describe the Board's Please refer to the Environment section of Sustainability on page 38.

oversignt of climate- XPS recognise Climate change as a long-term risk to our industry

related risks and
and economy.

ooportunities.
XPS have successfully integrated chimate and environrmental risk into its
pre-existing Risk Management framework via the group's ISC14001 certified

Describe management's Environmental Management System (EMS) Thrs allows seamless reporting

role In assessing and assessment of environmental and climate rnsks along-side other risks via

and managing the executive Risk Managerent Committee (pages 46 and 47) Responsibility

climate-related risks of the group’s ESG and Ciimate performance 1s attrnibuted to the Executive

and opporturties Sustanability Committee {pages 74 to 75) which is chared by non-executive
director Sarah Ing The committee supports the board's aoversight of the
group’s sustainable performance and meets at least twice annually The
Committee utihses data such as carbon emissions, investment advice positioning
and market conditions to :nform the group's sustainable policies. These policies
shape the group's risk management frameaworks, business budgeting, planning
and overall business strategy The Group has and will continue to allocate
appropriate firanc:al provisions to meet iImmediate climate and environmenta’
oblhgations. The impact of any climate change initiatives and the net zero
strategy on budgeting for the f:nancial year are currently immatearal
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Strategy

Describe the chimate-
related risks and
opportunities the
organisation has
identified over the
short, medium, and
long term

To promote consistency within our EMS, we have aligned our definition of
short, medium and long term with those defined by our net zero trajectary
& informed by the Science Based Targets mitiztive (SBT1) boundaries
Short term bemng 0-5 years, medium term being 5-10 and long term being
anything 10 years and over

XPS utilises its EMS and internal scenario analysis to identify and assess
current and future transitional and physical risk to the business and their
materiality on an ongoing basis Short to madium term - The Ukraiman
conflict has highlighted known risks and vulnerabihities to commodity
pricing and the ability of our supply chamn to delsver services to XPS,
especially relating to energy pricing. We consider these to have the
potential to be a significant risk, however XPS 1s a robust and well-prepared
arganisation with mitigations 1in place to enakle sustamable operations

Longer term, studies and our scenaro analysis currently indicate a downturn
in GDP as a conseguence of the global transition to a low carbon economy
and the effects of chimate change. The Group has also identified opportunities
within the transition to net zero Leading in this fleld could have a beneficial
impact on brand. reputation, and access to new client prospects

See the Risk Management section (pages 46 to 51) and refer to the
Environment section of the Sustainability section on page 38

Describe the mpact of
climate-related risks
and opportunities

on the crganisation’s
businesses, strategy,
and financial planning

Our transition to a more sustainable and climate resilient business nas
already formed some of our product offering and we anticipate the demand
for green services to only increase weth time. Please refer to Clients Section
(pages 36 to 37) which detalls our current and future investment approach

Sharing our ambition and values with our supply chain 15 Intrinsic to our
long-term net zero strategy. XPS are taking actions to achieve this by
actively working with our suppliers to encourage elevated levels of clhimate
action this decade, acknowledging XPS will select its partners based on
their credentials moving forwards.

XPS possesses robust business continuty capabilities, as heavily deployed
during the Covid-19 pandermic This demonstrates the group's resilience

to geographic climate incidents and our ability to provide services to our
chents remotely XPS generally does not own physical properties and
operate solely in the UK which reduces the physical and geographical risk
posed by climate change events, We assess physical asset risks to the
business to be low

XPS currently achieves Carbon Neutrality through the retirement of high-
quality carbon credits. The Group expects offsetting pricing to increase in
the future which will result In large expenditure unless the group acts swiftly
to reduce its ermission In line with 1ts net zero strategy.

The timeline for further development and deployment of sustainable
initiatives, products and strategy 1s informed by our science-based net zero
trajectory. Please refer to Business Strategy {pages 14 to 15), Sustamability
Strategy (pages 26 to 27} and the Environment section {pages 38 to 41}

Describe the resihience
of the organisation’s
strategy, taking

INto consideration
anfferent climate-
related scenarios,
incluaing a 2°C or
lower scenario

For our clients, providing a pension to employees Is non-negotiable and,
therefore, a demand for XPS's services will remain in the most financially
turbulent conditions, such as a faled transition We believe, with continued
responsible financial stewardship to FCA and industry standards, XPS will
remain robust to these potential market downturns as a2 consequence of
climate and other risks

Internal scenaric analysis suggests an orderly transition imiting warming to
2°C offers the most favourable long-term market conditions XPS cannot
achieve this alene, and, despite cur resiience, we must work with cur peers
and suppliers to encourage progress in our industry

Cur strategy already focuses heavily on sustainable business practices
(please see the Chents section of the report for more details on our product
offering and strategy on pages 36 to 37) and as such we do not anticipate
the effects of climate change to significantly change our strategic approach
further. We do anticipate tre business becoming ever more sustainable on
our |journey. however.

Please see the Environment section on scenario analysis on pages 38 te 41

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023
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TCFD continued

Fully comphiant recomrmendations are dencted by

Risk
management

Descripe the
organisation’s
processes for
identifying and
assessing climate-
related risks

Descripe the
organisation’s
processes for manraging
climate-related risks

Describe how
processes for
identifying. assessing,
and managing
climate-related risks
are integrated into the
orgamsation's overal
risk management.

XPS currently considers climate to be a low risk to the business due to the
Group’s mitigating controis, business continuity capability, financal statyihty
and product demard, however, tre Group does ackrowledge climate
change will impact 1ts operations

Climate-related risks are fully integrated and managed within the business

through the Risk Management frameworks The EMS constantly acts to

identfy new poterthal nsks and ensure they are reported and manitored

as per the internal procedures Flease see the Environmental Section for !
more details on our EMS on pages 38 to 41 The size and scope of Risks

1s determined based upcn the potential to impact and exceed appetites
established by senior management. XP5 have determined matenaiity and
prionty for each identified risk in the short medium and long term using

the Group's Risk Management Framework which assesses gualitative ana
quantitative iImpacts of a risk on a number cf operational aspects including
resilience, reputation, shareholder value and P&L impact We acknowledge
the risk and additional cost to business current and emerging regulatory
reguirements may have on the group, currently considered to be low. Please
see Risk Management (pages 46 to 51) All nsks, cimate and otherwise of the
same prigrity grading are treated and managed proportionately.

XPS Investment provides investment advice only and therefore does not
directly hold the investment risk. However, the business does strive for
sustanable excellence, weighting investments by their chimate impact and
promoting sustainable funds Please see the Clients section on pages 36 to
37 for more information

Where opportunities are «entified they are considered as part of the EMS
continual iImprovement program which assesses an opportunities viability
Viable oppaortunities are considered by the EMS governance strugture and
presented to the board and sustanability committee where appropnate

As amnimum, the Group's envircnmental and chimate rnisk register .nc'udes the
risks published within the TCFD Recommendations Table 1and 2

Refer to the Environment section of the Sustainability section on
pages 38 to 41

Metrics and
targets

Disclose the

metrics used by the
organisation to assess
chirate-related risks
and opportunities

N hine with 1t
strategy and risk
management Orocess.

The EMS maintains and assesses a number of environmental and chmate
KPls to monitor potential risks, understand business emissions and maintan
comphance & corformance. The frequency that each KP1s s reviewed 15
pased upon the aspect's nisk potential, or at least annually

The bus:ness considers that a science-oased net zero trajectory is key to
mitigating a number of clirnate related risks and 1s fundamental to the group
delivering its sustainable strategy. The Group's carbon footprint, waste
volumes, business travel habits and energy co~sumption 15 closely monitored
as the group’'s most significant ard impactable environmental aspects

and are the Group's key cimate KPIs The Group's overall environmental
oerformarce 1s managed as a risk to the business

Climate related performance 1s ted with executive ob,ectives and therefore,
shapes our executive’s remuneration potential XPS are cons:dering the
implementation of .nterna carbon onang.

See the Envirenment section of the Sustanatility section on pages 38 to 4!
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Disclose Scope 1, Scope  See the Environment section of Sustainability section on pages 38 to 41 for our

2 and, f appropriate, Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting chsclosure and associated narrative.
Scope 3 greenhouse XPS have aligned the measurement, reporting and disclosure of its carbon

gas (GHG) emissions inventory with 1ISO 14064, the international standard for carbon inventories
and the related risks. SECR metncs are regularly monitored and reported as appropriate

Describe the The EMS manages day to day KPI and objectives monitoring As already
targets used by discussed, the business considers that a science-based net zero trajectory
the organisation to 15 key to mitigating @ number of climate related risks The business uses It’s
manage cimate- predetermined science-based net zero trajectory to assess 1ts performance
related risks and and It's standing amongst its peers and to inform top management. Key
opportunities current interim climate and performance objectives include 2030 targets
and performance of 100% renewable energy supply and a 50% absolute reduction in Scope
against targets. land 2 emissions (based gn a 2019 base year). XPS targelts zero emissions

by 2050 or sooner and the Group 1s currently developing its fong-term

net zero objectives. In addition, the Group's EMS also defines a number of
operational objectives to aid with its net zero ambitions which are set by top
management These include a zero waste to landfill initiative, business travel
ambition and staff awareness goals. KPIs and objectives are continually
monitored by the EMS, reviewed at least every 6 months through external
certification and formally assessed by top management at least annually.
EMS reporting mechanisms are i place should an objective be at risk of non-
performance or pose a significant risk to the business, strategy, or net-zero
com~itment, providing epcropriate board considerat on.

XPS is currently targeting an annual year on year reduction of ermissions as
It delivers its sustainable strategies.

See the Environment section of the Sustainability section on pages 38 to 41

Non-Financial Information Statement
The Companiaes Act 2006 reguires us to disciose certain non-financial information in the Annual Report and Accounts
This information can be found on the foliowing pages:

Reporting matters Information to understand our policies and impacts
Environmental matters Focusing on our environment, see pages 38 to 41
Employees i S 777#06@&)n”tmrieﬁrmloyrs;;s: see pages 30 to 3;‘» o
Respect for humar{:;;‘;ts o N o Foc-usmg orw governance, see pages 27 ta 29 o

Focusing on our communities, see page 35

Focusing on our clients, see pages 36 to 37
Focusing on our communities, see pages 34 to 35

Social matter

Anti-bribery and corruption Focusing on governance, see page 29

Qur principal nisks and uncertainties, see pages 46 to 51

Description of principal risks and impact of business activity

Description of our business model Qur business model, see pages 8to 9

yodau oiBajens

Non-financial key performance indicators Our sustainabihity framework, see pages 26 to 27
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Chairman’s introduction

Robust corporate
governance provides

a sustainable platform
for success and growth

The Board is committed to maintaining high
standards of corporate governance, with an
increasing focus on sustainability.

V/4

| am delighted to have been
appointed as Chairman of XPS
during the year. | am extremely
proud of the success of the XPS
Group, with yet another year of
record financial performance, and
look forward to capitalising on the
strong positioning of the business.

Alan Bannatyne
Charrman

Alan Bannatyne
Charman
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The Board 1s delighted with yet
another record financial performance
from the Group. The efforts of all at
XPS should be highly commended.
We are equalily delighted by the

way growth is being achreved:
alongside high corporate governance
standards. Our am s to grow
sustainably In line with this, high
corporate governance standards run
right through the Group, starting with
the Board itself.

Independence and diversity
The year under review saw
changes to the Board's comcosition
including my own appomntment

as Chairman. This was prompted
by the retirement of Tom Cross
Brown in September 2022 and
followed an extensive recruitment
and shareholder consultaticn
exercise that was overseen by
Russell Reynolds Associates.
Having been Chairman since the
IPO, Tom's departure leaves big
shoes to fill. | know t~1s first nand,
having served on the Beard for

six years as Senor Independent
Director. Margaret Snowdon OBE
has now been appointed as Senior
Independent Director.

In February 2023, we also appointed
Aisling Kennedy, an experienced
Actuary and previous Head of Life

& Health Pricing UK at Swiss Re, as
independent Non-Executive Director
As well as further strengthening

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023

the Board's independence,
Auisling’s appeintment increases the
oroportion of female Directors to
43% While further work is needed
in terms of increasing the Board's
diversity, we are nevertheless
encouraged by the progress

being made.

Continual assessment

Evaiuation of Board members does
not end at the appointment stage.
Directors' performance and suitability
are regularly assessad - for example,
an external Board evaluation has
peen conducted this year. Involving
one-to-one interviews with Directors
and the senior managament team,
this 1s a comprehensive exercise it
has to be. For If we want {o live up
to the high corporate governance
standards we have set ourselves and
ensure we grow in a sustainable way,
the Board must set the example

The following report outlnes how
the Company has applied the main
principles of the 2018 Corporate
Governance Code (the "Code”). and
how it has complied with all relevant
provisions of the Code during the
reporting period

Alan Bannatyne
Chairman
21 June 2023

Statement of compliance with
the UK Corporate Governance
Code

In FY 2023, the Company has
applied the principles and
complied with the provisions of
the UK Corporate Governance
Code 2018 as they apply to it as
a "smaller company" (defined in
the Code as being a company
below the FTSE 350). The
Code is publicly avallable

at www fre.org.uk.

Further information on how the
Company has applied the five
overarching categories of the
principles can be found on the
following pages.

(i} Board leadership and
Company purpose’
pages 58 to 63:

)y chivisien of responsibilities
pages 62 to 63:

(ni) composition, succession and
evzluation: pages 60 €6 to
68 and 64 to 65;

(iv) audit, risk and internal control,
pages 70 to 73 and

(v) remuneration:
pages 76 to 99,
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Board of Directors

The Board is composed of seven members, consisting of the
Chairman, three Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors.

Alan Bannatyne

Independent
Non-Executive Chairman

Appointed: November 2022

Appointed to Board:
January 2017

Committee membership
R N

Key strengths

= Charwered accodntan:

= Recent and relevant

finanacial exponesce

Strategy, risk managerment.
financial reporting fisted
cOmMpany exper ence, INVes.ar
re a. ons and corporarte
governance are noted

as Alan's key skills

Key experience

+ Qual fied wit~ Nelaitte & Touche

= Prevouds Commercia- Manager
of Prrmecom and Financia:
Drecor of Foresight - both
subs-d aries of Pr media

= 20~ years at Robert Walters plc,
Group F nanc al Con:iro er 2002
- 2007, Chief 7 ~ancial Officer
since 2007

Current external listed

company directorships/

key appointments

« {Ime’ beane gl Offcer of
Robert Wa ters p'c snce
Marc- 2007

Meetings attended
e

58

Paul Cuff

Co-Chief
Executive Officer
Appointed: October 2016

Committee membership
N/A

Key strengths

« Qual’ od actuary with
20 years of experience
In the pensioNs INCUs.ry

+ Responsbo e for ra’'s’ng the
prable of X251~ [ha markel
generat ng new bus ness and
the Group strategy w.th regard
o M&A opportunimics and
rechno ogy nvesiment

» Meargers and acquisilions,
strategy, pens-ons Industry
aNG INvesiar relalions are
natea as Paul's <oy sklls

Key experience

= Pariner ar KPMG 2008-20%

* Head of KPMG London pens ons
tegrm pner Lo [oin ng X925

Current external listed
company directorships/
key appointments

*« None

Meetings attended
77

Ben Bramhall

Co-Chief
Executive Officer
Appointed: April 2014

Committee membership
N/A

Key strengths
* Quahfiod actuary w.th 20+
years of experence in Lhe
pensions ndustry
Responsib e for day-to-day
opera: on of the bus ness,
ncluding prov sion of services
to exisling ¢ 1ents, revende
genera: on and the Group's
peop's sirategy
- Mergers and acquisitons,
siralegy, pensons indusiry,
risk maragement, workiorce

engagement, investor re al ons,

business development and
operat:ona mMmanagement are
noed as Bens key skl s

Key experience
« E ght vears a: KPMG

Current external listed
company directorships/
key appointments

= None

Meetings attended
6/7

Snehal Shah
Chief Financial Cfficer
Appointed: July 2019

Committee membership
S

Key strengths

= Chartered accountanst with
70+t years of exper ence

+ Mergers and acqu s Lions,
posi-dea niegrat on, straegy,
n54 maragement, finencial
report.ng, isted cormnpany
EXPEr ence, NVesLor re at ons,
corporate governance and
operationa- managemeni are
noied as Sneha 's koy sk l's

Key experience

= Ten years w'th Pw(C

+ Senaqar fmance roles incloding
Group F nanca Contro ler,
Head of Investor Re ations and
Fimance D rector ‘or Integraz’on
a: Ladbrokes p ¢ 2009-2017

« Inter m Direcior (F nance &
Corporate Governance) at
Parkdean Resor:s L:d and
Inter m Direcior of Finance
& Invesior Re at ons a:
Countryw de o c 2017-2019

Current external listed
company directorships/
key appointments

+ None

Meetings attended
77
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Key to Committee
membership

Chair
Mempar
A Audit & Risk
R Remuneration
N Nommnation

S Sustamabihty

Margaret Snowdon OBE

Senicr Independent
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: November 2022

Appointed to Board:
January 2017

Committee membership

A R NS

Key strengths

A0 years @' experience i the
pens ons NdJsiry

Mergers and acguis tions,
strategy risk managemen:,
workorce engagement,

pens ons ndusiry, corporate
governance, business

deve opment, nvestment
strategy, technoragy. customer
service, trusteesh’'p and
opcrationg managemean; arg
noted as Margare.'s key skl s

Key experience

.

Pariner and Director eve’

pos nons with lead ng
employee bere’t consultane es
Previous Non-Execut ve Drector
of The Pensions Regu ator
Appomnted an OBE n 2010 and
rece ved many awards for her
CONTrDULION 10 PEeNSIONS

Current external listed
company directorships/
key appeintments

Non-Execus've member
of Prognix Croup Witk
Pro* ts Co~mitice

Adv sory Board member
of Moneyhub F.nanc:al
Technology Limited
Charr of Pension Scams
Industry Group

Meetings attended
7/7

Sarah Ing

Independent
Nen-Executive Director

Appointed: May 2019

Committee membership
A R N S

Key strengths

= Char:ered accountant

+ 30+ years of experience in
linancial services Inclucicg
ausit, corporato f narce,
nyvestment banking and
asset ranagemeant

+« Mergers and acqgu sitions,
linencigl reporticy, nvestor
re'ations and rsk managemen:
are nosed as Sarah's key skl s

Key experience

« Previcusly a top-rated equity
research analys: cover ng the
UK gereral financal services
sectar and also flounded and
ran a hedge fund invesiment
management bus ness

Current external listed

company directorships/

key appointments

« Non-Executive D rector of CMC
Markets p ¢ s nce Seprember
2017, where she chars the
Remuneration Comm tree

= Non-Execu:iive Directera”
Marex Group since July 2021
where she chairs the Audit
& Corrpl arce Cormnmities

+ Non-Execcuuve Director of
Gresham House plc since
Sepiember 2021, where she
chars the Aud't Comm ttee

Meetings attended
/7
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Aisling Kennedy

ndependent

Non-Executive Director
Appointed: February 2023

Committee membership

A R N S

Key strengths

Exper encead Ir sh

guoalfind actuary

A wealth Of experence across
consy'l NG, INSUrance companies
anc pro‘essional podies

Key experience

Heaad of Life & Heallh Pric'ng
UK at Swiss Re unti 2020,
where she spenl e ght years

Current external listed
company directorships/
key appointments

Non-Executive D rector a:
Siate Street Fund Services
(Irciand) s nce 2021, where she
cha rs the Audit Commitee
Non-Execut've Director of Athora
Ire'and p ¢ since 2020, where she
cha rs the Audi. Commiitee
Charr of ECCU Assdrance
Company s nce 2023, where
she has served as Director
since 2018

Non-Execdt.ve Director of
White Horse Insurance Ireland
since 2021

Non-Execuzive Director of Lhe
Insh Auditing and Accoun:tng
Supervisory Authority s nce 2020
Chair of Ir sh charity MABS
Support CLG

Meetings attended

1

/1

Tom Cross Brown
Previous Independent
Non-Executive Chairman

Appeinted: January 2017-
September 2022

Committee membership

R N

Key strengths

Mergers and acqguisi. ons,
stralegy. " na~c al reporting,
listed company exper ence,
invesilor relat ons and corporate
governance are noted as Tom's
key skils

Key experience

CEO of ABN AMRQO Asset
Manager un: 2003

21 years at Lacard Brothers &
Co unt 11897 CEQ 1994-1997
Non-Execd: ve Charman of
Pearl Assdrance p'c 2005-2009
Non-Execu: ve Chairman

o Just Retirement Group
2006-2016

Non-Execulive Director

of Artem s Alpha Trust pC
2006-2018

Nen-Execul’ve member of the
Managemont Comm tee

of Ariemis Invesiment
Management LLP 201-2018

Meetings attended
3/3
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Board and Committee composition and operation

Group governance at a glance
Board composition

Independence Non-Executive tenure Age

MNon-Zxecutives 97% Z-8 years 25% 4.-50
Executives 43% Less than 51-6C
3 years 25% &+
6+ years 50%
Ethnicity Gender
Whte 86% Male 57%
Minority Fermale 43%

athmc group 14%

Board members’ key skills:

Mergers and acquisitions
Risk management
Financial reporting
Workforce engagement
Prior FTSE experience
Pensions industry
Cyber security

Investor relations
Marketing

Corporate governance
Environmental and social sustainability
Business development

Operational management

All as at 31 March 2023
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43%
43%
14%

Board composition
and independence

The Board is composed of seven
members, consisting of the Cha'rman,
three Executive Directors and

three Independent Non-Executive
Directors The Company comuplies
with the provisions of the Code for
smaller companies below the FTSE
350 which reguires the composition
of the board of directors of a UK
listed company to nclude at least two
independent non-executve directors
{excluding the chairman) Tom Cross
Brown retired as the Group's
Chairman following the September
2022 AGM; Alan Bannatyne was
appointed as Interim Chairman

until the recruitment process,
supported by Russell Reynolds, was
complete, when Alan Bannatyne

was appointed as Chairman on a
permanent basis as of 30 November
20227 You can read more about the
recruitment process on page 67 of
the Nomination Committee report.
The Board concluded that Alan
Bennatyne met the independence
criteria set out 1n the Code on his
appointment as Chairman Aisling
Kennedy was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director
as of 22 February 2023, following
arecruitment process supported

by Russell Reynolds Other than
supporting the recruitment of the
Group's Chairman ana Non-Executive
Directors, Russell Reynolds has no
ol~er connection to the Grouc.

The Board considers that Senior
Independent Director Margaret
Snowdon OBE and Non-Executive
Directors Sarah Ing and Aisling
Kennedy are each independent

of management in character,
Jjudgerrent and cpinion and are free
from relationships or circumstances
thet could affect their judgement
The Board benefits from the wide
experience of its Non-Executive
Directors. Biographical detalls cof al!
Board members are given on pages
58 and 59.

Board Committees

The Audit & Risk Commitiee’s role
15 to assist the Board in discharging
Its overs:ight responsibilit es by
rev-ewing and moniter ng the

fo lowing: the integrity of the
financial information provided to
shareholders; the effectiveness of
the Company's system of internal
contro's and risk management, the
extaernal aud t process ang auditor,
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and the processes for compliance
with laws, regulations and ethical
codes of practice.

Further details are given in the
Audit & Risk Committee Report on
pages 70 to 73.

The role of the Remuneration
Committee is to assist the Board to
fulfil its responsibility to shareholders
to ensure that Remuneration Policy
and practices of the Company
reward fairly and responsibly.

with a clear link to corporate and
individual performance, having
regard to sustainability and statutory
and regulatory requirements. The
Committee recommends the policy
the Board should adopt on executive
remuneration and, within the terms
of the Directors’' Remuneration Policy
approved by shareholders at the
AGM in September 2020, determines
and agrees with the Board the levels
of remuneration for each of the
Executive Directors, the Company
Chairman and designated senior
management below Board level. The
Remuneration Committee has tabled
an updated Directors’ Remuneration
Polcy for approval at the 2023 AGM

Further details are given in
the Remuneration Report on
pages 76 to 99.

The role of the Nommation Committee
Is to undertake an annual review

of succession planning and ensure
that the membership, composition
and diversity of the Board and its
Committees, including the balance
of skills, remain appropriate. The
Committee also reviews the outcome
of the annual Board effectiveness
review to determine any changes
required. Further details are given in
the Nominaticn Committee Report
on pages 66 to 69,

The rcle of the Sustainability
Committee I1s to support the
Board's oversight responsibilities
of the Company’s environmental,
social and governance impact and
initiatives. The Committee intends
to Improve practices, reporting
and communication in relation to
factors that have &2 material impact
on business strategy, business
pearformance and the long-term
sustamnabilty of the Group.

Further details are given in the
Sustainability Committee Report
on pages 74 and 75,
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Written terms of reference for
each Committee are subject

to annual review and periodic
updating to reflect any changes

in legislation, regulation or best
practice. The terms of reference
for the Audit & Risk, Remuneration
and Nomination Committees are
avallable on the Company's website
al www. xpsaroup . comy/irvestors/
corporate-governance/committees/

The Company complies with the
Code provision that a smaller
(deflined as below FTSE 350) UK
listed company's remuneration

and audit committees should
comprise at least two independent
non-executive directors and that
the nomination committee should
comprise a majority of independeant
directors. The Company Chairman
1s not a member of the Audit & Risk
Ccmmittee, in compliance with the
Code Each Chair reports on the
business of their previcus Committee
meeating at the next scheduled
Board meeting.

Executive Committee

The Co-Chief Executive Officers
operate an Executive Committee to
support them in the performance
of their duties, incluging the
develcpment and mplementation
of strategy and the day-to-day
operational management of the
business. During the year the
Committee was comprised of

the Executive Directors, Chief
Information Officer, Head of
Adwvisory, Managing Director of
Administration, Head of Investment,
General Counsel & Company
Secretary and HR Director

Board operation and meetings
Decisions on operational matters

are delegated by the Board to the
Executive Directors, consistent with
the schedule of matters reserved

for Board approval. In advance of
scheduled Board meetings, each
Director receives documentation
providing updates cn Group strategy,
finances, operations and business
development The Board meets at
least seven times a year and at other
umes as and wher necessary. 2uring
the vear, all Board meetings were
attended by all Directors, with the
exception of ocne meeting due to
personal circurmstances.

The Board reviews the business
strategy for the year ahead at the
beginning of each financial year
and recelves strategy updates at
each Becard meeting. At least once
a year the Board will hold a strategy
session to discuss and review
business strategy The Directors
are expected tc attend all meetings
of the Board and any Committees
of which they are members, and

to devote sufficient time to the
Company's affairs to fulfil their
duties as Directors. Non-Executive
Directors each need to commit to a
minimum of 28 days of service per
year to the Company The Board I1s
satisfied that each Non-Executive
Director commits sufficient ttime to
the Company.

Non-Executive Directors remain in
regular contact with the Charrman,
whether in face-to-face meetings

or by telephone, to discuss matters
relating to the Company and on
occasion meeat without the Executive
Directors present.
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Board and Committee composition and operation continued

Board operation and meetings
continued

If a Director is unable to attend

a meeting, they will still receive
Board papers before the meeting
and they are encouraged to submit
any comments to the Chairman to
ensure that their views are recorded
and taken into account during the
meeting The Director will also
receive the minutes and matters
arising in the usual way in order to
ensure that they are fully informed.

The Board is ultimately responsible for
the effectiveness and monitoring of

the Group’s system of internal controls.
The Audit & Risk Committee's role is

to assist the Board with its oversight
responsibility by reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s system of
internal controls. It met four times in the
financial year and at its meeting in June
2023 considered the internal controls
assurance framework used during the
financial year, concluding that it was
sound and appropnate for the business.

Directors are reminded at the
commencement of each meeting

to notify the Board of any conflicts

of interest. Any actual or potential
conflicts of Directors with the interests
of the Company that arise must be
disclosed for consideration and, if
appropriate, authorisation by the Board
in accordance with the Company's
Articles of Association. The Board
may authorise conflicts and potential
conflicts, as long as the potentially
conflicted Director is not counted :n
the meeting quorum and does not
vote on the resciution to authorise.
Directors are reqguired to notify the
Group Chairman when a conflict or
potential conflict does arise In order
that Board authorisation can be
considered. If the Beard determines
that a conflict or potential conflict can
be authorised, it may impose additional
cocndf ons on tre Director concerned.
A formal iInduction programme has
been developed and ta'lored for any
new Directors joining the Board. The
Chairman, with the support of the
Compary Secretary, ensures that the
development and ongoing training
needs of ndividual Directors and

the Board as a whole are reviewed
and agreed followirg the arrual
performance evaluation of the Board,
its Comm ttees ard ro v dual Directors

Directors may seek independent
professicnal advice at the Company's
expense where they consider i
appropriate In relat on to therr
duties. All Directors have access

to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary.
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Division of responsibilities

Board responsibilities
The Board 1s focused on providing the Company’s policies, culture,
enrepreneurial and sustamable values and standards,
leadership to the Group. It s annual business plans, budgets
responsible for directing and and forecasts,

controlling the Group and has overall
authority for the effective and
prudent management and conduct
of the Group's business and the
Group's strategy and development.

extension of the Group’s
activities Into new business
or geographic areas,

changes in capital structure

The Board monitors perfermance and any for~ of fundraising cr
and is responsible for ensuring that asset securitisation:
appropriate financial and human * major changes to the corporate
resources are in place for the Group to structure, iIncluding material
meet its objectives, and takes the lead acquisitions and disposals;

in setting and embedding the Groups .+ interim and annual financial

culturg, values and standards. The statements and dividend policy:
Board is also responsible for ensuring
the maintenance of a sound system of
internal control and risk management
(ncluding financial, operational and

material guarantees. indemnities
and letters of comfort;

the Group's system of internal

compliance controls, and for reviewing control and risk management;
the overall effectiveness of systems * contracts which are material

in place), and for the approval of any strategically or by reason of size
changes to the capital, corporate or or duration;

management structure of the Group.
All Directors devote sufficient time to
their roles. There is a formal schedule
of matters reserved for Board approval
which s subject to annual review and
published en the Company’'s website:  * Remuneration Policy for the

WWW. XPSOroup.com. Directors are senior managerment,

calling of shareholder meetings and
related documentation,

+ changes to the membership of the
Board ard ts Ccmmittees,

ntreducticn of new share incentive
plans or major changes to existing
plans; and

The matters reserved for the
Board nclude:

» the Group's leng-term objectives,

» the Company's overall corporate
ousiness strategy and risk appetie,

governance arrangements.

Embedding culture

The Board recognises the importance of its role In setting the tone of

the Group's cultere, cna~pioning the behaviaLrs we expect to see and
embeddng these throughout the Group. In add.tion to the Board, the
Executive Committee upholds our values and ensures that the importance
of compliance and integrity i1s recognised at all levels throughout the
Group. A XPS, our values are embedded in everything we do, you can
read more about our values on page 29,
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Board division of responsibilities

Alan Bannatyne

There is a clear division of key
responsibilities between the
Chairman and the Co-CEQs.

Alan Bannatyne
Chairman

Leads the Board and manages
the effective leadership and
governance of the Board

Provides direction and focus on
business strategy, performance,
value creation and accountability

Ensures the Board establishes

a strategy that facilitates the
entrepreneurial development of
the Group and promotes the long-
term sustainable success of the
GroJdp’s approach

Ensures clear structure for
effective operztion o° tre Board
and its Committees

Sets Board agenda and ensures
sufficient time 1s allccated to
promote effective debate to
support sound decision making

Ensures the Board receives
precise, timely and
clear information

Encourages Directors to
contribute fully to Board
discussions, ensuring sufficient
challenge of major proposals

Meets with the Non-Executive
Directors independently of the
Executive Directors

Leads the process for
evaluating the performance
and development needs of
the Board, its Committees and
individual Directors

Leads the Board sucgession
pla-~ing process and chairs the
Nomination Committee

Acts as a sounding board for
the Co-CEQs on important
bustness 1ssues
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Paul Cuff

Ben Brambhall

* Ensures the Board sets the risk

appetite t1s willng to take n the
implementation of strategy
Ensures effective communication
with shareholders 1o ensure that
the Board understands their views
on governance and performance
against the strategy

Ensures effective communication
with other key sta<enolzers

Co-Chief Executive Officers
s The Co-CEQs have worked

together for over 20 years,
having both started their careers
as trainee actuaries at Punter
Southall. before spending many
years in the same team at KPMG

Their long friendship and
history of working together,
and their complementary
skill sets, make the Co-CEO
arrangement a success

The Co-CECOs report to the
Chairman and the Board and are
responsible for jointly leading the
Group’s business and managing it
in accordance with the business
plan approved by the Board,

the Board's overall risk appetite,
the Group policies approved

by the Board and its delegated
authorities, and all applicable laws
and regulations

The Co-CEQs recommend
budgets and forecasts for Board
approval, l2ad the investor
relations programme and maintain
a dialogue with the Charrman on
significant business developments
and strategy issues

Both Co-CEQs have leadership
roles on large clhents

Margaret Showdon OBE

Paul Cuff
Co-Chief Executive Officer

« Primarity responsible for raising
the profile of XPS in the market
and generating new DusIness,
both in traditional service areas
and in the development of new
services as the market evolves

*» Davelops the Group’s strategy
with regard to M&A opportunities
and technology investment

Ben Bramhall
Co-Chief Executive Officer

= Primarily responsible for the day-
to-day operation of the business,
inclucting the provision cf services
to existing clients, revenue
generation and the Group's
people strategy

* Develops the Group's internal
strategy to pursue large
opportumties within the market

The Board considers that the Co-

CEO structure works well with clear

accountability of roles between the

Executive Directors.

Margaret Snowdon OBE

Senior Independent

Non-Executive Director

* Acts as a sounding board for the
Chairman and other Directors

+ Leads the annual review of the
Chairman's performance

+ Leads any Non-Execulive
Director meetings without the
Chairman present

= Acts as an additicnal point
of cantact far sharehaolderes of
they have concerns that contact
through the normal channels have
falled to resolve or for which such
contact 1s inappropriate
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Board effectiveness

Annual General Meesting

The Company’s Annual General
Meeting (AGM) will take place at
12pm on Thursday 7 September
2023 at the Group’s Reading office
The AGM notice setting out the
resolutions to be proposed at the
meeting and ‘ncluding explanatory
notes, together with this Annual
Report and Accounts, will be
availabie on the Company's website
(www.xpsgroup com) and distributed
to shareholders who have elected to
receive hard copies of shareholder
information at least 20 waorking days
prior to the date of the meeting
Voting at the AGM will be conducted
by way of a poll and the results will
be announced through the London
Stock Exchange Regulatory News
Service and made available on

the Company's website All Board
members are expected to attend the
meeting and the Chair of each of the
Soard’'s Committees will be present
to answar any questions put to them
by shareholders.

2023 Board evaluation process

Br e’ ng meeting
wih the Charrman,
o Jndersiand the

conext and prior L es

o the evaiuation
and {0 agree on an

aide-meéma re for the
‘navdua Board and
maragemeant meelngs

Board evaluation

The Board acknowledges that the Code requires regular external Board
evaluations (as a company below the FTSE 350) and conducted an external
Board evaluation in 2023, facilitated by Ceradas Limited. All Board members
engaged with the process, in addition t¢ a number of the senior management
team. Cerzdas has no other cornections to the Company or the O rectors.

Deia ed documen:
revew, ncidd ng the
Company s Board
agendas, papers,
mnJtes, ana'yst Noies
and prev oJs nterna
evailaron oucomes

One-1o-one meetings
witn each Board
member. and
members of the sen or
management eam,
congeentratng on
quesiions conia ned
n ihe pre-c rcu ated
ade-mémore

Observatanof a

Board meeting 10
‘arlher understand

Board dynam'cs

Fecdback meer ng w th
ne Charman
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Meelrg wth the Senor
Independe~l D recior
w0 d scuss ‘eedback
on the Charman from
other Board memuoers

Presentat on
of “nd ngs/
recommendas ons by
Ceradas a: the May
Board mee: ng

Board Eva uat.on
Reporicrcy'aied o a
3oard members

Ac:onpanagreed
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The evaluation concluded positively, and the following
outcomes were agreed as areas for potential
development

* the Board agenda to be developed to optimise the focus
of discussions;

= Nomination Comm:ttee to consider planming for
Non-Executive Directar succession in the next 3
years, and

« more formal feedback from the Employee Engagement
Group to be shared with the Board.

2022 Board evaluation outcomes and progress

Review of Chairman’s performance

The Non-Executive Directors, in addition to their

role of constructively challenging and fac:hitating the
development of the Group's strategy, meet annually to
evaluate the performance of the Chairman, led by the
Senior Independent Director. The Sentor Independent
Director also engages with the Executive Directors
separately for their feedback. As part of the wider
Board evaluation process, individual Directors discussed
the Charman's performance with Ceradas, which then
discussed the Charrman's performance with the Senior
Independent Cirector,

The 2022 internally facilitated evaluation identified the following areas for improvement; progress 1s reported

as follows:

Achtions from the 2022 evaluation

mprovemenrts

The handover and succession of the Chair role following
Tom Cross Brown's retirement in September 2022 was a key
focus for the Board dunng the year.

Alan Bannatyne, previously Sentor Independent Director,
succeeded Tom Cross Brown as Chairman on a permanent
basis in November 2022 Alan’s understanding of the
business and working relationship with Tom over the
previous 5+ years helped to facilitate an orderly handover.

Relations and communications with shareholders continued
to develop, including the potential for new introductions
when the Group's new Charrman was appointed

Alan Bannatyne has attended varnous induction meetings
with the Group's largest shareholders since s appomtment
as Charrman You can read more about the Beard's engagement
with shareholders, including the introduction of a Capital
Markets Day, with n tne Secticn 172 Statement on pages 24
and 25,

The Board continued to develop engagement with Group
employees, including reintroducing Non-Executive Director
and employee networking sessions {previously halted due
o Cowid-193.

Margaret Snowdon OBE has continued her position as the
Group's Employee Engagement Non-Executive Director, and
continues to chair the Group's meetings Sarah Ing chaired
the Values In Practice Awards agamn in 20235 Non-Executive
Director and employee networking sessions have been
reintroduced and further sessions are planned for =Y 2024

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023

65

DIUBUIDACS



Nomination Committee

Succession planning

for a sustainable future

The Committee has played an important

role throughout the year by supporting the

Board with Chairman succession and the

appointment of a new Non-Executive Director,
whilst continuing to improve Board diversity.

Committee memroers~ip Afterdance
Chair

Alan Bannatyne 3/4
Members

Margaret Snowdon OBE a/4
Sarah Ing 4/4
Tom Cross Brown (resigned September 2022) 11
Arsling Kennedy (@ppointed February 2023) 0/0

Alan Bannatyne
Chair of the Norriratiorn Corrmittes
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Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to present the report

of the Nomination Committee for

the year ended 31 March 2023

The Committee has met four times
during FY 2023 and all meetings
were attended by all members of the
Committee, with the exception of one
meeting which | did not attend due to
this relating to Chairman succession
and my appointment The Committee
intends to continue to meet at

ieast twice annually with additional
meetings as required.

The Nomination Committee

assists the Board in determining

the compaosition and make-up

of the Beard, including its skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity
It 1s responsible for developing

and maintaining a forma!, rigorous
and transparent procedure for
dentifying appropriate candidates
for Board appo:ntments and making
recommendaticns to the Boara

The Commuttee is also responsible for
keeping under review the leadership
needs of the Group, both Execut ve
and Non-Executive, and for ensuring
that succession planning focuses on
the continued ability of the Group

10 deliver 116 strategic goals and
compete effectivety. The terms of
reference of the Committee are
reviewed annually and avalable

on the Company’s website,

WWW XPSgroup.com.
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Chairman succession

and Non-Executive

Director appointment

In September, Tom Cross Brown
retired as Chairman of the Group

On behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank Tom for his contribution to XPS
throughout a transformational period,
and wish him well for his retirement.
The Nomination Committee was led
by Margaret Snowdon ORE in the
search for a successor, following a
review of the skill set and experience
of all Directors to identify any skills
gaps following Tom's retirement.

The Committee engaged external
search firm Russell Reynolds, with
which the Group and the Directors
have no other connections. In
September, | was appointed as
Interim Chairman following Tom's
retirement and my appointment was
made permanent on 30 November
2022. At the same time, Margaret
Snowdon was appointed Senior
Independent Director and Sarah Ing
was appointed as Chair of the Audit
& Risk Committee.

Following my appointment as
Chairman, the Commuttes revigwed
the size of the Board, the balance
between Executive and Non-
Executive Directors and the diversity
of the Board and agreed to recruit

an additional Non-Executive Director
to maintain the balance of skiils,
experience, independence and
knowledge reguired of the Board and
ecach Committee. The Committee then
commenced the search for a Non-
Executive Director, with the support
of Russell Reynolds, and appointed
Alsling Kennedy in February 2023,
Aisling is an experienced |rish qualified
actuary, with a wealth of experience
across consulting, insurance
companies and professional bodies.
We were delighted to welcome Aisling
to our Beoard and Aisling's extensive
experience in XPS's key markets
complements the experience of the
other members of the Boarg.

The members of the Coammittee are
Margaret Snowdon QBE, Sarah Ing,
Aishing Kennedy and me. Members
of the management team, including
the Executive Directors, are invited
to Committee meetings as the
agenda dictates.
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Chairman recruitment process

April 2022
XPS announced Tom Cross Brown's intention to retire following
the September 2022 AGM,

Margaret Snowdon OBE was identified as leading the Nomination
Committee through the recruitment process to appoint a successor,

Russell Reynolds was engaged to suppert the recruitment
process, the Committee identified key competencies and Russell
Reyrolos crew up a lo~g-list of 50 candidates,

The long-list was then reduced by Russell Reynolds to ten
candidates, including Alan Bannatyne, who were invited to
interview by Russell Reynolds and Margaret Snowdon OBE

August - October 2022

The Group's top ten shareholders were invited to consultation,
in addition to shareholders who had previously expressed an
interest In the process

Margaret Snowdon OBE held meetings with six sharehelders
during August to October.

Following Tom Cross Brown's retirement in September,

Alan Bannatyne, as Senior Independent Director, was
appointed as Interim Chairman whilst the recruitment process
remained ongoing

November 2022

The Committee reviewed shareholder feedback and interview
outcomes and concluded that Alan Bannatyne was the right
candidate for the role.

Alan was appointed as Chairman on 30 November 2022 and
has since held a number of meetings with the Group's largest
shareholders "ollowing his anppointrent,
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Nomination Committee continued

Board effectiveness evaluation
During the year, an externally
facilitated Board effectiveness
evaluation was completed by Ceradas
Limited; further details of the process
and the outcomes can be found on
pages 64 and 65. The Group intends
to conduct an extaernally facilitated
effectiveness review every three
years going forward.

Succession planning

During the year. the Nomination
Committee reviewed detatled
succession plans covering the roles
considerad key to the business,
including those of the Executive
Directors and the Executive
Comrnittee The Committee is
satisfied that the centingency and
talent management plans in place for
key positions are appropriate and has
agreed that the Group's succession
planmng should be kept under review,
at leas: bi-arnually. We conduct
Leadersh'p Development Centres to
develop our future senior leaders

Table 1. Reporting table on sex/gender representation as at 31 March 2023

In May 2023 the Board developed
and agreed a succession plan for
Neon-Executive Directors and the
Chairman, and will continue to review
and mantain this plan annually

going forward.

Induction programme and training
A formal tailored induction for
Non-Executive Directors is in

place supported by a programme of
training, to further their knowledge
of the Group, its business, culture,
operations, employees and
governance and to ensJre awareness
of their regulatory dubies and
obligations as a Director of a UK
premium listed company. Since
Aisling Kennedy's appointment,

she has been compieting a detailed
induction to the Group, including
meeting with the Group's Executive

Committee, business heads and other

members of senior management.

Diversity, equality and inclusion
During the year, the XPS Board
reached the gender diversity target
we committed to within our FY 2022
reporting, and our female Board
representation increased from 29%
to 43% This year, we have reported
for the first time in relation to the
FCA's newly introduced diversity
listing rules, and | am proud to
confirm that XPS complies with

the three requirements. Whilst we
recognise that XPS has further
progress to make in relation to the
diversity of our Board and executive
management, we are pleased ¢

be making progress and reporting
compliance with the l.sting rules,

Numper
of serior
positions
Number Percentage on tre Board Number in Percentage
of Board of the ({CCO, CFO, execulive of executive
mambers Roard SO ardCnair) management management
Men 4 57% 4 7 78%
Women £ 43% 1 2 22%
Not specified/prefer not to say - - - - -
Tabie 2. Reporting table on ethnicity representation as at 31 March 2023
Number
of serior
positions
Nuroer Percertage o~ the Boa'd Numper in Percentage
of Board of trg (CrFO, CFO, executive of executive
members Board SI1Dand Cnarr) mangge™ert Taragemant
White British or other White (including minority White groups) 6 B86% 4 B8 89%
Mixed/multiple ethnic groups - - - - -
Asian/Asian British 1 14% 1 1 n%

Black/African/Caribbean/Black British
Other ethnic group, including Arab
Not specified/prefer not to say

Executive management 1s defined as the XPS Executive Commitiee

This data was obtained from HR data held by the Group
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The Company has an established
Inclusion and Diversity Committee,
championed by Non-Executive
Director Margaret Snowdon OBE
and chaired by a senior female within
the Group. The group has made
great progress, has a significant
impact across the business and is

a key channel of commun:cation
and engagement for employees

and management. You can read
maore about the Group's 1&D
strategy and comrmitment to further
progress on pages 31 to 33 of our
Sustainability report,

The Company acknowledges that
there remains a gender pay gap
within the business which reflects a
higher proportion of males in higher
pald roles than females Whilst this is
partly a challenge of the UK industry
in which the Company operates,

with a male-dominated actuarial
profession, the Board believes it has
a responsibility to promote change,
both within XS and the industry
more generatly. The Group continued
to recrult into the apprent:ce scheme
during the year and hopes this
continues to improve the diversity

of the Group and prefession in

the future.
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The Board believes that no individual
should be discriminated against,
whether for reasons of gender,
ethnicity or other grounds that

restrict social iInclusion, and this
extends to Board appointments,
which it considers should be made
on merit and on the basis of ensuring
an appropriate balance of skills

and experience within the Board.

The Board recognises that greater
diversity, in the widest sense of
diversity of race, experience and
approach, can generate a more
diverse perspective on issues which,
in turn, has the ability to benefit Board
effectiveness through improved

d scussions and better decis ons.

fik__ % -

Alan Bannatyne
Chair of the Nomination Committee
21 June 2023
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Audit & Risk Committee

Delivering

independent oversight

The Audit & Risk Committee continues
to provide independent oversight of the

Group’s financial reporting procedures, risk
management and internal control framework.

Commillec memaerskp Attendarce
Chair

Sarah Ing 4/4
Members

Margaret Snowdan OBE 4/4
Alan Bannatyne (resigned 8 September 2022) 2/2
Aushing Kennedy (appointed 22 February 2023) 11

Sarah Ing
Chair 0f the Audit & R s« Committee
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Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to present the report
of the Audit & Risk Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2023 The
Committee met four times during
FY 2023 and intends to continue to
meet at least three times annually.
Ali meetings were attended by all
members of the Committee.

Membership of the Committee
During the year, Alan Bannatyne
stepped down as Chairman of

the Committee, following his
appointment as Interim Chairman of
the Group in September 2022 at this
time, | was appointed as Interm Chair
of the Committee The appcintments
were made permanent In November
2022. Aisling Kennedy was appointed
to join the Board and the Committee
in February 2023, and the Committee
members are now Margaret Snowdon
OBE. Aisling Kennedy and me. The
Board 15 satrisfied that the Audit

& Risk Committee as a whole has
competence relevant to the sector

in which the Company operates and
that | have recent relevant financial
experience as can be seen in our
bographies included on pages 58
anc 59 of the Annual Report.

The Executive Directors are invited
to each meeting as well as the
Company's Non-Executive Charman,
Cheef Information Cfficer, Head of
Risk, General Counsel, Financal
Contraller, and other members

of the management team as the
agenda dictates
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Significant accounting matters considered during the year

Revenue recognition, accrued income and trade receivables

Matters considered

Depending on the income stream and the nature of
the engagement, the Group recognises revenue on

aither time cost Incurred, fixed fee or rateably over

the period of providing the relevant services. Billing
is mamly in arrears and occurs monthly or quarterly.

Carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets

Matters considered

The Group has significant intangible assets on the
balance sheet in the form of goodwili, customer
relationships, brands and software. The intangible
assets have to be reviewed for impairment at least
annually or f there are any Indicators of impairment.

Business combinations

Matters considered
During the year. the Group acguwred Penfida Limited
for cash consideration of £8.6 milion and a further

cash payment of uo to £3.4 mullion m Septemper 2024,

subject to the achievernent of a chent retention
target, and the sellers remaming in employment with
the Group. All acguisitions are assessed under IFRS

3 where applicable, and a purchase price allocation
(PPA) exercise 1s undertaken.

Action

The Committee reviewed the approach to revenue
recognition Including the process for accrued and
deferred revenue. The Committee receives regular
updates on ageing of accrued revenue and trade
receivables. The Committee has also considerad
the conclusions reached by BDO as part of its
audit of this area and 15 satistied that management
has adopted appropriate processes and controls
over revenue recognition, accrued revenue and
trade recevables.

Action

The carrying value of all indefimte life assets

1s tested for impairment annually. In reaching

its conclusion that the treatment adopted 1s
appropriate, the Committee has reviewed the
forecasts, key assumptions and methodology
adopted by managemeant. BDO’s findings have

also been considered by the Comrmittee inreaching
Its conclusions over the appropriateness of the
treatment within the financial staterments.

Action

The Committee has reviewed management's
assessment of the far value of the assets and
liabiities acquired and resuiting goodwill from
the acguisition. The Committee has reviewed
the disclosures in respect of the acquisition
and considers the accounting and disclosures
to be appropriate.

Presentation and disclosure of exceptional and non-trading items

Matters considered

The Group classifies certain items in the income
statement as exceptional/non-trading to allow a
clearer understanding of the underlying trading
performance of the business.

Exceptional and non-tracing items in the year
totatled £14.2 milhon (FY 2022: £9.8 million). For
more details, see note 6 to the financial staterments
on page 127.
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Action

As part of its assessment that the treatment of
exceptional/non-trading items in the financial
statements 1s appropnate, and consistent with the
Group's accounting policies and with the guidance
issued by the FRC, the Committee has considered
each of the items treated as exceptional/mon-trading
and challenged, where necessary, the treatment
adopted by management. The Committee has also
considered the conclusions reached by BDO as part
of 1ts aucht in thus area and 1s satisfied.

71

97UBLLIAADD



Audit & Risk Committee continued

Auditor

The Committee 1s responsible for
making recommendations to the
Beard regarding the appointment of
its external auditor and its remuneration.
BDO LLP has been the Group’s
auditor since 2014 The Group audit
partner Is required to rotate after a
maximum of five years, the current
audit partner, Andrew Radford, was
appomnted in September 2020
During FY 2021, the Committee
undertook an audit tencler exercise
and BDOC LPP were retained as the
Company's auditor,

The Committee 15 responsible for
making recommeandations on the
ndependence of the Company’s
auditor, 8DQ LLP In addition, the
auditor has internal processes, which
nclude peer reviews, to ensure that
independence s maintaned The
Committee w'll review the level of
audht fees and non-aud't fees on an
ongoing basis. See note 5to the
financial statements on page 127

The Commuttee has reviewed the

approach to the annual audt at a

rmeeting that the auditor attended
ahead of the start of fieldwork.
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The auditor then attended a further
Committee meeting at the completion
stage of the audit to present its
findings. There 1s an open line of
communication between the Char
of the Audiz & R sk Committee arc
the audit engagement partner, and
a closed session between the Aucit
& Rsk Com~ittee ana the aualt
partner 1s held at the beginning of
each Committee meeting, without
the Executive Directors present

Tro audit partner s alse Invited to
atrend the Committee meetings for
the duration of the meeting The
Committee assessed the
effectiveness of the external aud:t
process by obtaining feedback from
parties involved in the process,
including management and the
external auditor

Based on this feedback and its own

ongoing assessment, the Committee
remains satisfied with the efficiency

anag effectiveness of the audt

After due and careful consideration,
<he Committee rema ns satisfied
with the effectiveness and
ndependence of 3DO LLP and has
recommencded to the Board that
BDO LLP be reappoinied as the
Company’s auditor

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function s provided
usSINg a co-sourcing agreement, with
PwC reappcinted in 2020 after a
retender as it had been in place since
2017 It offers independent oversight
of operaticnal and risk management
activities, with audit reports and
relevant findings presented to the
Committee, This year it focused on
the Group's advisory services and

no sign'ficant control weaknesses
were identified. The Internal Audit
programme 1s supported by @ number
of regular assurance activities which
are carried out by the Risk and
Compliance teams, which look at

the design and ef‘ecliveness ¢
interna: controls for key processes.

Annual Report review

A f.nal draft of the Annuat Report
1s reviewed by the Committee prior
to consideration by the Board and
the Committee considered whether
the 2023 Annual Report was far,
baanced and understandable and
whether it provided the necessary
information for shareholders to
assass the Group's position and
performance, business moae!

and strategy
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The standardised risk management
framework enables consistent reporting
and a clear articulation of risk appetite,
and the key controls in place to
effectively manage these risks.

Sarah Ing
Chair of the Audit & Risk Commuttee

The Committee was satisfied that,
taken as a whole, the Annual Report
1s fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the necessary
informaticn.

Risk

The existing risk managemeant
framework within the Group has been
further developed throughout the
year, ensuring i continues (o address
existing and emerging risks to the
XPS Group These enhancements are
supported by a strong culture, active
engagement from staff and a clear
direction from Executive Management.

The slandardised risk mgriiogyenenl
framework supports a common
approach across all businesses,
supporting all functions in the Group
and enabling consistent reparting.
This inctudes a clear articulation of
the key risks and the appetite the
Group has for each of these, along
with the key controls in place to
effectively manage these risks within
their stated appetites.

The framework embraces the whale
spectrum of the Group's activities
and supports the achievement of
the organisation’s objectives. The
underlying processes and control
procedures are regularly reviewed
and amended as required to reflect
the findings of these reviews. These
improvements typically include

key risk areas including operational
administration, regulatory compliance,
legislative changes, and changes in
the external threat environmeant.
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The nsk reporting framewaork deployed
provides Executive Management

with regular updates on our overall
risk profile, with detalled reports

on risks that may reguire action to
keep within appetite These updates
include information on key risk
indicators, as well as summarising
root-cause analysis reviews for
incidents and errors

The Risk Management Committee
continues to meet on a regular basis
to discuss risks and issues as well
as ensuring that the framework

is meeting the needs of Group
stakeholders This Committee also
acts as the mechanism by which
risks reported at business tevel can
be considered in the context of
the Group and whether escalation
is required.

The central Risk team supports

all businesses within the Group
and ensures best practices are
apphed consistently This team 13
also responsible for co-ordinating
the existing external assurance
programme across the Group,

to ensure all nsks and controls

are considered and assessed
appropriately. These assurance
activities include certifications to 1SO
14001 and (SO 270071, AAF 01/20,
1P and the oA Quality Assurance
Scheme (QGAS). In addition to
these the Group has aiso achieved
accreditation against the PASA
pensions administratbhon standard
this year.

The Audit & Risk Committee regularly
reviews the wider internal contro!
processes, enhisting external support
to support these reviews when
deemed necessary. Recognising the
importance of business resilience
and the protection of data assets
from cyber risks, the Committee
considers these specific risks at
each of its meetings. This includes
the performance of key controls

and the independent assurance
frameworks in place.

Whistleblowing

The Group has a clear, formalised
Whistleblowing Policy and procedure
available to all staff in order to
raise concerns about perceived
wrongdoing, non-compliance with
our own standards, regulatory
requirements and/cr the law. This
pclicy was reviewed this year. We
have a confidential hetpling, run by
a third party, Expclink, in order that
staff can report any concerns or
perceived shortcomings within our
operations without fear of sanction
or disadvantage. The helpline i1s
promoted through the intranet and
posters. Incidents are reported and
then reviewed by the Board at the
next available meeting or sconer if
appropriate The Group's Audit &
Risk Committee reviews the policy
and process annually to ensure they
remain fit for purpose.

S

Sarah Ing
Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee
21 June 2023
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Sustainability Committee

Embedding sustainability

across the business

All our sustainability activities are designed to
support our purpose; to shape and support
safe, robust and well understood pension
schemes for the benefit of people and society.
This year we have continued to focus on our
sustainability ambitions and the integration
into the Groups operations for the benefit

of our people, clients, communities and

the environment.

Cammitiee mempe st Artendance
Chair

Sarah ing 4/4
Members

Margaret Snowdon OBE 4/4
Alsling Kennedy (appointed February 2023) 11
Snehal Shah 4/4
Charlotte West 3/4
Adrian Davison 4/4
Alex Quant 4/4

Sarah ing

Chair of ne Sustamability Committee
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This year, the role of the Sustanability
Committee continues to be to drive
improverments Iin practices, report:ing
and communication in relation to
environmental, social and governance
(ESG) facters that have a positive
impact on business strategy and
performance and the long-term
sustainability of the Group The
Committee has oversight of the views
and interests of all key stakehclders
of the Group, internal and external.

Membership of the Committee
The members of the Committee
includes: Margaret Snowdon

OBE (Senicr Independent Non-
Executive Director), Aisling Kennedy
(Independent Non-Executive Director),
Snehal Shah ({CFO), Charlotte West
(Head of Employee Engagement),
Adrian Davison (Head of Risk),

Alex Quant (Head of £ESG for the
Investment business) and me Aisling
Kennedy joined the Committee
following her appointment to the
Board in February 2023. Other
Board members and members of
the management team are nvited to
meetings as the agenda dictates.

The Committee met four times
during the the year and all meetings
were attended by all members. with
the exception of one meeting due to
a prior engagement. The Committee
‘ntends to continue to meet at least
twice yearly with additional meetings
as reguired.

The focus of the Committee
During the year the Committee
provided oversight and challenge
on a number of sustainability 1ssues
within the Group's key areas of
fCrus - governarce our employoees,
our clents, our communmties and
aur env ronment.

1. Launch of 1&0D strategy

The Committee continued to oversee
the 1&D strategy, as referred to on
pages 31 to 33 and the practices to
create an '‘nclusive cutture' to ensure
we are able to nurture, retain and
attract gwerse talent.
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Board of Directors

Sustainability Committee

Sarah Ing

Chair of the
Sustainability Committee
Non-Executive Director

Snehal Shah Charlotte West
Chief Head of
Financial Officer Employee
Engagement

Alex Quant
Head of ESG for
the Investment

business

Adrian Davison
Head of Risk

Responsible for

Margaret Aisling Kennedy
Snowdon OBE Independent
Senior Non-Executive
Independent Director

Non-Executive
Cirector, Chair of
EEG and
member of
1&0 Committee

Executive sponsor
for sustainability,
responsible for
reprasenting
Investor views

Responsibte for
employee
engagement
and |&D strategies

environmental

Responsibie for strategy

representing client
interests

Supported by resources from across XPS

2.Development of

environmental strategy

The Committee provided oversight
on the net zero and carbon offsetting
project, having reviewed the
implementation of the Environmental
Management System and associated
Environment Policy as referred to

on page 39,

3. Further development of our
responsible investment solutions
A strong focus for the Committee
this year was to provide gversight
of the Group's further develecpment
of Its responstble iInvestment
offering and implementation of the
Responsible Investment Policy.
Input was given on a range of issues
ncluding training and development
within the Investment team, strategy,
our position in the market to
influence and educate.

4.Shaping sustainability reporting
This year the Committee discussed

a number of external sustamnability
frameworks and standards. The
Committee also reviewed sustainability
reporting best practice and considered
feedback from proxy advisers on
XPS's ESG performance, incorporating
this into our sustamnability framework
where appropriate.
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We have aligned our sustainability
ambitions with the UN Sustaimable
Development Goals, where we
believe we can make a positive
contribution

We also remain committed to
aligning our strategy with the 2015
Paris Agreement.

At a high level, the focus for the year
ahead includes

» providing oversight for further
development and integration
of our sustainability strateqgy.
including a review of cur
materiality matrix and further
development of our sustainakility
framewaork and reporting to
nclude clear commitments, KPIs
and measurement thereof. See
pages 26 to 41 of the Strategic
Report for our current reporting
on susta.nability matters.

« continuing to review and provide
challenge on activities carried out
by the business, underpinned by
our sustainability strategy;

« keeping best praclice under review:,

referring to thought leadership,

* monitoring the Group’s position
regarcding relevant emerging
sustainability 1ssues; and

* providing oversight and
challenge on the continued
integration of ¢climate risk nto
our risk management processes,
and the development of our
carbon reduction plan and
associated targets.

The terms of reference of the
Committee are reviewed annually
and are available on the Company's
website, www.xpsgroup.comn.

Sarahing
Chair of the Sustamability Committee
21 June 2023

75

aoUeUlaA0D)



Directors’ remuneration report

Remuneration at a glance

The overall Remuneration Policy is designed to promote

the long-term success of the Group whilst ensuring it does

not support inappropriate risk taking. The Remuneration
Committee has developed the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
with the following principles in mind:

Aligned with shareholders - in order
to motivate Executive Directors and
incentivise the delivery of sustained
performance over the long term, and
to promote alignment with
shareholders' interests,

Aligned with financial performance
- to motivate Executive Directors
and support the delivery of the
Group's financial and strateg:c
business targets.

76

Aligned with colleagues - oy str v ng
for as consistent as possible an
approach between the Executive
Directors and senior management,

Aligned with clients - the continued
strategy to be the best provider of
services to the UK pensions market,
as a one stop shop for everything
Trustees and Employers nead in this
market, at the same time as achieving
sustainable growth through investing
in client services, technology and
staff, demonstrates the commitrment
to providing an agile, high-guality
and market-leading service that puts
chent satisfaction at the heart of

the business.

Competitive - remuneration
packages are reviewed annually and
benchmarked by reference to the
external market This allows us to
attract and retain highly talented
people, who know that good
performance will be rewarded

Designed to encourage retention
and to reward performance -
deferred variable remuneration does
not give rise to any immediate
entiflement. Long-term incentive
awards normally require the participant
to be employed continuously by

tne Group unt | at least the third
anniversary of grant in order to

vest in full
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Our Executive Directors’ remuneration at a glance

Key features of the Paolicy

Fow we implemented the Policy

Salary
and benefits

Fixed pay

Annual increases will not exceed
7.5% + RPI {March 2023:13.5%) or
the average increase of employees
across the Group in any given year,
whichever is higher.

Increases of 7% applied

effective 1 Apnl 2023

recognising strong corporate

and mdradusl performance.
Executive Director level of increase
significantly below the average
workforce rate

Short-term variable pay Cash bonus
Financial/functional

and personal objectives

set with reference 1o

business plans approved

by the Board.

The maximum opportunity for
FY 202315 150% of salary and

potentially payable in cash and
deferred shares.

Bonus 15 payable subject to the
achievement of performance
conditions (financial and personal
objectives) which will be set by the
Remuneration Committea. Malus
and clawback provisions auphy.

The Co-CEQs were awarded 150%
of salary and the CFC was awarded
1N2.5% of salary, as determined

by the Remuneration Committee.
These payments amounted to 100%
of maximum.

Bonuses were paid on financial
performance as well as persona’
objectives (detalled on pages
S0 and S1)

Long-term variable pay XPS Maximum “normal” grant level is The November 2020 PSP award
Stretching performance Performance 150% of salary. 15 subject to underlying EPS
conditions measured Share Malus and clawback performance and relative TSR
over a three-year pernod Plan (PSP ) performance The overall estimated
with a further two-year provisions apply. payout for the award is egual to
post-performance Aligned with long-term business 66.2% of maximum, but will be
holding period strategy to become the best dependent upon TSR performance
Performance conditions provider of services to the UK to the end of the three-year
- pensions market, as a one stop shop  performance perod ending In

based upon adJUSte.d, for everything Trustees and November 2023,
earnings per share/ToR to Employer need In this market, and
comgpzrator groue. delivery of shareholder value due to

strong cash generalion and non-

cychcal demand for services.
Share ownership Share Minimum shareholding of 200%
guidelines ownership of base salary for any Executive

guidelines Director with requirements

applying for a two-year period post
termination of employment.

Remuneration at a glance: pay outcomes for the year

FY 2023 fixed remuneration

Base salary Pension
Co-CEOs CFO Co-CEOs CFO
£332,755 £281.069 6% of salary 6% of salary

These pension contributions are in line with that offered to the majerty of the workforce and below the average

contribution ievels across the Group.

Annual bonus

The financial element of these bonuses 1s based on Group profit before tax (PBT). The reported Group adjusted PBT
for FY 2023 resulted in a bonus payment of 100% of the maximum for this element of the bonus. When combined with
the performance against strategic objectives, this led to a formulaic bonus outturn of 100% of the maxrmum. Further
details of financial and personal objectives can be found on pages 90 and 91.

Payout

Taresnold Target Maximum Actual (% of tas

Err £000 £'000 £'000 000 elernent)
Group ad) PBT (75% of potent.al) 28.617 30123 31.629 33358 100%
XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023 77
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Aligning remuneration
with sustainable success

The Remuneration Committee continues to
ensure a robust link between the execution
of strategy, reward and performance and is

committed to fairness and transparency.

Comimrittee mamborshap

attendarce

Chair

Margaret Snowdon OBE 5/8
Members

Alan Bannatyne 5/5
Sarah Ing 5/5
Tom Cross Brown {resigned B September 2022) 3/3
Alsling Kennedy (appointed 22 February 2023) 11

Margaret Snowdon OBE
Chair of the Remuneration Commitiee
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Dear Shareholder,

The Directors Remuneration Report
for the year ended 31 March
2023 contains,

* my annual statement:

the Directers’ Remuneration Policy,
which will apply for a maximum of
three years from the 2023 AGM
and wil' replace the Directors’
Remuneration Policy previously
approved at the 2020 AGM, and

the annual report on remuneration
which describes how the Directors’
Remuneration Policy has been
applied N FY 2023 and how it will
bhe mplemented in FY 2024,

Operational highlights

During the year ended 31t March 2023,
we produced an excellent year of
robust financiai performance. At
a Group level, revenues increased
20% year on year and adjusted
fully diluted EPS rose 24% year on
year This was delivered in a year
where employee engagement and
chent satisfaction scores were at
record highs.

Engaging with our stakeholders
Shareholders

At last year's Annuat General
Meeting held on 8 September 2022,
the Remuneration Committee was
p'eased that shareholders approved
the Remuneratwon Report with 96%
of votes for.

As Char, | am always keen to
maintain a collaborative and
productive relat:onship regarding
remuneration decisions. Ahead
of the publication of this report,

I held meetings with many of our
top sharehoiders to gather views
and feedback

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023



| am extremely grateful tor the
feedback | received and the level

of engagement from shareholders.
These meetings have peen helpful In
shaping the Committee’s decision-
making set out Iin this report, as

well as maintaining cur productive
relationship. | am pleased to report
that there was strong support for the
planned approach for the Directors’
Remuneration Policy 2023 and the
2023 PSP award, including the one-
off enhancement as cuthned within
the report.

We are grateful for the ongoing
shareholder engagement and
constructive feedback allowing
us to ensure we are able to reflect
the views of shareholders in the
decisions that the Remuneration
Committee makes

Employees

The Employee Engagement Group.
which | chair as XPS Group's
Cesignated Employee Engagement
Non-Executive Director, censiders
Executive Directors’ remuneration,
taking account of employee views.

The Employee Engagement Group
was set up with the purpose of
providing an "employee voice” to
the Board by raising any matters or
1ssues highhghted by employees. It
is a forum for employees to share
ideas and concerns with the Board
in a consultative manner and 1s not a
decision-making group One area of
focus for the Employee Engagement
Group 1s reward and remuneration
of Executive Directors; members

are asked to provide feedback on
the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
and Executive Director objectives.
The group improves engagement
between the Board and XPS employees.

Wider workforce remuneration

We continue to review the remuneration
arrangements for the wider workfcrce
and take these into account when
considering remuneration arrangements
for the Executive Directors and other
members of senior management The
Committee reviewed the approach
taken in light of the acknowledged cost-
of-living challenges. XPS awarded mid-
year salary increases in October 2022,
In addition to the increases effective

1 Apnl 2023, to all sta*f below artner
and Managing Consultant grades; You
can read further details about this

on page 33.
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'he Remuneration Committee also reviewed the Group's gender pay gap
analyses and action plans | have also continued to play an active role
throughout the year on the Group’s Inclusion & Diversity Committee, in
addition to chairing the Employee Engagement Group.

The Directors' Remuneration Policy

The current Directors’ Remunerat:on Policy was approved by shareholders
at the 2020 AGM when it received 96% approval from shareholders and
therefore will be due for renewat at the 2023 AGM

The objectives of the Policy remain to attract, motivate and retain Executive
Directors while maximising long-term shareholder value and reinforcing

the Company cu'ture. Having reviewed the current Policy the Committee
concluded that making significant changes to the Remuneration Policy was
not reqguired this year.

We are therefore proposing that the Polcy be resubmitted broadly unchanged,
save for a revision relating to a clarification on how PSP awards in good leaver
situations will normally be retained and vest at the normal vesting date, in line
with standard market practice.

Annual bonus payments for FY 2023

The financial element of these bonuses I1s based on Group profit before tax
(PBT) The reported Group adjusted PBT for FY 2023 has resulted in a bonus
payment of 100% of the maximum for this element of the bonus.

The Committee determinad that the strategic objectives had been fully met
which therefore led to a bonus outturn of 100% of the maximum for the
Co-CEQs and CFO. When considering the appropriateness of the bonus
outturn, the Committee was mindful that this was the first maximum bonus
payment since IPO (in 2017) and that in three of the previous four years the
bonus had been reduced, with the agreement of the Co-CEQs, from the
formulaic outcome

% of

% of salary Taximum

B8en Brambhall 150% 100%
Paul Cuff 150% 100%
Snehal Shabh N2.5% 100%

Vesting outcomes for the 2020 PSP awards

The November 2020 PSP award is subject to underlying £EPS performance
and relative TSR performance. The estimated overall payout for the award 1s
equal to 66.2% of maximum.

The Committee considers that the Policy operated as intended during
FY 2023 and that remuneration outcomes are consistent with the Group
performance and appropriately reflect performance delivered for our
shareholders over the respective periods. The Committee felt that no
discretion needed to be applied for these remuneration outcomes
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Operation of the Directors’
Remuneration Policy for FY 2024
Looking forward into FY 2024, we
have given consideration to actions
on pay matters which we regard as
appropriate and designed to support
shareholders’ interests over the

long term.

The Board considers that the Co-
CEO structure works well with clear
accountability of roles between the
Executive Directors Both Co-CEQOs
have responsibility for building and
sustaining relationships with some
of our key clients. Somewhat uniaue
to our industry, chents expect deep
professional and technical expertise
in senior executives, and both Co-
CEQs are practitioners who lead
projects on some of the Group's
biggest clients.

In addition to these direct and
valuable chent accountabilities,
Paul Cuff is responsible for raising
the profile of XPS in the market,
generating new business and the
Graup strategy with regard to
M&A oppertunities and technology
investment. Ben Bramhall is
responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the business, which
covers the provision of services to
existing clients, revenue generation
and the Group’s people strategy
Both are responsible for employee
culture and the dual role increases
the bandwicgth for employee
engagement.

In addition to his finance
responsibilities Snehal Shah maintains
the Company's relationships with

its brokers and 1s responsible

for sharehoider communication
Snehal s also responsible for Group
Risk and leads on the Group's
sustainability agenda

When reviewing the Executive
Directors’ salaries, the Committee
considerad the matter holistical v.
taking into consideration the roles
outlined above, the impact of salary
mcreases on total remunerat-on and
increases applicable to the wider
workforce along with the strong
absolute and relative performance of
the Group
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The Commitiee agreed It was fair and reasonable to award salary increases
of 7% for all Executive Directors which take effect from 1 April 2023, This
percentage s significantly less than the comparabte annual average increase
for employees across the Group which is 12% for the year, reflecting the highly
competitive landscape for professionats in our niche market The resultant
salaries for the Executive Directors remain low against the FTSE Small Cap
market and other similarly sized companies, and annual target earnings are
low 'n comparison te senicr leadership and senicr client facing roles at some
of the Group's competiters, which include Big 4 accounting firms and cther
equity partnerships

The maximum bonus opportunity of the CFO is being set at 125% of salary
from 2023/24 in acknowladgement of his performance and growing
experience in role. The maximum opportunity for the Co-CEQs will remain
unchanged at 150% of salary

The PSP award due to vest in July 2024 incorporates inflation-linked EPS
targets. The current volatile and unpredictable inflation levels in the economy
have detrimentally impacted the incentive effect of awards with an inflation
Iinkage. The Committee does not feel that it is appropriate to amend in-flight
performance conditions, despite some compelling arguments, but it wishes to
recognise management’s performance whilst maintaining a strong aiignment
with the experence of our shareholders.

In recognition of the performance of the Executive Directors and alsc the
need to continue to retain them and incentivise the delivery of our key
strategic objectives, t is the intention that the 2023 PSP award levels witl be
enhanced on a one-off basis by 25% of salary compared to the 2022 levels.
The award levels will remain belew the 200% excepticnal circumstances Iimit
as permitted under the continuing Policy.

It should be noted that despite this increase in award levels, due to the
increase in the Company’s share price over the last year, it 1s anticipated that
the individual total 2023 PSP awards will be over a lesser number of shares
than the 2022 PSP awards.

For the main award, there will be three performance critera, bases on EPS,
relative TSR performance and a new'y incorporated ESG measure

The vasting of the enhanced one-off element will be based on EPS targets
incorporating a further leve’ of stretch, with vesting requiring a perfermance
level well above budget and guidance Further details of the targets are
provided on page 98.
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Comaonent of
remuneration

Surrrmrary of approacn

Base salary
and benefits

Base salary and benefits are reviewed annually on 1 April in hght of a number of factors, including the
approach to salary reviews more generally across the Group and the performance of the individuals
and the Company The base salaries of the Executive Directors have been increased by 7% for FY
2024, which 15 5% lower than the average annal increase over the year awarded to all staff:

Ben Brambhall - £356,048
Paul Cuff - £356,048
Snehal Shah - £300.744

The increase since 1 Aprl 2018 remains below that of the general level of salary iIncreases across the
Group since then

Tapal 1TApal lTaprd 1TAgnl 1Aprid
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Annualised
Co-CEQOs 0% C% 90% 60% 7.0% 4.5%
Average staff 3.0% 32% 32% 59% 12% 5 4%
1 Includes “he rmd-year cost-at=liar s salory, noreases gronted to are ployoes,

Pension

Defined contribution/cash supplements of 6% are paid and are aligned with the levels availlable for
new employeas. This is well below the rate provided to many employees who have joined the business
through the acquisitions we have made

Annual bonus

Payable subjact to the achievement of challenaing financial/strategic/personal performance
conditions. These are expected to Incorporate sustamabihty, culture and technology-based goals.
Malus and ctawback provisions apply

Maximum bonus cpportunity:

Ben Brambhall - 150% of salary
Paul Cuff - 150% of salary
Snehal Shah - 125% of salary

Long-term
incentives

Annual awards of performance shares. Shares vest, subject to the achievement of the performance
conditions, after three yvears and are subject to a further two-year holding penod. Malus and clawback
provisions apply

Maximum grant levels FY 2024

Ben Bramhall - 175% of salary
Paul Cuff - 176% of salary
Snehal Shah - 150% of salary

All-employee
share plans

Executive Dhirectors are entitled to parbicipate in all of the Company's employees share plans. including
the Share Save Flan, on the same terms as other employees

Share ownership
guidelines

Executive Directors are subject to a minimum shareholding requirement of 200% of salary with a
reguirement to maintain a shareholding post cessation of employmeant at 200% for one year and
100% for a second vear.

! trust that you find this report to be informative and transparent and | hope to receive your support for our decisions
this year as described in the Directors’ Remuneration Report at the AGM | am keen to encourage ongoing spen
dialogue with our shareholders on executive remuneration and welcome all engagement.

Ms

Margaret Snowdon OBE
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

21 June 2023
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Directors’ Remuneration Policy 2023

This Remuneration Policy, which has been approved by the Board, ¢contains the material required to be set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report for the purposes of Part 4 of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013, which amended The Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (the “DRR Regulations™)

The Directors' Remuneration Policy as set out in this section of the Directors’ Remuneration Report will take effect for
all payments made to Directors with effect from the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM (in place of the current Policy
approved at the 2020 AGM) The new Policy 1s very similar to the current one, save for a change cianfying how PSP
awards in good leaver situations will normally be retained and vest at the normal vesting date.

Elemert and purpose Policy ard operation Maximum Parformance measures

Base salary The base salary of each Executive Director  Annual increases will not n/a
takes INto account the performance of each exceed 7 5% + RPI or the
incividual and 1s set at an appropriate level  average increase of

to secure and retain the talent needed to employees across the Group

The core element of
pay. reflecting the
incividual's position

within the Company dehver the Group’s strategic objectives In any given year, whichever
and ex Saiaries are reviewed annually on 1 April is higher The level of
perience -

and are infiuenced by information from increase may deviate from
relevant comparator groups (referencing this maximum in the case of
the Group's competitors and public special circumstances, for
companies in other industries); the example increases in
performance of each individual Executive responsibilities or promotion.
Director, and average increases for As an example, this may
employees across the Group as a whole occur If the market

capitalisation of the
Company increases as the
shares are "re-rated” by
investors such that the
comparator group changes.

In this scenarno, the Board
would consider the increase
and the performance of the
Company. Other elements of
remuneration may also
change In these cases, ary
exceptional increase wili not
exceed 20% of salary a year

Benefits in kind Benefits currently imclude permanent health Benefits {exctuding any n/a

To provide market- insurance, hfe iInsurance, private medical relocation allowances) may

competitive benefits Insurance and car allowance and may also be provided up to an

valued by recipients  Include other benefits in the future In aggregate value of normally
certam tmited circumstances, relocation £35.000 for each Executive
ailowances rmay be necessary Director (indexed

nflation}.
All benefits are subject 1o annual review ro ation

to ensure they remain i~ hine wtr
market praclice,

Pension Executive Directors part cipating in The maximum employer’s n/a
the pension plan berefit from matching contrioution (or cash

annual Group contr.butions of 6% of base supplernerty 1s 6% of salary.
salary Executive Directors are entitled to
take a!l or part of therr pension
contributiors as a casn allowarce.

To provide
retirement benefits
Executive Directars'
emgloyer's contribution
levels are aligrned to the
contribution levels for the
majority of the workforce
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Flement ard purpose

Policy and cperation

Maximum

Performance measures

Annual bonus

To motivate
Executive Directors
and support the
delivery of the
Group's financial
and strategc
business target
over 3 one-year
operating cycle

Annual bonus plan levels and the
appropriateness of measures are reviewed
annually te ensure they continue to support
our strategy. Once set, pe-farmance
rmeasures and targets will generally remain
unchanged for the year, except to reflect
events {e.g. corgorate acawsitions or other
major transactiors) wrere the Committee
consicers (Lo be necessary In Its opINIon: o
make appropriate adjustments,

The Remuneration Committee retains the
flexibility to pay annual bonus outcomes In
cash and/or deferred shares (which may
aliow for d v denc roll-up)

Clawback and malus provisions apply as
explained v more detail In the notes to this
Palicy table

The maximum annual bonus
opportunity is 150% of base

salary For FY 2024, the

maximum cppertunity will be

150% of base salary for the
Co-CEQs and 125% for
the CFO

Bonuses will be payable
subject to the
achievement of
performance conditions
which will be set by the
Remuneration Committee

The targets may be
financial and/or personal
and strategic. The
intended weighting of
these measures 1s Not less
rthan 60% financial. Where
a shiding scale of targets 1s
used, attaining

the tnreshold tevei of
performance for any
measure will not tyoically
produce a payout of more
than 20% of the maximum
nortion of overall anncal
bonus attributable to that
measure, with a sliding
scale to full payout for
maximum performance.
Bonus payments will also
be subject to the
Committee considering
that the proeposed bonus
amounts, calculated by
reference to performance
against the targets,
appropnately reflect the
Company's overall
performance and
shareholders’ experience
If the Committee does not
believe this to be the case,
t retans the qiscretion

to adyust the bonus
cutturn accordingly

Performance
Share Plan

To motivate
Executive Directors
and incentivise the
delivery of sustained
performance over
the long term,

and tc oromeote
alignment with
shareholders’
interests

Awards under the PSP may be granted

as nil/nominal cost options wrich vest

to the extent perfor~ance conditions are
sat sfied over a period normally of at ieast
three years.

Awards will vest at the end of the specified
vesting period at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee and are subject
to a further holding period of two years (or
such shorter period so that the period from
the date of grant until the end of the
holding period will be equal to five years)

The PSP rules allow that the number of
sharas (or the cash equivalent) subject to
vested PSP awards may be increased to
reflect the value of dividends that would
have been oaig in respect of any record
dates falling between the grant of awards
and the expiry of any vesting period

Clawback and malus provisions apphed are
explained in more detail in the notes to this
Policy table

The market value of shares
to be awarded to Executive
Directors in respect of any
year will normally be up to
150% of base salary, with
awards of a maximum of
200% allowable in
exceptional circumstances

The Remuneration
Committee may impose
such conditions as it
considers appropriate
which must be satisfied
before any award will vest,

All awards made to
Executive Directors will be
subject to performance
conditions which measure
performance over a
penod normally no lass
than three years.

No more than 25% cf
awards vest for
attaining the threshold
level of performance.

The formulaic outcome

of all PSP performan~ce
measures will also be
subject to the Committee
constdering that the
proposed levels,
calculated by reference

to performance agains:
the targets appropriately
reflect the Company's
overall performance and
shareholders' experience.
If the Commuttee does net
believe this to be the case,
It retains the discretion

to adyust the PSP

cuttorn cccordingly
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Directors’ Remuneration Policy 2023 continued

Elerent and purpose

Policy and operatior

Maxirurn Performance measures

Share ownership
guidelines

To promote
stewardship and

to further align the
interests of
Executive Directors
with those of
shareholders

The share ownership guidelings encourage
Executive Directors to builld or maintain {as
appropriate) a shareholding 1n the Company

If any Executive Director does not meet the
guidelne, they will be expected to retain up
to 50% of the net of tax number of shares
vesting under any of the Company's
discreticnary share incentive arrangements
Uncluding any deferred banus shares} until
the guideline 1s met.

Executive Directors w il be required to
maintain a shareholding in the Comgpany for
a two-year period after stepping down
from that position, being in the first year,
the lesser of the guideline level or the
Executive Directors” actual relevant
shareholding at leaving and reducing to
50% of this requirement in the second year
For the purpose of this requirement, the
Executive Directors’ actual relevant
shareholding w il include shares vesting
under any of the Company’s discreticnary
share incentive arrangements (including
any deferred bonus shares) from awards
granted after the 2020 AGM but excludes
shares acquired and the release of shares
under share incentive plans where the grant
occurred prior to the adoption of the Policy
The Committee wiil retain the discretion to
remove the holding regutrernent if 1t is
deemea to be inappropr ate.

No maximum level but n/a
rot less tnan 200% of base

salary for any Executive

Drrector.

All-employee
share plans

To facilitate and
enceourage share
ownership oy staff,
thereby allowing
everyone to share In
the long-term
success of the
Company and align
interests with those
of shareholders

The Executive Directors will be entitled to
participate in all of the Company’s employee
share plans, including the Share Save Plan,
on the same terms as other empioyees

These all-employee share plans are
established under HMRC tax-advantaged
regimes and follow the usual form for
such plans.

The maximum participation Consistent with narmal
levels for all-employee share  practice, such awards
plans witl be the imits for such would not be subject to
plans set by HMRC from time performance conditions
tec time However, the Company

may impase lower Iimits on a

scheme-by-scheme basis.
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Flemert and purpose

Policy and eperatior

Maximum

Performance measures

Chairman and
Non-Executive
Directors’ fees

To enable the
Company to recruit
and retain Company
Chairs and Non-
Executive Directors
of the highest
caibre, at the
approprate cost
incentive plans

The fees paid to the Chairman and
Non-Executiwve Directors aim to be
competitive with other listed companies
of equivalent s.ze and complexity.

The fees payable to the Non-Executive
Directors are determined by the Board, with
the Chairman’s fees determined by the
Committee. No Director participates in
decisions regarding thair own fees,

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors do
not participate in any new cash or share

n aggregate.

disclosed

The Charman and Non-Executive Directors are
entitled to benefits relating to travel and office
support and such other benefits as may be

considered appropriate.

The Chairman s paid a singte fee for the role,
although he will be entitled to an additional fee
if he is reguired to perform any specific and

additional services

Non-Executive Directors receive a base fee
for the role Additional fees are paid for
acting as Senior Independent Directer, Chair
of the Audit, Remuneration or other Board
Committees or Designated Employee
Engagement NED to reflect the additional
time commutrment They will be entitled to an
additional fee If they are required to perform
ar~y specific and additionatl serv ces.

The aggregate fees and any  n/a
benefits of the Chairman and
Non-Executive Directors will

not exceed the imit from

me to time prescribed within

the Company's Articles of
Association for such fees,
currently £F500.000 p.a

Any increases In fee levels
made will be approprnately

Notes to the Policy table

1.

Stating maxima for each
element of the Remuneration
Policy: the Regulations and
related investor guidance
encourage companies to disclose
a cap within which each element
of the Directors’ Remuneration
Policy will operate. Where
maximum amounts for elements
of remuneration have been

set within the Policy, these will
operate simply as caps and are
not indicative of any aspiration

Travel and hospitality: wnile the
Committee does not consider

it to form part of benefits in the
normal usage of that term, it

has been advised that corporate
hospitality, whether paid for by
the Company or ancther, and
business travel for Directors (and
in exceptional circumstances their
families) may technically come
within the applicable rules, and so
the Committee expressly reserves
the right for the Committee to
authorise such activities

Past obligations: in addition

to the above elements of
remunearation, any commitment
made prior to, but due to be
fulfilled after, the appruval

and implementation of this
Remuneration Policy will

be Foncured.
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4. Malus/clawback: the Committee

may apply malus (being the ability
to withhold or reduce a payment/
vesting) and clawback (the

ability to reclaim some or all of

a payment/vesting) to an award
under the annual bonus or PSP
where there are circumstances
which would justify such action

The relevant circumstances where
these powers of recovery may
operate include:

+ the Company materaliy
misstated its financial results
for any reascn and that
misstatement would result
ar resulted either directly or
indirectly in an award being
granted or vesting to a greater
extent than would have been
the case had that misstatement
not been made,

* the extent to which any
performance target and/or any
other condition was satisfied
was based on an error, ¢r
on inaccurate or misleading
information or assumptions
which resulted either directiy
or indirectly in an award being
granted or vesting to a greater
extent than would have been
the case had that error not
been made,

+ circumstances arose (or
continued to arise) during the
vesting pericd (ncluding any
holding period) of an award
which would have warranted
the summary dismissal of the
participant; or

* there is a sufficiently significant
impact on the reputation of the
Company (ncluding a Company
fallure) to justify the operation
of malus or clawback

Normally, clawback can operate
for up to two years following the
vesting of an award.

Performance conditions: the
performance-related elements of
remuneration take into account
the Group's risk policies and
systems, and are designed to align
the senior executives' interests
with those of shareholders. The
Committee reviews the metrics
used and targets set for the
Group Executive Directors and
senior management (not Just the
Executive Directors) every year,

in order to ensure that they are
aligned with the Group's strategy
and to ensure an appropriate level
of consistency

. Differences between the policy

in respect of remuneration for
Directors and the policy on
remuneration for other staff:
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Notes to the Policy table

continued
while the apprepnate benchmarks
vary by role. the Company
seeks to apply the philosophy
behind this palicy acrass the
Company as a whole Where the
Group's pay policy for Directors
differs from its pay polices for
groups of staff, this reflects the
appropriate market rate position
and/or typical practice for the
relevant roles The Company takes
into account pay levels, bonus
opportunity and share awards
applied across the Group as a
whale when setting the Executive
Directors’ Remuneration Policy.

7. Committee discretions: the
Committee wili operate the annual
bonus plan and PSP according
to their respective rules and
the above Remuneration Policy
table. The Commuttee retains
discretion, consistent with market
practice, iIna number of respects,
inrelation to the operation and
administration of these plans
This discretion includes, but 1s not
limited to, the following.

the selection of participants;
the timing of grant of awards;

the size of an award/bonus
opportunity subject to the
maximum imits set out in the
Remuneration Policy table and
the rules of the relevant plan:

the determination of
performance against targets
and resultant vesting/payouts;
discretion required when
dealing with a change of
control or restructuring of

the Comeany:

determination of the treatment
of leavers based on the rules
of the relevant plan and the
appropriate treatment chosen,

adwustments reguired In certain
circumstances (e g rights issue,
corporate restructuring events
and special dividends); and

the annual review of
performance measdJres,
weight.ngs and targets from
year to year

in add tion, while performance
measures and targets used In
the annua bonus plan and PSP
will generally remarn unaltered,
If events occur which the
Comm ttee determines wouid
make & different or amenaad
target a fairer measure of
performance, s.ch amended
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or different targets can be set
provided they are not matenally
more or less difficuit to satisfy,
having regard to the event

N gquestion

Any use of the above discretion
waould, where relevant, be
explained in the Annual Report
on Directors’ Remuneration and
may. where appropriate and
practicable, be the subject of
consultation with the Company's
major shareholders

The Committee may make minor
armendments to the Rermuneration
Policy set out above for regulatory,
exchange control, tax or
administrative purposes or to take
account of a change in legislation,
without obtaining shareholder
approval for that amendment,

Remuneration policy

on recruitment

The Company's recruitrment
remuneration polcy aims to give

the Committee sufficient flexibility

to secure the appointmeant and
promotion of high-calibre executives
to strengthen the management team
and secure the skill sets to deliver our
strategic aims

in terms of the principles for setting a
package for a new Executive Director,
the starting paint for the Committee
will be to apply the Remuneration
Paolicy for Executive Directors as set
out above and structure a package in
accordance with that Policy. Consistent
with the DRR Regulations, any caps
contained within the Policy for fixed
pay do not apply to new recruits,
although the Committee would not
envisage exceeding these caps in
practice unless absolutely necessary.

The annual bonus plan and PSP,
including the maximum award levels,
wil operate as deta led in the general
Remuneration Policy in relation

to any newly appointed Executive
Director For an internal appointment,
any variab.e pay element awarded

n respect of the prior role may
either continue on :ts original terms
or be adjusted to reflect the new
appoeintment as approprate.

For both external and internal
appontments, the Committee may
agree that the Company wi'l meet
certain reiocation expenses as
consiclers appropriate.

For externa cand:dates, t may be
necessary to make additional awards
in connection with the recrutment
to buy out awards forfeited by the

individual on leaving a previous
employer. Any recruitment-related
awards which are not buyouts will
be subject te the imits of the annual
bonus plan and PSP as stated in

the general policy Details of any
recruitment-related awards will be
appropriately disclosed

For any buyouts the Company will

not pay more than 1s necessary !
in the view of the Committee and

will be imited in value to what the

Committee considers to be a farr

estimate of the value of the awards

foregone The Committee will in all

cases seek, in the first instance, to |
deliver any such awards under the

terms of the existing annual bonus

pian and PSP. It may, hawever, be

necessary in some cases to make

buyout awards on terms that are

more bespoke than the existing

annual banus plan and PSP

All buyouts, whether under the

annual bonus plan, PSP or otherwise,

will take due account of the service

obligations and performance

reguirements for any remuneration

relinguished by the individual

when leaving a previous employer

The Cammittee wil' seek, where

itis practicable to do so, to make

buyouts subject to what are, in its

opinion, comparable requirements in

respect of service and performance.

However, the Committea may choose

to relax this reguirement in certan

cases, such as where the service |
and/or performance requirements
are matenally completed, or where
such factors are, in the view of the
Committee, reflected in some other
way, such as a significant discount
to the face value of the awards
forfeited, and where the Committee
considers it to be in the interests

of shareholoers,

Service contracts

Executive Directors

Ben Bramhall and Paul Cuff enterea
Into a service agreement wth the
Company that was effective upon
adm.ssion and dated 16 February
2017 Snehal Shah entered into a

serv ce agreement w th the Company
that was effective 28 May 2019, the
date of his empioyment beginning,
although Snehal was not appomnted
as Chief Financial Officer unt.| FCA
approva was recerved on 9 July 2079
The policy 1s that each Executive
Director’s service agreement should
be of indefnite duration, subject

to termination by the Company

or the :ndividual on no more than

12 rmontrs noice.
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The service aygreements of all
Executive Directors, which are
avallable for inspection at the
Company's registered office, comply
with this policy.

* the Executive Directors’ service
agreements are terminable by
either party on not less than nine
months' written notice for the
Co-CEOQ, six menths for the CFO
or immediately upon payment in
lieu of notice, and contain & garden
leave clause; and

* Ineach case any payment in
lieu of notice will be calculated
by reference to base salary and
contractual benefits only, and
will not include any entitlement
to bonus.

Chairman and

Non-Executive Directors

The appointments of Alan Bannatyne
and Margaret Snowdeon OBE are
subject to the terms of letters of
appointment agreed between each
of them and the Company dated

24 January 2017, the appomntment of
Sarah Ing s subject to the terms of a
letter of appointment dated 12 March
2019 and the appointment of Aisling
Kennedy is subject to the terms

of a letter of appointment dated

22 February 2023 Tney are not
entitled to receive any compensation
on termination of therr appointrment
(other than payment in respect of a
notice period where notice is served)
and are not entitlted to participate in
the Company’s share plans, bonus
arrangements or pension schemes

They are entitled to be reimbursed all
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses
incurred n the proper performance
of their duties,

Their appointment may be
terminated at any trme upon three
months’ written notice by either party
and with immediate effect in certain
circumstances The appointment may
also be terminated pursuant to the
Articles or as otherwise required by
law They are subject to retirement
by rotation every three years under
the Articles but intend to retire and
submit themselves for re-election by
shareholders each year at the Annual
General Meeting.

Remuneration policy

on termination

The Committee will consider
treatments cn a termination having
regard to all of the relevant facts
and circumstances available at that
time. This pclicy applies both to any
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negotiations linked to nctice periods
on a terminaticn and any treatments
that the Committee may choose to
apply under the discretions available
to it under the terms of the annual
bonus plan and PSP. The potential
treatments on termination under
these plans are as follows:

Annual bonus plan

If an Executive Birector resigns or

is dismissed for cause before the
bonus payment date, the right to
receive any bonus normatly lapses
(unless the Committee determines
otherwise). If an Executive Director
ceases employment before the bonus
date because of death, injury, 1l
health, disability or any other reascn
determined by the Committee,

such bonus will be payable as the
Committee in its absolute discretion
determines taking intc account

the circumstances for leaving, tme
in employment and performance.
Similar treatment witl apply In the
event of a change in caontrol of

the Company.

Performance Share Plan (PSP)
The Committee’s Policy is in
accordance with the rules of the
Performance Share Plan 2017, I,
during the performance or vesting
period, a participant:

» resigns or is dismissed for cause,
awards wili ncrmally lapse in
full; and

* ceases to be employed due to
death, Il heaith, injury or disability,
retirement with the agreement
of the participant’'s employer,
redundancy, the sale or transfer
of the participant's employing
company or business out of the
Group (cther than on change
of control), or for other reasons
specifically approved by the
Committee, the award shall be
retained and will vest at the naormal
vasting date (unless the Committee
exercises its discretion to allow
awards to vest early on cessation
N exceptional circumstances) to
the extent that the Committee
determines. The Committee will
determine the extent to which
an award will vest taking into
account the extent to which the
performance conditions have been
met and, where appropriate, the
period that has expired to the date
of cessation.

If & participant ceases employment
during the holding period,
performance-vested awards wil
normally be retained and vest as

normal at the end of the holding
period (unless the Committee
exercises its discretion to allow
awards to vest early on cessation in
suitable cases).

The all-staff Share Save scheme
provides treatments for leavers in line
with HMRC rules for such plans.

The Company has the power tc enter
into settlement agreements with
Directers and to pay compensation
to settle potential legal clams.

In addition, and consistent with
market practice. in the event of

the termination of an Executive
Director, the Company may make a
contribution towards that individual’s
legal fees and fees for cutplacement
services as part of a negotiated
settlement. Any such fees will be
disclosed as part of the detail of
termination arrangements.

External appointments

The Cempany’s policy on external
appointments permits an Executive
Director, subject tc the approval

of the Chairman, to serve as a
Non-Executive Director for normally
no mere than cne other organisation
where this does not conflict with the
individual's duties to the Company.
When an Executive Director takes
such a role, they may be entitled to
retain any fees which they earn from
that appointment.

Statement of consideration

of employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company

The Committee receives regular
updates on overall pay and
conditions in the Company

which enable it to take the wider
workforce remuneration into
account when setting the policy

for executive remuneration. Whilst
the Committee does not consult
directly with employees as part of
the process for reviewing executive
pay, the Committee does receive
insights from the broader employee
population via an Employee
Engagement Group Accordingly, the
Committee confirms that the new
Palicy has been designed with due
regard to the policy for remuneration
of employees across the Group

The Remuneration Policy for other
employees is based on broadly
consistent principles as described
Annual salary reviews across the
Company take into account Company
performance, relevant pay and market
conaditions ard salary levels for similar
roles in comparable companies.
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Statement of consideration

of employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company
continued

Other members of senior
management participate in similar
annual bonus arrangements to the
Executive Directors, although award
s1zes vary by organisational level
Share incentive awards may also be
granted tc a broader population than
the Executive Drectors although
the award sizes and terms of the
awards vary. The Company operates
discretionary bonus schemes for
eligible groups of employeas under
which a bonus is payable subject

to the achievement of appropriate
targets. All eligible employees may
participate in the Company’s Share
Save scheme on identical terms.

Statement of consideration

of shareholders’ views

The Commttee considers
shareholder views received during
the year and at each AGM, as well
as guidance from shareholder
representative bodies more broadly,
when determining the Remuneration
Palicy and its implementation

The Committee seeks to bulld an
active and productive dialogue with
investors on developments on the

remuneration aspects of corporate
governance generally and it will
consult with majer sharehelders

in advance of any matenal change
to the structure and/or operat.on
of the Policy and will seek formal
shareholder approval for any such
change If required

lllustrations of application of the
Directors’ Remuneration Policy
The charts below show how the
Remuneration Policy set cut

above will be applied for Executive
Directeors in FY 2024 based on three
performance scenarios and using the
assumptions below

Minimum

Consists of base salary, benefits and pension:

« base salary is the salary to be paid in FY 2024,

= benefits measured as benefits paid in the year ended 31 March 2023, and

= pension measured as the defined contribution or cash atlowance in lieu of Company
contributions of 6%

Target

Based on what the Executive Director would receive if performance were in line with

expectations or on target (excluding share price appreciation and dividends):

= annual bonus consists of the on-target bonus (50% of maximum opportunity used for
hustrative purposes); and

= PSP consists of the threshola level of vesting (25% vesting) under the PSP,

Maximum

and dividends)

Based on the maximum remuneration rece vable {excluding share price appreciation

= apnual bonus: consists of maximum bonus of 150% of salary for the Co-CEQs and 125%
of salary for the CFO, and

* PSP consists of the face value of awards {(175% of base salary for Co-CEQs and 150% of
base salary for the CFO) unaer the PSP,

Maximum with 50% share
price growth

Maximum scenario plus the value resulting from a share price growth of 50% in relation to
the PSP award
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Annual report on remuneration

Remuneratlon Committee membership

The Remuneration Committee is chared by Margaret Snowdon OBE. who is Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director. Alan Bannatyne, Sarah Ing ang Aisling Kennedy are also members of the Committee. Tom Cross Brown
served on the Commuttee until he stepped down from the Board in September 2022, Aisling Kennedy was appointed
to the Committee in February 2023 The Commuttee meets at least twice a year and at such other times as the Chair
of the Committee shall require or as the Board may direct. The Committee met five times during the yvear. All members
attended every Committee meeting they were eligible to attend throughout the year.

Other individuals, such as the Co-Chief Executive Officers, the Chief Financial Officer, the HR Director and external
professional adwisers, were invited to attend for all or part of any meeting as and when appropriate and necessary.

The purpcse of the Committee I1s to establish a formal and transparent procedure for developing the RPolicy on
remuneration in accordance with the Code and to set the remuneration of the Chairman and selected individuals with
due account taken of all relevant factors such as individual and Group performance as well as remuneration payable
by companies of a comparable size and complexity.

The Committee has formal terms of reference which are reviewed annually and can be viewed on the Company's
website www Xpsgroup.com.

Adyvisers

FIT Remuneration Consuitants LLP (FIT), signatory to the Remuneration Consultants Group's Code of Conduct,

was appointed by the Committea. FIT has been retained to provide advice to the Committee on matters relating to
executive remuneration. FiT provided no other services to the Company and, accordingly, the Committee was satisfied
that the advice provided by FIT was objective and independent. FIT's fees in respect of FY 2023 were £54,282 (FY
2022, £63,902). FIT's fees are charged on the basis of the firm's standard terms of businass for advice provided

The following (audited) section provides details of how the Directors were paid during the f.nancial year to
31 March 2023,

Taxable Long-term Total Total Total

Salary/fees cenefirs Bonus? ncentives? Persigr?  remuneratior fixed pay  variable pay

Director £ £ £ [ F E £ £
Executive Directors

Ben Bramhall 2023 332,755 12,993 499,133 367,030 18,701 1,230,612 364,449 866,163

2022 313,920 .7 371,995 178,403 17.860 893195 342797 550,398

Paul Cuff 2023 332,755 12,793 499,133 367,030 18,701 1,230,412 364,249 . 866,163

2022 313,920 10,817 371,995 178,403 17,860 892,995 342,597 550,398

Snehai Shah 2023 281,070 12,523 316,203 253,288 15,994 879,078 309,587 569,491

2022 265160 10,736 235.66] 147739 15,467 674,763 291363 383,400

Non-Executive Directors

Ala~ Bannatyne® - 2023 100,398 - — - - 100,398 100,398 -
h

Charman of Board and 5525 75,000 - - - — 75000 75000 -

Committee

Margaret Snowdon 2023 72,822 - - - - 72,822 72,822 -

OBE - Chair of

Remuneration 2022 70,000 — — — — 70,000 70,000 —

Committee, Senicr

Independent NED and

Designated Employee

Engagement NED

Sarah Ing - 2023 70,644 - - - - 70,644 70,644 -

Chair of Audit & Risk

adeSustainablhty 2022 65000 — — - - 65,000 65000 -

Committees

Aisling Kenredy® 2023 6,250 - - - - 6,250 6,250 -

Tom Cross Brown’ 2023 52,727 - - - - 52,727 52,727 -

- former Chairman

of Roard 2022 120,000 - — — — 120,000 120000 —

Total 2023 1,24942 38,309 1,314,469 987,348 53,396 3,642,943 1,341,126 2,301,817

2022 1.223.000 32570 979,651 504545 51187 2,790,853 1,306,757 1484196
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Advisers continued
1 Eachof the Execulive Directors s enit ed to a range of bene’its, compris ng germanent hea th insurance, life insurance, prvaze med cal
insurance and ¢ar allowance The Non-Exccut ve Directors do not recave otner benef ts

ko

No element of annua bonus was deferred in respec: 0f bonuses shown. Their curren: bene’ic’al shareho.d ngs are shown on page 91

[l

The outiurn for the November 2020 PSP which vesis in November 2023 s expecied Lo be 66 2% and the vesung share pr ce has been
estimated at 159 14p based on the three-month average share pr ce ended 31 March 2023 The grant share price “or the award was 124p and
according y the re evan: f gures arc refleciive of an nerease of 28% in the Company's share price compar ng the award price to the vesing
price Detars of the performance measares and targeis app. cab e to the 2020 PSP are set oul on page 93 The outidrn ‘or the Sepiember
2019 PSP wh ch vested on 18 Sepiember 2022 was 50% and :he value has been updaied ref ecting the actaal vesiing share pr ce of 123p
and the dividend equ-va ents

~

Pension vaides shown al re ate eizher 1o pens on conir butions or 20 cash al owances in heu o' pens on

o

Appointed Non-Execu: ve Chairman on 30 November 2022

o3}

Appo nied to the Board on 22 February 2023

~d

Stepped down from the Board on 8 Septemiber 2022

FY 202% annual bonus (audited)
The Exacutive Directors’ annual bonus targets were set at the beginning of the financial year. The financial targets which
account for 75% of the annua! bonus were set based on Group PBT. The Group PBT targets set are shown below,

Payout

Thresrold Target Maximum Actual (% of this

£°000 £'000 £'000 F'000 elaTent)

Group ad; PBT (75% of potential) 28,617 30123 31,629 33.358 100%

The personat performance goals which account for 25% of the annual bonus were agreed with each Executive Director
and were based on a range of strategic and other objectives set at the start of the year The targets were princigally
designed to focus and reward the Executive Directors for accomphshing strategic goals which directly support the
Company's strategy Details of the measures and performance, to the extent they are not commercially sensitive, are
outlined below.

Ben Bramhal! and Paul Cuff - Co-CEQs

Measure Target Performance Assassmanrt
Maintain high level of staff Staff approval rating at Staff satisfaction at an all tme high with 100%
satisfaction and morale least 90% 8% reporting that XPS5 15 a great place to
work and with an exceptional Net Promoter
Score of +33
Progress (nciusion & Reduce gender pay gap Gender pay gap and gender Lonus gap 10G%
Diversity agenda have reduced and ethnicity pay gap
reported earler than legally requirea
Plan for 30% female Plan and early actions agreed
senor managers by 2027
Develop market-ieading pensionrs Platform on track for On track against an accelerated plan 100%
administrat on platform deployment for new and
selected cuents
Maintain migh level of client Chent satisfaction level Ach.eveo ana feedback highlighted that 100%
satisfaction at least 80% chents trust XPS and appreciate cur
friendly approach
Pursue and execute accretive Successiul The acquisitior of Penfida nas extended our  100%
acauisitions as approved by implementation of bolt-on services to clients to include independent
the Board acquisitions in ire with SPONSor covenant adv ce
agreed busiress case In add ton, tne Michael J Fleld 2022
acguisition integrated successfully
As executive sponsor of Senior commitment to =xcellent progress evidenced by being 100%

Sustairabilty Committee, ensure
sustanability 's embedded in XPS
services and infrastructure

ambitious sustainability
targets and progress
each susta:naoility piliar
to agreeg 'evels

re-confirmed as a signatory to the new UK
Stewardsnip Cone

20
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Snehal Shah - CFG

Measure Target Parformarce Assessment
Improve QCF conversion Above S0% Achieved 100%
Successful AAF 01/20 audit No medium or No exceptions. PASA accreditation 100%

h gher exceptions I also achievec

tre assessment
Fully develop sustamnability Clear and comprehensive  Committed to a scierce-based net zero 100%
narrative in ARA and website with ambitious and strategy that aligns with the Paris Agreement
Sustainability KPIs defined, meaningful targets
measured and reported
Increase interaction with non- Secure at least one new Ten new Institutional investors added in the 100%

shareholders and analysts and
improve shareholder
communication

institutional investor

Successfully plan and
execute a Capital Markets
Event for analysts and
nstitutional Investors

year, with three of these in the top 20 holders

Completed and excellent feedback received

Each objective is measurable (albeit some detall has been removed given the commercially sensitive nature), with target
achievement levels evidenced by activities and outcomes. The Remuneration Committee then assessed performance

against each objective in each category on the basis of evidenced outcomes and rated the level of achieverment.

in light of the high standards of attainment of each of the Executive Directors, the Remuneration Committee assessed
that performance against the targets had been met in full and would result in 100% of maximum for this etement of
bonus to be pavable to the Co-CEOs and CFC.

Thrs results inan outcome In aggregate of 100% of maximum for the Co-CEOs and CFO.

Cutcomes

Ben Paul Snehal

Weightings Brarmnall Cuff Sran

Financial performance (% of this elerment) 75% 100% 100% 100%
Strategic performance (% of this element) 25% 100% 100% 100%
Total actual performance outcome (% of maximurm) 100% 100% 100%
Total actual performance outcome (% of salary) 150% 150% N25%
Total actual performance outcome (£) £499133 £499133 £316.203

Statement of Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited)
For each Director, the total number of Directers' interests in shares at 31 March 2023 or at the date of stepping down
from the Board f earlier was as follows:

Margaret

Ben Paul Srenal  Taom Cross Alan Srowdon Sarah Aishng
Director Bramnall Cuftf Shan Browr Bannatyne OBF Irg Kennedy
Number of ordinary shares held
as at 31 March 2023 1,699,545 967,191 66,830 38,861 36,594 30,303 15,000 -
Share ownership requirement
(% of salary) 200% 200% 200% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Share ownership reguirement met? Y Y N n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Holding as % of March 2023 salary 817% 465% 38%' n/a n/a n/a n/a n/fa
Number of ordinary shares held
as at 31 March 2022 1,618,848 886,490 - 38.861 36,594 30,303 15,000 —

1 In -ne wth the D rectors Remuneraton Policy Sneha Shah w | retan 50% of vesied shares ant | he reaches the 200% ownership requirement

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023

91

2IUBLIIAOD



Annual report on remuneration centinued

Statement of Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited) contmnued
The shareholdings above include those held by Directors and their respective connected persons. There were no
changes in the Directors’ interests in shares between 31 March 2023 and 21 June 2023.

Under the share ownership guidelines. the Executive Directors are required to builld and maintain a shareho!ding
equivalent to at least 200% of salary and are required to mamntamn a shareholding for a period after leaving the Board.

Awards granted in the year under the PSP (audited)
The following nominal cost option PSP awards were granted in July 2022

These awards vest In 2025 subject to performance relating to: {i) adjusted EPS targets as to 75% of the award; and (1)
relative TSR targets as to the remaiming 25% of the award. The details of these targets are shown in the "Qutstanding
share plan awards” section below.

Numoer of
Basis of award Face value of shares under Date of
Director Date of grant (% of salary) awards at grant award vesting
Ben Bramhali 1July 2022 150% £499132 383,948 July 2025
Pauj Cuff 1July 2022 150% £499,132 383,948 July 2025
Snehal Shah 1July 2022 125% £351.336 270,260 July 2025
1 Based on the share price ¢f £1 30 on 30 June 2022
Outstanding share plan awards (audited)
Detaits of all outstanding PSP awards made to Executive Directors are set out beiow:
Interests
Interestis ~eld awarded rterests nigrests nterests reld
Exercise at 31 Marcr  during tne vested dunrg lapsed during at 31 March Vostirg
Director Date of grart price 2022 year the year tre year 2023 periad
Ben 18 September 2019 QQ5p 313043 - 56,5217 156,522 —  September
Bramhall 2022
30 November 2020 0 0bp 348 387 — — - 348,387 November
2023
1 July 2021 O C5p 341217 — — — 341217 July 2024
1 Jduly 2022 0 05p - 383948 - - 383,948 July 2025
Paul Cuff 18 September 2019 0O 05p 313043 — 156 5272 156,522 —  September
2022
30 November 2020 O 05p 348 387 - - — 348,387 Novemper
2023
1 July 2021 0.05p 341,217 — — — 341,217 July 2024
1July 2022 0.05p - 383948 — — 383,948 July 2025
Snehal 18 September 2019 0.05p 259239 — 29,6193 129,620 —  September
Shah 2022
30 November 2020 0.05p 240,423 — — — 240,423 November
2023
1 July 2027 0.05p 240181 — — - 240181 July 2024
1 July 2022 CO5p — 270,260 — — 270,260 July 2025

1 On12 Ociober 2022 Ber Bramha | exerc sed awards over 156,521 shares granted on 18 September 2019 and so'd 75,820 shares to seit e
resuliant lax and soc a secJdr bty obigalions The ¢ 0s ng share prce on “he day of exerc se was £1 2925

2 On12 Qcrober 2022, Pau Cu*f exerc sed awards over 156,52" shares granzed on 18 September 2012 and so d 75820 shares o scit e
resuliant tax and soc & secuf [y ok igarons The ¢ os ng share prce on the day of exarc se was 712926

3 On12 Qciober 2022, Sneha Shah exerc sed awards over 22 612 shares granted on 18 September 2019 and soid 62 789 sharcs to sett e
resu-lant fax and soc 2 securty ol igatons The c os ng stare prce on re day of exarc se was £12925

4 The highes: mid-marke: pr.ce ¢ the Campany's ord nary shares dur ng tne year ended 31 March 2023 was £1 68 and tne owes was L1145
Tne year-end pr ce was Z1 60
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Vesting outcomes for the FY 2021 PSP awards {(granted in November 2020)

These awards comprise nominal cost options with an exercise price of 0.05p per option and vest In November 2023
subject to performance relating to: (i) adjusted earmings per share (EPS) targets as to 50% of the award; and (1)
relative total shareholder return (TSR) targets as tc the remaining 50% of the award.

The details of the EPS and TSR target ranges and perfermance against them are shown in the table below.

Diluted adjusted EPS for tne three-year period to tne end of FY 2023 Partion of award vestirg

Compound annual growth «n EPS (CAG) of less than 3% above CPI 0%

CAG of 3% above CPI 25%

CAG of between 3% and 7% above CPI Between 25% and 100% on & straight-line basis
CAG of 7% or more above CPI 1C0%

Actual performance’;
CAG of 3.3% above CPI 33%

1 Measurad by norma s ng La allow for the use of shares he'd by the EBT to sett e bonus paymenis and the .mpact of IFRS 16, to ensure the
ouitdrn s an accurate ref ec: on of operat ona performance

XPS Pensions Groun's TSR ranking vs a comparator groun of companies Portion of award vesting

Below median 0%

Median 25%

Between median and upper quartile Between 25% and 100% on a straight-line basis
Upper quartile 100%

Actual performance?:
Above upper quartile 100%

2 BRased on per‘ermance to the end of May This s an estmate as TSR performance wil be measured 1o the third anrniversary of the date of
gran. which 1s 30 November 2023

The TSR comparator group consists of the constituents of the FTSE Small Cap Index {(excluding investment trusts) at
the start of the performance peried.

Based on the above the expected percentage of the total award vesting 1s 66.2% of maximum. Details of the shares
under award and their eslimaled value (based on the three-mcnth average share price at 31 March 2023 of 158.14p per
share) are as follows:

Estimated

Maximum Number Numoer value

numper of of smares of shares vesting

Executive shares to vest to laose £
Ben Bramhali 348,387 230632 17,755 367030
Paul Cuff 348,387 230632 N7755 367030
Sneha! Shah 240,423 159,160 81,263 253,288

1 Based on the three-month average share prce o 31 March 2023

The awards also receive the value of dividend eqguivalents
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Annual report on remuneration continued

FY 2022 PSP awards (granted in July 2021)

These awards comorise nominal cost options with an exercise price of 0.05p per option and vest in 2024 subject to
performance relating to' (i) adjusted earnings per share (EPS) targets as to 75% of the award: and (1i) relative total
shareholder return (TSR) targets as to the remaining 25% of the award The EPS target range was set considering both
the internal and external expectations for EPS performance over the next three years, The details of the EPS and TSR
target ranges are shown ¢ the table below.

nluted adjusted EPS' for tre tnree-year oenad to the erd of FY 2024 Porlior of award vesting

Compound annual growth in ERPS (CAG) of less than 3% above CPI 0%

CAG of 3% above CPI 25%

CAG between 3% and 7% above CPI Between 25% and 100% on a straight-line basis

CAG of 7% or more above CP) 100% ‘

1 Measdred by narmal s ng “or the impac: of IFRS 16, 1o ensure the outturn 1s an accurate re eclion of operal ona performance

XPS Pensiors Groun's TER rarking vs 8 comparater grouet of companies Porton of awara vesting

Below median 0%

Median 25%

Between median and upper quartile Between 25% and 100% on g straight-hine basis
Upper guartile 100%

2 The TSR Comparaiar Group conssts of ihe consatiaents of the FTSE Smal: Cap Index (exc ud ng 'nvesimen: trusts) at the start of the
performance per od

FY 2023 PSP awards (granted in July 2022)

These awards comprise nominal cost options with an exercise price of 0.05p per option and vest in 2025 subject to
performance relating to: (1) adjusted earmngs per share (EPS) targets as to 75% of the award: and (1) relative total
shareholder return (TSR) targets as to the remaiming 25% of the award The EPS target range was set considering both
the internal and external expectations for EPS performance over the next three years, The details of the EPS and TSR
target ranges are shown in the table below

Dilutea adjusted ERPS' for trg Lrree-year period to tre end of FY 2025 Portion of award vesting

Compound annual growth in EPS (CAG) of less than 5% 0%

CAG of 5% 25%

CAG of between 5% and 10% Between 25% and 100% on a straight-fine basis ;
CAG of 10% or more 100%

T Measurcd on a consiant tax rate bass, 10 cnsare the outturn s an accuarate ref ect on of operat onal performance

XPS Pensiors Group's TSR ranwing vs a combarator group’ of companies Portior of award vesting

Below median 0%

Median 25%

Between mediar. ang upper quartle Between 25% and 100% on a straight-line basis
Upper quartile 100%

2 The TSR Comparator Group cons 5.5 of the const tuents of the FT5E Sma Cap Index (exciud ng nvesiment rusts) at the siart of the
performance per od

External Board appointments
The Executive Directors did not hola any external d rectorships during the year The approved Directors’ Remuneration
Policy makes prowvision for them to retan any fees for one appointment

Payments to past Directors (audited)
There were NG payments to past Directors . the financeal year FY 2023 (FY 2022, £nil)

Payments for loss of office (audited)
No payments were made tc any Director in respect of loss of office in the financial year FY 2023 (FY 2022 £nil).
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Review of past performance and CEO remuneration table (unaudited)

The graph below shows the TSR of the Company and the FTSE Sma!l Cap Index (excluding investment trusts) over the
period from admission to 31 March 2023 This is considered an appropriate comparator for XPS Pensions Group, which

is a constituent of the FTSE Sma!l Cap Index.

Total shareholder return
Source: Refinitiv Datastream
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The table below shows the Co-CEOs' single total figure of remuneration since admission and the level (as a percentage

of maxim.m award) o° payouts uncer the incentive plans:

Lorg-term

mcentive

Single total Arnual bonus vesting rates

figure of payout as % as % of

rRMIINArATINN nf mavirmum Mmaximum

2023 Ben Bramhall £1,230,6M 100% 66.2%'
Paul Cuff £1,230,4m 100% 66.2%'

2022 Ben Bramball £893,195 79%7 38%
Paul Cuff £892,995 79%? 38%

2021 Ben Bramhall £692 74 68% 21%
Paul Cuff £692 541 68% 21%

2020 Ber Brambhal! £569,272 30%* 40%
Paul Cuff £569,272 30%* 40%

2019 Ben Bramhall £362.803 12%* n/a
Paul Cuff £362,803 12%* n/a

2018 Ben Bramhall £546,138 79% n/a
Paul Cuff £545 724 79% n/a

2017 Ben Bramhall £286.882 31% n/a
Paul Cuff F4,179.695 3% n/a

S5UBLIBADD

1 The vesting rate re ates to the November 2020 award tha: 's due to ves: n November 2023 and s, in part, based on estimated vest ng evels
a: 31 March 2023

2 The bonus was reduced w th the agreemen: of the Co-CEQs from the formulaic outcome of 86%
3 The bonus was reduced w th the agreemen: of the Co-CEQs ‘rom the formulaic outcome of 50%

4 The bonus was reduced w th the agreemen: o the Co-CEQs “rom the farmulaic cutcome of 54%
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Percentage change in remuneration of Directors and employees (unaudited)
The table below presents the year on year % change in remuneration received by each Director, compared with the
change in remunearation receved by all XPS Pensions Group staff )

Percentage change i remyneration Percenlage charge In remuneration Percentage change in remuneration
frorm 31/03/2020 to 31/03,/2021 from 31/03/2021 to 31/03/2022 from 31/03/2022 to 31/03/2023
Percentage Percertage Percentage
change :n  Parcertage Percentage change ir Percertage Percentage change in Percentage Percentage
Dase crarge in cnange 1N Dase change in chanrgeIn base change in change in
salary perefits borus salary oerefits DONUS salary benefits bonus
% % % % % % % % %
Ben Bramhall 0% — 127% 9% 2% 27% 6% 18% 29%
Paul Cuff C% 2% 127% 9% 2% 27% 6% 18% 29%
Snenal Shah’ 20% 23% 177% 9% 2% 27% 6% 17% 29% '
Tam Cross Brown? 0% - - 0% - — (56%) - -
Alan Bannatyne 0% — — 0% — — 34% - -
Margaret Snowdon
OBE 4% — - 0% - — 4% - -
Sarah Ing? 14% — — % — — 9% - -
Alsling Kerredy! — — — — — — - - -
All UK emplovees 3 2% 1% 68% 5 9% (23% 4% 10% 4% 46% 5

1 Sreha Shah was appo.nied as a D recior on 28 May 2019, accord ngly the percentage di‘ference shown represents a comparison between g
fu . year (FY 2021) and a parl year (FY 2020}

2 Tom Cross Brawn sicpped down as a Direcior on 8 Sepiember 2022, accord ngly the percentage d “ference shown represents a compar son
hetween a ful year (FY 2022y and a parL year (FY 2023)
3 Sarah Ing was appo nted as Non-Execuuve D recior on 17 May 2019, according y the percentage o *ference shown represents a compar son

between a ‘ulyear (FY 2021y and a part year (FY 2020}
4 Ais ing Kennody was appo ntegd as Non-Execu: ve D recior on 22 Febraary 2023
CEO pay (unaudited)

The table below sets out the pay ratos for the Group Co-Chief Sxecutve Officers in relation to the equivalent pay
for the lower cuart le. med an a~d uccer guartile employees (calculated or a “ull-t me basis).

25tn percentile Mediar  75tn percentile
Year Metrod pay ratig Day ralio Day rahio
2023 Option A Total pay ratio 401 2911 211
2022 Option A Tota' pay ratio 33 221 151
2021 Qption A Total pay ratic 271 191 131 |
2020 Option A Total pay ratio 241 131 11

1 The Cormpany determ ned the remuanerat on © gures at cach quar. ‘e with veference to a date o 31 March 2023

[

The GroJp Jsed calcu 37 on oplon A as th 55 w Qgly regarded 2s the method resa t Ng .0 the Mos robust ana'ys's

3 Thecacuaron sbased on ‘u -L Mo equiva ens $a ary calcu gted on the same bas s as the s ng'c “gure tab'e

I

Th s year he raz 63 have ‘nereased compared 0 the prev ous vear Th s norease re’ ecis the ncrease n the Co-CEOs snge fgure of
remynerat on for 2023, wh ch car be "cund on page 95

S The Commilice has rev ewed the emp oyce data and be eves the med an pay ra: o (o be cons s:e7: w th the pay. reward and progross on
po ces 'or the Company's UK emp.oyees over the per od

The totat pay and benefits ana the satary component of total pay and benefits for the employee at each of the 25th
parcentile, median and 75ih percentile are shown below.

£ 25tm percentile Media~ 75t~ gercertile
Salary E28.000 £37642 £52,400
Total pay and benefits £30.765 £41,880 £59.822
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Relative importance of spend on pay (unaudited)

The tabie below details the change in total staff pay between FY 2022 and FY 2023 as detalled in note 10 of

the financial statements, compared with distrioutions to shareholders by way of divicends, share buybacks or any
other s gnificant districutions or payments. These “igures ~ave been calculated in line with those in the aud ted
financial statements

%
£°000 FY 2023 Fy 2022 charge
Total gross staff pay 83,009 68.222 22

Distributions to shareholders 15,331 13,831 n

Statement of shareholder voting (unaudited)

The table below shows the outcomre of the binding vote on the Directors' Remuneration Palicy at the Annual General
Meeting held on 8 September 2020 and the adwvisory vote on the FY 2022 Directors’ Remuneration Report held on

8 September 2022,

AGM resalution Votes for % Votes agairst Votes wilrneld
Directors’ Remuneration Policy 160,263927 96 06 6,575,827 3625
Directors’ Remuneration Report 156,173,209 9578 5,875,925 3612228

Implementation of Policy for FY 2024 (unaudited information)
This section provides an overview of how the Committee is proposing to implement the Remuneration Policy in the
year encing 31 March 2024

Base salary
Base salaries are as follows with effect from 1 April 2023:

* Ben Bramhall - £356.048;
» Paul Cuff - £356,048; and
* Snehal Shah - £300,744

Benefits in kind

Benefits will be paid 'n ine with the Directors’ Remuneration Policy. Detatls of the benefits received by Executive
Directors are set out in the single figure table on page 95. There 1s no intention to introduce additional benefits
in 2023/24

Pensicn
Contribution rates are currently 6% of base salary. Contributions may be made as cash supplements in full or in part.
These contributions are in ling with those for the majority of employees in the Group.

Annual bonus
Bonus maxima of 150% of salary will be applied for the Co-Chief Executive Officers and 125% for the
Ch ef Financ al O*ficer.

The weightings are as follows: 75% of the bonus will be payable by reference to performance based on adjusted PBT,
with performance against perscnal/strategic targets determining the extent to which the remaming 25% of the overall
bonus opportunity 1s payable.

In addition:

* no bonus will be payable unless the Committee i1s satisfied that the Company’s underlying performance
warrants it; and

* as set out In the Policy table, bonus payments will also be subyect to the Committee considering that the proposed
bonus amounts, calculated by reference to performance against the targets, appropriately reflect the Company’s
overall performance and shareholders’ experience. If the Committee does not believe this to be the case, it may
adjust the bonus outturn accerdingly.

Owing to the Board's concerns about commercial sensitivity, we do not believe it is in shareholders’ interests to
disclose any further details of these targets on a prospective basis. However, the Company 1s commutted to adhering
to principles of transparency and will, provided disclosure of targets 1s not deemed to be commergially sensitive, make
appropriate and relevant levels of disctosure of sonus targets and performance against these targets for the 2023/24
bonus In next year's report. The targets will be set to ensure both consistency and fairness to all stakeholders
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Implementation of Policy for FY 2024 (unaudited information) continued

PSP awards

As outlined in the Committee Chair's Statement, 1t 1s intended that the Co-CEOs and the CFC will receive awards
under the PSP comprising @ main award of 150% and '125% of salary respectively and a one-off additional award of 25%
of salary.

Vesting of both awards wiil be based on the measures as summarised n the tables below, with performance measured
over a three-year period

For the main award, there are three performance criteria, based on EPS, relative TSR perfoermance and on a newly
incorporated ESG measure. The vesting of 70% of the shares under this award will be subject to EPS performance,
20% will be subject to relative total shareholder return and the remaining 10% 15 based on an ESG metric.

The details of the EPS and TSR target ranges are shown in the table below.

Diluted adjusted EPS for the Lrree-year pertod 1o tre end of FY 2026 Partior of award vesting

Compound annual growth in EPS (CAG) of less than 5% 0%

CAG of 5% 25%

CAG of between 5% and 10% Between 25% and 100% on a straight-line basis
CAG of 10% or more 100%

1 Measurced on a constant tax rate basis, 10 ensure the oJiturn s an accdrate retlec: on of operational performance

The EPS target range was set considering both the internal and external expectations for EPS performance over the
next three years,

XPS Pensicns Group's TSR rarking vs a comparator groun of comparies Po-tian of award vesting

Below median 0%

Median 25%

Between medan angd upper quartile Between 25% and 100% on a straight-line basis
Upper guartile 100%

The TSR cemparator group consists of the constituents of the FTSE Small Cap Index {excluding investment trusts) at
the start of the performance period.

As at the date of this report the ESG-related targets are still being finalised Thease will be fully disclosed in next
year's report.

For the adaiticnal award, vesting will be fully based on EPS performance The detalls of the EPS target range 15 shown
nthe table below

Diluted adrusted EFAS for tne threa-year pariod to the e~ of FY 2026 Partion af award vesting

CAG of 10% 0%

CAG of between 10% and 15% Between 25% and 100% or a straight-hne basis
CAG of 15% or more 100%

1 Measdred On & ConsIant lax rate basis, 1o ensare the oulturn s an accurate reflecton of operatiora performance

The EPS performance range of the additiona’ award has been set to ensure vesting will occur only once the EPS
element of the main award has vested in full

98 XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023



Minimum shareholding reguirement

To align the interests of Executive Directors with those of shareholders, they are reguired to bulld and maintain
significant holdings of shares in the Group cver time. The minimum shareholding requirement for Executive Directors
is 200% of base salary for the Co-CEOQs and for the CFQO.

In addition, Executive Directors will be required to maintain their full minimum shareholding reguirement for one year
post-cessation of employment. and hold 50% of the requirement for & second year.

The Chairman’s and the Non-Executive Directors’ fees

Alan Bannatyne receives an annual fee of £120,000 for his role as Board Chairman.

The Non-Executive Directors are entitled to a fee of £60,000 p.a., with an additional fee of £10,000 p.a. for the Chair
of the Audit & Risk Committee and £5,000 p.a. for each of the Senicr Independent Director, Chair of the Remuneration
Committee, Chair of the Sustamnabiity Commitiee and Designated Employee Engagement Non-Executive Director.

This report was reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors on 21 June 2023 and was signed on its behalf by:

Ms—

Margaret Snowdon OBE
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
21 June 2023
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their Annual Report on the activities
of XPS Pensions Group plc (the “Group”), together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Governance section on pages 56
to 104 forms part of this Directors’
Report. Other requisite components
of this report are set out elsewhere in
this Annual Report.

The Strategic Report provides
information relating to the

Group's activities, its business

and strategy engagerment with
stakeholders, the principal risks and
uncertainties faced by the business
and envirormental ard employee
matters. These sections, together
with the Statement of Corporate
Governance and Directors’
Remuneration Report, orovide an
overview of the Group and give an
inchcation of future developments In
the Group's business, so providing a
balanced assessment of the Group's
position and prospects These
reports and this Directors’ Report
have been drawn up and presented
n accerdance with, and in reliance
upon, apphcable English company
law and any hability of the Directors
n connection with such reports shall
be subject to the limitations and
restrictions provided by such law.

XPS Pensions Group plc 1s a member
of the FTSE All-Share Index, trading
under the ticker symbol XAF,

100

The table on page 10" details
where certain other information,
wh-ch forms part of the Directors’
Report, can be found within this
Annual Report.

Going concern

Please refer to the Going Concern
Statement in the Strategic Report
on page 45 and the Viability
Statement on page 51 for details
on the assessment carrned out

by the Directors with regard to
going concern

Results and dividend

The Group's audited financial
statements for the year ended

21 Yarch 20232 are set out on

pages 112 10 149 and the Corpany's
audited financial statements are

set out on pages 150 to 156. The
Group's profit after taxation for

the year ended 31 March 2023 was
F158 mutlion (FY 2022 £9.4 milhon).

An nterrm dividend of 2 7p per
ordinary share (FY 2022: 2.4p)

was paid on 2 February 2023. The
Directors recommend a final dwidend
for the year of & 7p per ordinary
share (FY 2022 4 8p) to be paid on
21 September 2023 to sharehclders
o~ the register on 25 August 2023
Further information regarding
dividend policy and payments can
ce found ntre T rancial Review
on page 45 and 1n note 36 to the
financial statements on page 149,

Post balance sheet events

There have been no significant post
ba ance sheet events to report since
31 March 2023

Directors

The current Directors of the
Company. with summaries of their
key skills and experience, are set cut
in the Governance section on pages
55 and 58. Drectors on tre Board
during the year and up to the date of
this report are as foilows:

Alan Bannatyne

Ben Brambhall

Paul Cuff

Snehal Shah

Margaret Snowdon OBE
Sarah Ing

Aisling Kennedy

(appointed 22 February 2023)
Tom Cross Brown

(resigned 8 September 2022)

Details of the Directors’ service
contracts are shown in the report
cof the Remuneranor Committee on
pages 86 to 87,

Details of share options granted to
Directors and the interests of the
Directors in the ordinary shares

of the Compary are set out intre
Remuneration Report on pages
ANto 94

In accordance with its Articles of
Associat:on, the Company made
qualify:ng third party indemnity
provisions for the benefit of its
Diractors against any liability that
attaches to them in defending
proceedings brought agamst them,
to the extent permitted by company
law, which were in place throughout
the year and remain in force at

the date of this report. In addition,
Directors’ and Officers nabiity
Nsurance cover was mainiaineg
throughout the year at the
Company's expense and remains in
force at the date of this report.
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Irformation

Locatier witnir Arnual Report

Likety future developments in the business of the Company

Strategic Report (pages 14 to 15)

Inclusion and diversity

Sustainability {pages 31 to 33), Nemination Committee

{pages 68 to 69)

Employee involvement

Sustainability (pages 30 to 33), Co-Chief Executive Officers’
Review (page 21), §172 Statement {pages 24 to 25) and
Statement of Corporate Governance (page 57)

Directors’ share interests

Directors’ Remuneration Report {page 91)

Emissions and energy consumption

Strategic Report (page 41)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Note 2 to the financial staterments (pages 125 tc 126)

Directors’ regard to foster business relationships

Strategic Report (page 24)

Capital structure

The Company’s Issued ordinary
share capital and total voting rights
at 31 March 2023 and the date

of this report were 207443140
ordinary shares (each with a par
value of 0.05p and all fully paid)
There were no ordinary shares held
in treasury. As at 31 March 2023
1,016,215 ordinary shares were held
in the Employee Benefit Trust, and as
at the date of this report, 1,881,677
shares were held in the Employee
Benefit Trust. Further deta:ls of the
Company's issued share capital

are given in note 28 of the financial
statements on page 142.

The Company's ordinary shares
rank pari passu n all respects with
each other, ncluding lor voting
purposes and for all dividends. Each
share carries the right to one vote at
general meetings of the Company
Further information on the voting
and other rights cf shareholders,
including deadlines for exercising
voting rights, are set out in the
Company’s Articles of Association
and in the explanatory notes that
accompany the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting, which are available
on the Company’s website at

WWW XDSGroup.com.
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Restrictions on shares

The Company's ordinary shares

are freely transferable and there

are no restrictions on the size of

a holding. Transfers of shares are
governed by the provisions of the
Artictes of Association and prevailing
legislation. The ordinary shares

are not redeernable; however, the
Company may purchase any of the
ordinary shares, subject to prevaiing
legislation and the reguirements of
the Listing Rules.

The Directors are not aware of

any agreements between holders

of the Company's shares that

may result in restrictions on the
transfer of secunties or on voting
rights. Awards of shares under the
Company's Performance Share Plan
incentive arrangement are sulyject to
restrictions on the transfer of shares
prior to vasting.

As at the date of this report, the
Trustee of the Group's Employee
Benefit Trust holds 1,881,677 ordinary
shares in the Company but has
waived its e~titlernent to dividerds
and does not seek o exercise the
vot ng rights on those snares.

Major interests in shares

The table on page 102 shows the
interests in shares (whether directly
or indirectly held) notified to the
Company In accordance with Chapter
5 of the Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules as at 31 March
2023 and 31 May 2023 (being the
latest practicable date prior to
publication of this Annual Report).

Appointment and retirement

of Directors

The Board may from time to time
appoint one or more additional
Directors so long as the total number
of Directors does not exceed the
Imit of 12 prescribed In the Articies
of Asscciation Any person so
appointed will retire at the next
Annual General Meeting and then
be eligible for re-election. The

UK Corporate Governance Code
recommends that all Directors be
subject to annual re-election by
shareholders. All Directors will offer
themselves for re-electicn et the
2023 Annual General Meeting
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Directors’ report continued

Powers of Directors

The business of the Company shall be
managed by the Directors, who may
exercise all powers of the Company,
subject to legislation, the provisions
of the Articles of Asscciation and any
directions given by special resolution.
The Articles of Association contain
specific provisions governing the
Company’s power ta borrow money
and also provide the powers to

1ssue shares and to make purchases
of its own shares. In accordance

w.th the authorities granted at the
2022 Annual General Meeting, the
Directors are authorised, within
certain limits, to allot shares ¢r grant
rights to subscribe for shares in

the Company and to make markat
nurchases of the Company’s own
shares representing up to 10%

of its share capital at that time.
Details of the proposed renewal of
authorities of the Directors are set
out in the Notice of the 2023 Annual
General Meeting.

Political donations

No political centributions were made,
or politicai expencdliture incurred, by
the Company and its subsicharies
during the year (FY 2022 £nil).

Provisions on change of control
The Company 15 subject to a chenge
of contro! provision in the following
significant agreement:

The Company's £100 million
agreement with HSBC Bank ple.
National Westminster Bank plc,

Sank of ireland and Citibank in
multicurrency revolving facdities, with
a further uncommitted facility of up
to £5C million, includes a custcmary
provision far a lending counterparty
to amend, alter or cancel the relevant
commitment to the Group following a
change of control of the Company.

The Company does not have
agreements with any Director or
employee that would provide specific
campensation for loss of office

or employment resulting from a
takeover, except that provisions of
the Company's Performance Share
Plan incentive arrangement may
cause awards 1o vest on a takeover

Articles of Association

A copy of the full Articles of
Association s avallable on the
Company's website. The Company’s
Articles of Association may only be
amended by a special resolution of
shareholders in a general meeting

At 31March 2023

Auditor and disclosure of
information to the auditor

In accordance with Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006, each of the
Directors who were members of the
Board at the date of the approval of
this report confirms that:

so far as the Director 1s aware,
there 1s no relevant audit
information of wh.ch the
Company's auditor is unaware; and

the Director has taken ali steps
that they ought to have taken as
a Director to make themselves
aware of any relevant audlit
inforrmation and to establish that
the Company's auditor is aware of
that information.

The Company's auditer, BDO LLP, has
expressed its willingness to continue
in office and the Board has agreed,
based on the recommendation of

the Auait & Risk Committee, that

a resolution for its reappointment

will be proposed at the forthcorm:ng
Annual General Meeting.

Annual General Meeting

Detans of the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting are given in the
Statement of Corporate Governance
on page 64

At 31 May 2023

Number of Percentage of Nurroer of  Percertage of

ordinary total voting ordinary total votinrg

Snarerolder shares rights snares rights
Gresham House Asset Management 32,916,624 15.87 34,671,219 16.68
Punter Scuthall Financial Management 22,543,887 10.87 22543887 10.87
Sidelty International 19,175,200 9.24 15,903,547 767
Schroder Investment Management 14,070,641 6.78 14,070,641 6.78
Prarmier Miton Invesiors 13,799,259 6.65 11,769,259 567
Aberforth Partners 11,385,147 5.49 10,492,647 506
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Listing Rule (LR) disclosures

For the purposes of LR 9.8 4CR, the information reguired to be disclosed by LR 9.8 4R can be found in the

followirg locations,

ltemn

Location

Interest capttalised

None

Publication of unaudited financial information

Not applcable

Details of long-term incentive schemes

Detalls of the Company's long-term incentive scheme can
be found In the Rermuneration Committee Report on page 81

Wasver of emoluments by a Director

None

Waver of future emotuments by a Director

None

Non-pre-emptive 1ssues of equity for cash

Mot applicable

Non-pre-emptive 1ssues of equity for cash in relation to major
subsidiary undertakings

Not applicable

Contracts of significance in which a Director 1s or was interested

None

Provision of services by a controlling shareholder

Not applicable

Shareholder waiver of dividend for the year and future dividends

Dwidend waiver by the Trustee of the Group's Empioyee
Benefit Trust - see page 101 of this report

Agreements with contrelling sharehotder

Not applicable

The Directors' Report was approved by the Board of Directors of XPS Pensions Group plc

By order of the Board:

Snehal Shah
Chief Financiat Officer
21 June 2023
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The Direciors are responsible for
preparing the Annual Report and
the Group financial statements in
accordance with applicable laws
and regulations,

Company law reguires the Directors
10 prepare financial statements for
each financial year Under that law
the Directors are required to prepare
the Group financial statements and
have elected to prepare the Company
financial statements in accoraance
with UK adopted International
Financial Reporting Standards. Under
company law the Directors must not
approve the financial statements
uniess they are satisfied that they
gwe a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and Company
and of the profit or loss for the Group
and Company for that period In
preparing these financial statements,
the Directors are required to.

select suitable accounting policies
a~d tren apply them consistently,

* make ,udgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with UK
adopted International Financal
Reporting Standards subject

to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the
fimanc al statements,

orepare the financial statements
on the going concern basis unless
it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue

N bus ness; ana

prepare a Directors’ Report, a
Strategic Report and a Directors’
Rermuneration Report which
comp'y with the requirements

0" the Companies Act 20C6.

104

The Directors are respons:ble for
keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient to

show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. They
are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hance
for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities

The Directors are responsible for
the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information
nciuded on the Company’s website.
Legisiation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissemination of
financial staterments may differ from
legislation in other jurnisdictions

Statement of the Directors in
respect of the Annual Report

As required by the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Directors
confirm that they consider that the
Annual Report, taken as a whale, is
fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the
Group's position and performance,
business model and strategy When
arriving at this position the Board was
assisted by a number of processes,
including the following:

* the Annual Report Is drafted by
appropriate senior managermeant
with overall co-ordination by
Internal Communications and
Company Secretarial teams to
ensure consistency across sections,;

an extensive verfication process
1S Jngertaken to ensure
factual accuracy;

* comprehensive reviews of
drafts of the Annual Report
are undertaken by members of
the Executive Board and senior
management team; and

the final draft is reviewed by the
Audit & Risk Committee prior to
consideration by the Board

Responsibility statement
The Directors confirm that to the
best of their knowledge:

* the Group financial statements,
prepared In accordance with UK
adopted international accounting
standards, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabiities, financial
position and profit or loss of the
Group, and

the Annual Report includes a fair
review of the development and
performance of the business and
the financial position of the Group
and the Parent Company as a
whole, together with a description
of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face.

Snehal Shah
Chief Financial Officer
21 june 2023
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of XPS Pensions Group plc

Opinion on the financial statements
In our opinicn.

« the financial statements give a true and far view of the state of the Group's and ¢f the Parent Company's affairs
as at $” Marcn 2023 and of the Groop's profit for the year then ended,

* the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international
accounting standards,

+ the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international
accounting standards and as applied In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements ¢f the Companies Act 20086.

We have audited the financial statements of XPS Pansions Group plc (the ‘Parent Company) and its subsidiares
(the 'Group') for the year ended 31 March 2023 which comcnise the Consolidated Statemer: of Comprehens ve
Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consclidated Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Financial Position - Company, Statement of Changes in Equity - Company,
Statement of Cash Flows - Company and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting pohcies The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and UK adooted wrernational accourtirg standards ard as regards the Parert Company finarc:al statemen:s,

as apphed n accordance wth tho provisions of tre Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law Cur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion Qur audit opinion 1s consistent with the additional report to the Audit
& Risk Committee.

Independence

Following the recommendation of the Audit & Risk Committee, we were appointed by the directors on 28 October
2016 to audit the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 and subseguent financial pericds. Prior to

the hsting of the Parert Company, we were the auditors for the three years ended 31 March 2014 o 31 March 2016.

The period of total uninterrupted engagement -nclud.ng retenders and reappointments s ten years, cover-~g the years
ended 31 March 2014 to 31 March 2023, We remain independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's
Ethical Standard as applied to sted public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these reguirements. The nen-audit services prohibited by that standard were not provided to the
Group or the Parent Company.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
account:ng in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Qur evaluation of the Directors’ assessment
of the Group and the Parent Compary's ability to continue to adopt the gong concern bas s o accounting incivded

* Assessing the Directors’ going concern assessment and forecasts including the reasonableness of their assumptions
applied and reverse stress case sensitivities using our knowledge of the business;

* Assessing the reasonableness of assumptions, by review and challenge, through enguiry and consideraticn of
historical performance, applied by the Directors' in preparation of cash flow forecasts, including growth assumptions
and movemants in headcount and base costs, and the Group’s ability to meet working capital requirements over the
going concern period We also assessed the period to May 2023 actuals against forecast;

» Reviewing the terms and period of the Group’s bank facility agreement and consideration of the sufficiency of the
facility available:

* Considering the Group's complance with banking covenants and related headroom in light of the Directors' reverse
stress test assessment,

* Considering the options avallable to the Directors’ to mitigate the impact of reverse stress test scenarios and
whether such actions are within their control: and

» Considering the adeqguacy of the disclosures in the financial statements agamnst the requirements of the accounting
standards and consistency of the disclosure with the forecasts and reverse stress test assessment prepared by
the Directors.
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Independent auditor’s report continued
to the members of XPS Pensicns Group plc

Conclusions relating to going concern continued

Based on the work we have performed. we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group and the Parent Company's
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements
are autnorised for issue.

In relation to the Parent Company’s reporting on how it has applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have
nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation to the Directors' statement in the financial statements about
whether the Directors considered it appropriate 1o adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsiollities and the responsibiities of the Directors with respect to going cencern are described 1n the
relevant sections of this report.

Overview
Coverage 6% (FY 2022:100%) of Group profit before tax
96% (F¥ 2022:100%) of Group revenue
100% (FY 2022: 100%) of Group total assets
81% (FY 2022:100%) of Group EBITDA
(EBITDA - calculated as profit before tax, less depreciation, amoertisation and finance costs)
Key audit matters 2023 2022
Year-end revenue recognition (accrued iIncome) for core pension services
Materiality Group financial statements as a whole

2023: £1,000.000 based on 3% of EBITDA,
2022: £900,000 based on 3% of EBITDA.

An overview of the scope of cur audit

Our Group audit was scoped by ebtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including the Group’s
system of internal controt, and assessing the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements. We also
addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including assessing whether there was evidence of
bias by the Directors that may have represented a risk of materal misstatement

Significant components:

Componenrt Type of work performed
XPS Pensions Consulting Limited Full scope audit
XPS Pensions imited Full scope audit
XPS Investment Limited Full scope audit
XPS Administrat:on Limited Full scope audit

Non-significant compenents:
Other than the four significant compaenents noted above, there were 12 other components within the Group which
formed part of our Group audit.

The following three non-significant components were subjected to a full scope audit on account of them bemng part of
a non-small group and being entities that do not avail themselves of a parental guarantee from audit under s479A of
the Companies Act 2006:

Comporent Tyoe of work perfarmed
Xafinity SIPP Serv.ces Lim:ted Full scope audit
XPS Pensians Group plc Full scope audit
XPS Consult.ng (Reading) L.mited Full scope audit

All @ of the remaining non-significant components were subjected to desktop review procedures. Al aud't work on all
entities (s-.gnificant and non-sigrnif-cant) was undertaken by the Group audiz team.
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An overview of the scope of our audit conunued

Climate change

Cur work on the assessment of potential impacts on climate-related risks on the XPS Pensions Group plc operaticns
and financial statements included:

+ Enguiries and challenge of management to understand the actions they have taken to identify chmate-related risks
and their potential mpacts on the financial statements and adeqguately disclose climate-related risks within the
Annual Report;

+ Reviewing management’s SECR report and supporting workings to check that the climate change disclosure ties
nto the disclosures presented in the financial statements as required,

* Qur own qualitative risk assessment taking into consideration the sector in which the Group operates and how
climate change affects this particular secter; and

*» Review of the minutes of Board and Audit & Risk Committee meetings and other papers related to climate change
and performed a risk assessment as to how the mpact of the Group's commitment as set out in strategic report may
affect the financial statements and our audit

* We challenged the extent to which chimate-related considerations, including the expected cash flows from the
initiatives and commitments have been reflected, where appropriate, in the Directors’ going concern assessment and
viability assessment,

* We also assessed the consistency of management’s disclosures included as Statutory Other Information’ on page 52
with the financial statements and with our knowledge obtained from the audit.

Based on our risk assessment procedures. we did not identify there to be any Key Audit Matters materially impacted
by climate-related risks and related commitments.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional jJudgement, were of most significance in our audit of the

financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) that we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit
strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming ocur opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How the scone of our audit addressed the xey audit matter

" Year-end
revenue
recognltion
(accrued

The risk of fraudulent revenue
recogmition arises from core
pension services (excluding
triennial and investment strategic

Income) for core review services), Management
penslon services appiies jJudgements and estimates

The accounting
policy for
revenue is
disclosed in
note 1 of the
consolidated
financial
statements

The segmental
information
relating to
Group revenue
is disclosed In
note 8 to the
consolidated
financial
statements.

concerning the completeness,
existence and valuation of revenue
around year end, specifically
accrued income, therefore a risk
of material misstatement exists

in order to meet current or future
financial targets or performance
related bonuses

This results in core pensions
services year end accrued mcome,
excluding triennial and investment
strategic review services being
assessed as a significant risk of
material misstatement and a key
audit matter

Year-end recognition was assessed by selecting a sample of accrued
income balances from the accrued income histing and agreeing

back to contract with the chents, underlying timesheet data, invoice,
and where possible, subsequent receipt of payment The above
procedures supported the individual accrued income valuation
judgements applied as weil as existence of the balances

Post year end revenue recognised was sampled and agreed back to
underlying documentation to check that revenue was recognised in
the correct period, and to check that accrued income was at the year
end, complete

WwWe identifled outliers in the journals popuiation that were posted to

revenue and accrued iIncome based on ocur knowledge of the Group,
corroborating them back to supporting documentation to determine
the validity thereof

Key observations:

Based on the procedures undertaken, we did not identify ary
evidence that core pensions services revenue recognised associated
with accrued income (excluding trienmal and investment strategic
reviow services) nad not peen recogmsed in the correct penod or at
the correct value va the accrued income entries

The judgements and estimates applied werg consistent with
our expectatons

XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023
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Independent auditor’s report continued
to the members of XPS Pensions Group plc

Our application of materiality
We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing cur audit, and in evaluating the effect of
misstatements. We consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions, could
nfluence the economic decisions of reasonable users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements.

In order to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that any misstatements exceed materiality, we use a
lower materislity level, performance materiality, to determine the extent of testing needed Importantly, misstatements
below these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as immaterial as we also take account of the nature of identified
misstatements, and the particular circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating thewr effect on the financial
statements as a whole,

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole and
performance materiality as follows.

Group fira-cial statemerts

Parert comeany firarcial staterrents

2023 2022 2073 7022
Materiahty £1.000,000 £900.000 £750,000 £360,000
Basis for 3% of EBITDA 3% of EBITDA 75% of Group A40% of Group
determining materality materiahty
materiahty
Rationale for the EBITDA I5 EBITDA 15 considered 75% of Group mateniahty  40% of Group
benchmark considered to be the  to be the benchmark given the assessment of  materiality given the
applied benchmark thatis of  thatis of the most the component’s assessment of the

the most Interest of interest of the majority aggregation risk component’s

the majority of users of the users of the aggregation risk.

of the finang¢ial financial statements

statements based based on investor

on nvestor and and siekeholder

stakeholder expectations,

expectations
Performance £700,000 £650,000 £525,000 £252.000
matenalty
Basis for 0% 70% 70% 70%
determning
performance
materiality
Rationale for the These thresholds are based on our knowledge of the Group and Parent Company, control environment
percentage over financial reporting, history of misstaterments In previous periods and management’s attitude to
apphed for proposed adjustments
performance
maternality

Component materiality
We set matenality for each significant camponent of the Group based on a percentage of bhatween 36% and 62%
(FY 2022 22% and 75%) of Group matenality dependent on the size and our assessment of the risk of material
misstatement of that component Component materniality ranged from £360,000 to £620,000 (FY 2022 £200,000
to £675,000), with aggregaton risk considered In the audit of each component, we further applied performance
materiahity levels of 70% of the component materiality to our testing to ensure that the risk of errors exceeding
component materiality was appropriately mitigated.

Reporting thresheold
We agreea with the Auait & Risk Committee that we would report to them ail individua audit differences in excess of
£40.,000 (FY2022:£40,000) We a'so agreed to report differences below this threshold that, m our view, warranted

reporting on gualitative grounds

Other infarmation

The Directors are responsib e for the other information. The other informat on comprises the nformation includea n
the Annua Report and Accounts other than the financ.al statements and our Auditor's Report thereon. Gur opinion
on the financ.al statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated
‘nour report, we do not express any form of assurance conc.usion thereon. Qur responsidlity 1s to read the other
nformation and, in doing so, consiaer whether the other information 1s matenally inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtainea in the course of the audit, ¢r otherwise appears to be matenally misstated

If we idertfy sucn mater al nconsistenc es or apparent matenal misstazements, we are reguired to deter~ ne whesher
th s gives r.se to a mater al misstatement in the financia' statements themselves, If, based on the work we have
gerformed, we corclude tnat thare s a mazenial messtatement of this otrer rforeatcn, we are raguired to réport

that fact

We have nothing o report in this regard
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Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the Directors’ statement in relation to going concern, longer-term viability and
that part of the Caorporate Governance Statement relating to the Parent Company's compliance with the provisions of
the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review

Based on the wark undertakan as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the
Corpcrate Governance Statement is materially consistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the audit.

Going concern » The Directors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the going concern
al’“:,!lcft"ge"te"“ basis of accounting and any material uncertainties identified as set out on page 45 and
viability

* The Directors’ explanaticn as to their assessment of the Group's prospects, the period this
assessment covers and why the period is appropriate as set out on page 51

Other Code * The Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable assel out on page 104;
provisions

The Board’s confirmation that it has carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and
principal risks as set cut on page 57,

The section of the annual report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems as set cut on pages 46 to 51; and

The section describing the work of the Audit & Risk Committee asset out on pages 70-73

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting
Based on the responsibilities described below and our work performed during the course of the audit, we are reguired
by the Companies Act 2006 and ISAs (UK) to report on certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
and Directors’ ‘ ) ) ‘ )
report * the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directers’ Report for the financial year for

which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements; and

* the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requiremeants

In Iight of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Parent Company and its
environment cbtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements

I~ Ng Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report.

Directors’ . In cur opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly
remuneration prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

Matters on which  We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies
we are required Act 2006 reguires Us to repert to you if, in our opmion;

to report by

exception * adequate accounting records have not been kept by the FParent Company, or returns adeguate

for our audit have not been receved from branches not visited by us; or

* the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
to ce audited are not r agreemert wit~ the accounting records a~d reiurns, or

* certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the Directors determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either mtend to liquidate the Group or the Parent
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent auditor’s report continued
to the members of XPS Pensions Group ple

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that inciudes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a2 high level of assurance, but s not & guarantee that an audit conducted in accerdance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered matenal If. individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions oOf users taken on the basis of these fingncial statemeants.

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, o detect material misstatements in respect of rregularities, including fraud.
The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularntes, including fraud 15 detaled below

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

Based on:

* Our understanding of the Group and the industry in which it operates,
* Discussion with management and those charged with governance, and

* Obtaining and understanding of the Group's policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws
and regulations,

we considerad the significant laws and regulations to be the applicable accounting framewaork, UK tax legislation,
Listing Rules, Compames Act 2006, labour regulations and tax laws in key terntories which the Group operates.

The Group is also subject te laws and regulaticns where the conseguence of non-compliance could have a materal
effect on the amount or disclosures in the financial statements, for example through the imposition of fines or
htigations. We identified such laws and regulations to be the health and safety leaislation, employment law, consumer
rights Act and other consumer laws and regulations and the Financial Conduct Authority Regulations ingluding client
money rules

Our procedures inrespect of the above included:

* Review of minutes of meeting of those charged with governance for any instances of non-compliance with laws
and regulations,

* Review of caorrespondence with regulatory and tax authorities for any instances of non-compliance with laws
a~d regulations;

* Review of financial statement disclosures and agreeing to supporting documentation,

* involvement of tax specialists in the audit, and

« Review of legal expenditure accounts to understand the nature of expenditure incurred
Fraud

We assessed the susceptibility of the financial statements to material m.sstatement, including fraud. Qur risk
assessment procedures included,

* Enguiry with management and the Aud+ & Risk Commuittee regarding any known or suspected instances of fraud;

Obtaining an understanding of the Group's policies and procedures relating to
* Detecting and respaond ng to the risks of fraud, and

* Internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud

Review of minutes of meeting of those charged with governance for any known or suspected instances of fraua,

DISCUSSION amongst the engagement team as to how and where fraud m-ght oceur in the financial statements:

Performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationsh’ps that may ind cate risks of
material misstatement due to fraud; and

Considering how remuneration schemes and performance targets may create ncentives for fraud and considering
the related financ a: statement areas susceptible to manipulation as a result of these.

10 XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023



Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements continued

Fraud continued

Based on our risk assessment, we considered the areas most susceptible to fraud to be management override of
controls revenue recognition (specifically accrued income and both the existence and valuation of this balance
(overstatement) but also the completaness and valuation (understatement), for the core pensians business, excluding
triennial and investment strategic reviews)

Qur procedures in respect of the above included:

« Testing a sample of journal entries throughout the year, which met a defined risk critena, by agreeing to
suocoring doecumentation;

* Inresponse to the risk of fraud in revenue recognition we have performed the procedures set out in the key audit
matters section of our report,

= Assessing significant estimates made by management for bias including key areas of estimaticn uncertainty
or judgement, for example; deferred revende and revenue recognition, impairment of goodwill anc ntangibles,
provisions, recoverabihty of trade receivables including intracompany balances and the existence, completeness
a~d valuation of accrued incom™e at the year-enc.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team
members who were all deemed to have appropriate competence and capabilities and remaimned alert to any indications
of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.

Qur audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of materal misstaterment in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstaternent due to fraud 1s higher than the risk of not detecting
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate cancealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations

or through collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed
non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected :n the financial statements,
the less 1kely we are to cecome aware of 1L

A further description of our responsibilities 1s avallable on the Financial Reperting Council's website at.
www.frc org uk/auditorsresponsibiities This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report 1s made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’'s members
those matters we are required to state tc them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent
Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinicns we have formed.

Andrew Radford (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom
21 June 2023

BDO LLP 15 a 'mited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number QC305127)
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 3t Marcm 2022
Non-trading Nor-trading
and and
Trading excepticnal Trading exceptional
items items Total Jfermrs items Total
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Revenue & 166,596 — 166,586 138,622 - 138622
Other operating income 4 - 197 197 - — —
Operating expenses 9 (129,652) (14,413) (144,065) (09,826) (9,808 (19634)
Profit/(loss) from operating activities 36,944 (14,216) 22,728 28796 (9.808) 18,988
Finance \ncome 14 10 - 10 — — —
Finance costs 14 (3,596) - (3,596) (2,047 - (20473
Profit/(loss) before tax 33,358 (14,216) 19,142 26,749 (2,808) 16,941
Income tax (expense)/crect 15 (6,215) 2,910 (3,305) {4,988) (2,530} (7.518)
Profit/(loss) after tax and total
comprehensive income/{loss) for the year 27,143 {(11,306) 15,837 21,761 (12,338) 9,423
Memo
EBITDA 42,448 (7,334) 35114 34139 (3229 30,90
Depreciation & amortisation (5,504) (6,882) (12,386) (5,343} (6,57 Moz2y
Profit/(loss) from operating activities 36,944 (14,216) 22,728 28,796 (9,808 18,988
Pence Pence Pence Pence
Earnings per share attributable to the
ordinary equity holders of the Company: Adjusted Adiusted
Profit or loss:
Basic earnings per share 34 13.2 - 1.7 107 — 46
Diluted earnings per share 34 12.6 _ 7.3 10.2 — 4.4

The notes on pages 116 tc 149 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2023

31March 31 Marcn
2023 2022
Note £'000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 16 3,079 3,187
Right-of-use assets 31 9,684 10,827
Intangible assets 17 212,103 206,800
Other fingncial assets 19 1,847 1,814
226,713 222,728
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 20 43,765 38,776
Cash and cash equivalents 21 13,285 10,150
57,050 48926
Total assets 283,763 271654
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 22 67,310 63,309
Lease habihties 3t 7,234 8,935
Provisions 26 1,869 1.781
Trade and other payables 24 845 —
Deferred income tax liabilities 18 18,445 18,966
95,703 82,291
Current liabllities
Lease habihties 31 2,701 2,745
Provisions 26 2,009 1,236
Trade and other payables 24 3,218 27275
Current income tax liabilities 25 2,280 2,207
Deferred consideration 27 568 765
38,776 34,228
Total liabilities 134,479 127,219
Net assets 149,284 144 435
Equity and liabilitles
Equity attributable to owners of the Parent
Share capital 28 104 103
Share premium 29 1,786 116,804
Merger relief reserve 29 48,687 48687
Investment in own shares held in tryust 29 (1,350) (4157)
Retained earnings/(accumulated deficit) 29 100,057 (17.002)
Total equity 149,284 44,455

Deferred tax in the prior year has been restated - see note 18 for details

The notes on pages 116 to 149 form part of these financial statements

The financiat statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 June 2023 and were signed on i1ts behalf by

ABL

Snehal Shah
Chief Financial Officer
21 June 2023

Registered number: 08279139
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Merger nvestmert (Accumulated

Share Snare raligf N own deheit)/ Total

capital premium reserve shares retained equity

£'000 £'000 £'000 E'000 carnings £'000
Balance at 1 Apnl 2021 103 NnG.797 48,687 (2.563) (13.958) 149,066
Comprehensive income and total comprehensive income
for the vear — — — — 9423 9423
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Share capital 1ssued — 7 — — — 7
Dividends paid (note 36) — — — — {13.837) (13,831
Dividend equivalents paid on exercised share options - — — — (268) (268)
Shares purchased by Empioyee Benef.t Trust for cash — — - (3.324) - (3.324)
Share-based payment expense - eguity settled from
Empioyee Benefit Trust — — — 1,730 (1,704) 26
Share-based payrment expense - IFRS 2 charge (note 13) — - - — 3,343 3,343
Deferred tax movement in respect of share-based payment
exgense {nate 18) - - - — {7} 73
Total contributions by and distributions to owners — 7 — {1,594y (12,467) (14,054)
Balancge at 31 March 2022 103 116,804 48,687 41573y (17.002) 144,435
Balance at 1 April 2027 103 1i6.804 48,687 4157y (17002) 144,435
Comprehensive income and total comprehensive income
for the year — — — - 15,837 15,837
Contributions by and distributrons to owners
Share capital 1ssued 1 1.786 — - - 1787
Share premium reduction —  (MB,804) — — 116.804 —
Divigends paid (note 36) — — — (15.331) (15,331}
Dwvidend equivalents paid on exercised share ophons — — — — (549 (549)
Shares purchased by Employee Benefit Trust for cash — — — (2,200) — (2,200}
Share-based payment expense - equity settled from
Employee Benefit Trust — — — 5007 (4337) 870
Share-based payment expense - RS 2 charge (note 13) - — — — 3,892 2,892
Deferred tax movernent in resgect of share based payment
expense (nete 183 — — — — 258 258
Current tax movement in respect of share-based payment
expense - - - - 285 285
Total contributions by and distributions to owners 1 (Ms,0'8) — 2,807 101,222 (10,988)
Balance at 31 March 2023 104 1,786 48,687 (1,350) 100,057 149,284

The notes on pages 116 to 149 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 Maren
2023 2022
Note £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 15,837 9.423%
Adjustmeants for:
Depreciation 16 897 842
Depreciation of nght-of-use assets 31 2,854 3048
Armortisation 17 8,635 8,034
Finance income 14 (10) —
Finance costs 14 3,596 2,047
Share-based payment expense 13 3,892 3,343
Other operating Income 4 (197) -
Income tax expense 15 3,305 7.518
38,8089 34,253
Increase in trade and other receivables (3,432) (3,8982)
Increase In trade and other payables 3,603 2,315
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 442 (65)
39,422 32,521
income tax paid (4,866) (3.862)
Net cash inflow from operating actlvities 34,556 28,659
Cash flows from investing activities
Finance income received 14 10 —
Acguisition of other intangible assets - 01,469
Acguisition of subsidiary, net of cash acguired 7 (8,268) —
Purchases of property, plant and eguipment 16 (640) (1,050)
Purchases of software 17 (4,814) (6820)
increase in restrnicted cash balances - other financial assets 19 (33) (34)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (13,745) (2,373
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the 1ssue of share capital 28 1,787 7
Proceeds from loans net of capitalised costs 11,000 5 895
Repayment of loans (7,000) (2000
Sale of own shares 870 26
Purchase of ordinary shares by EBT (2,200) (3,324
Interest paid (2,985) (1,222)
Lease interest paid {311) (298)
Payment of lease labilities (2,957) (2.743)
Dividends paid to the holders of the Parent (15,331) (13,8301
Dividend eguivalents paid on exercise of share opticns (549) (268)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (17,676) (17.759)
Net increase 1in cash and cash equivalents 3,135 1,627
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 10,150 8.623
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 21 13,285 10,150
The notes on pages 116 to 149 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

1 Accounting policies

XP% Pensions Group ple (the "Company”) s a public iimited company incorporated :n the UK. The principal activity
of the Group s emplcyee pene’it consultancy and related business services, The reqgistered of“ice 1s Phoenix Hcouse, 1
Station Hill, Reading RG1 INB The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company end its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the "Group”).

Basis of preparation ;
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting '
Standards. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the going concern basis.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also reguires managemeant to exercise
its Judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed at the end of this secticn

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. The policies
have been consistently applied to all the pericds presented, unless otherwise stated.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Brit:sh pounds which is the Company's functional currency. Figures are
rounded t¢ the nearest thousand.

Measurement convention
The financial information 1s prepared on the historical cost basis except for the measurement of contingent consideration

Basis of consolidation

Where the Company has contral aover an investee, 1t is classified as a subsidiary. The Company controis an investee 1f i
all three of the following elements are present. power over the investee, exposure to variable returns from the investee, '
and the ability of the invester to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts

and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any elements of contral,

Defacto control exists in situations where the Company has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
nvestee without holding the majority of the voting rights In determining whether defacto control exists the Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances, including:

* the size of the Company’s voting rights relative to both the size and dispersion of other parties who hold
voting rnghts;

* substantive potential voting rights held by the Company and by cther parties;
» other contractual arrangements; and
* histoncal patterns in voting attendance

The consohdated financial infoermation presents the resu'ts of the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) as
if they formed a single entty. Intercompany transactions and balances between Group companies are therefore
ehminated in full,

The consolidated financial information incorporates the results of business combinations using the acquisition method.
In the statement of financial position, the acquiree's identiftable assets, liabilities and cont'-ngent iab lities are init:ally
racogrsed at their fair values at the acguisition date, with the exception of right-of-use assets and lease iiabilities,
which are measured at the present value of the tease habilty discounted at acguisition date incremental borrowing
rate (a rate that represents the amount that would be charged to acguire an asset of simitar value for a similar period),
with an adjustment to nght-of-use assets to reflect favourable/non-favourable lease terms. The results of the acquirea
aperations are included n the consolidated statement of comprehens ve income from the date on which control s
obtaned They are deconsolidated from the date on which contro! ceases.

Property, plant and eguipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost fess accumulated depreciation For items acquired as part
of a business combination, cost comprises the deemed fair value of those itemns at the date of acquisition. Deprec ation
on those tems is charged over their estimated remaining usefu! hves from that date.

Depreciat on s charged to profit and loss in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight- ine basis over the
estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property. plant and egu pment Estimated useful ives are as follows

+ Office equipment 31010 years
* Leasehcld mprovements Qver remaining .ife of the lease
* Fixtares and f.ttings 2 to "0 years
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1 Accounting policies continued

Going concern

IFRS accounting standards reqguire the Directors to consider the appropriateness of the going concern basis when
preparing the financial staternents. The Directors have taken notice of the Financial Reporting Council guidance,
“Gudance on the going concern basis of accounting and reporting on sclvency and liguidity risks”, which reguires the
reasons for this decision to be explained

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts up to 31 October 2024, which includes the 12-month period from the
date of approval of these financial statements. These forecasts show that during that period the Group is expected
to generate sufficient cash from its operations to settle its habilities as they fall due without the requirement for
additional berrowings. Additionally, the Cirectors have modelled a scenario at which the banking covenants could
potentially be breached, which is the point where going concern could be threatened. This periocd has been chosen as
October 15 the lowest paint in the Group’s working capital and cash cycle. Inflationary increases have been modelled
using the OBR inflation forecasts for that period, and interest rate increase has been ncluded in the forecasts based
on latest market projections. In this scenario, revenue 1s modelled to decrease significantly, partially offset with
areduction n staff bonuses The headroom between this scenario and current performance, and the budget, 15
significant and a decrease of this magnitude is considered to be extremely unlikely. In addition, the Group has several
additional cost reduction and cash preservation levers it could utilise, which include managing staff costs through a
hiring freeze or reduction in workforce, a reduction in capital expenditure. and a reduction of dividends.

The Group's banking facility 1s in place until October 2026 and gives the Group access to a Revolving Credit Faaility of
£100 million with an accordion of £50 million. The facility is subject to two covenants - net leverage and interest cover.
These covenants were not breached during the financial year, nor are any breaches forecast The Group does not have
any non-financial covenants.

The Directors have reviewed the historical accuracy of the Group's budgets The Group's performance was compared
to the budget, and actual revenue was within 3% of the forecast figure, and adjusted profit after tax was within

8% of the forecast figure. Actual results were ahead of forecast in both cases. This demonstrates that the Group's
forecasting process s at a sufficient standard to be able to place reliance on it when making a going concern
assessment. Post-year-end trading is in lIine with forecasts. The Directors, after reviewing the Group's budget and
longer-term forecast models, including the worst case scenario referred to above, conclude that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and they continue to adept the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing these annual financial statements.

In terms of the wider macroeconomic and financial situation, the Group does not have any clients in Russia, and so has
not had any direct impact from the sanctions or restrictions imposed cn Russian owned firms The man impact on the
Group of the current global situaticn therefore 1s the high level of inflation currently being experienced in the UK, and
also the related Increases in interest rates The Group is largely protected from a high inflaticn environment because
of its contractual ability to increase revenue from the majority of customers by an amount linked to inflation. Whilst
higher interest rates have led to higher finance expenses, this has been modelled in the Group’s ferecasts and 1s not
considered a significant risk.

Intangible assets and goodwill

Goodwill represents amounts arising on acquisition, being the difference between the cost of the acguisition and the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired on a business combination. Identifiable intangibles are

those which can be sold separately or which arise from legal rights regardless of whether those rights are separable.

Goodwiil 15 stated at cost less any accumulated impairment lesses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purposes of impairment testing and is not amertised. It is tested annually for impairment.

Externally acquirad intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Acquired software is valued based on replacement cost valuations where identifiable or at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment. Internally produced software is valued at cost less accumulated amortisation
and imoairment.

Customer refationships are valued based on the net present value of the excess earnings generated by the revenue
streams over their estimated useful lives.

Brand vauation 1s based on the net present value of estimated rovalty returns
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 20232

1 Accounting policies continued

Intangible assets and goodwill continued

Amortisation 1s iIncluded in operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive income over the estimated useful
lives of Intangible assets uniess such lives are indefinite. intangible assets with an indefinite useful Iife, such as geodwill,
are systematically tested for impairment at each balance sheet date Other intangible assets are amortised from the
date they are available for use. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

* Goodwil! Indefinite life

» Custorner relationships 10 years, straight-I'ne methed

* Brands? 10 years, straight-line method

+ Software 3 to 5 years, straight-iine method

1 Excep: for pensions and investment Customer rela: onsh ps acguired as part of Lhe Punter Southa' acqu s £ on, customer reiationsh.ps
recogn sed 'n 2013, and the Penf.da cystomer re a: onsh ps recogn sed on acguisivon in FY 2023, a° of which have an esi.ma:ted dse‘ul |.fe
of 20 years, on a straight- 'ne bass

2 Excep: for the Pen® da brand acguirred in September 2022, which has an es” mated usefu ‘e of 2 years, on a stiraight-l ne bas s

Contingent consideration

Contingent consideration is included in cost at its acguisition date fair value and 1s classified as a financial hability,
remeasured at fair value subsequently through profit or loss. Contingent consideration classified as equity 1s

not remeasured

Contingent consideration is assessed against the criteria detailed i IFRS 3 Business Combinations, and subject to the
outcome of this the consideration may be classed as post-acguisition remuneration, in which case it will be expensed
through the income statement over the appropriate timeframe.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite usefu! life, for exampie goodwill or intangible assets not ready for use, are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for mpairment Assets that are subject to amortsation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Animpairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount The recoverable amaeunt is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately .dentffiable
cash inflows (cash-generating units) Non-finangial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impa rment at each reporting date

Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets into one of the categories discussed below, depending on the purpose for
which the asset was acguired.

Amortised cost

Amortised cost includes non-dervative financial assets where they are held within a bus ness medel whose objective
is to hold the financial asset In arder to collect contractual cash flows and those contractual terms give rise to cash
flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are included ir non-gurraent assets If ther matunty s greater tnar 12 months “rade rece vaoles are stated
‘nitially at fair value then measured at amortised cost less provisions for impairment. The Group apples the IFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring expected credit t0sses usng a lifetime expected credit loss provision. The expected
‘055 rates are based on the Group's historical credit losses experienced over the three-year period prior to year end
The historical loss rates are then adjusted for current and forward-looking information on macroeconomtc factors
affecting the Group’s customers. Any impairment required 1s recorded in the statement of comprehensive iIncome.

Cash and casn equrvalents comprise cash balances and call deposits

Restricted cash s cash which the Group 15 not entitled to receive, withdraw, transfer or otherwise deal with the
deposit, save as expressly permitted by the blocked account agreement during the secunty pericd. The blockea
account agreement 1s required due to regulatory ru s on Master Trusts The securty period s the period beginning
on the date of the deed and end'ng on the date on which the beneficiary is satisfied that the secured lLabilities have
been rrevocably and unconditiongl y paid and discharged n ful' and all agreements which might give rise to secured
habi ties have terminated The restrictea cash has been n¢luded in nen-current assets as it 1s expectea that the
cash wll remain in the blocked account for more than 12 rmonths after the end of the reporting perrod As such, it s
not included in cash and cash eguivalents nthe consolidated staterment of financa: pos tion ana the consol.dated
statement of cash flows.
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1 Accounting policies continued

Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial rabilties into one of two categories, depending on the purpose for which the liability
was acguired The Group’s accounting policy for each category is as follows:

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises contingent consideration. The contingent consideration is carried in the consolidated
statement of financial positicn at fair value with changes In fair value recognised In the consolidated statement
of co™pre~ensive iINncome.

Other financial habilities

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at farr value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, Interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and
redemption value bemng recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
on an effective irterest basis. When borrowings are extinguishea, any difference between the cash paid and the
carrying value 1s recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Trade payables and other short-term monetary labilities represent liabitities for goods and services received by the Group
prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts within trade payables are unsecured. They are
initially recognised at farr value and subseguently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Provisions

A provision Is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present fegal or constructive
cbligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of econcomic benefits will be required to settle
the cbligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected, risk adjusted, future
cash flows at a pre-tax risk-free rate

Dilapidations provisicns relate to the estimated cost to put leased premises back to the required condition expected
under the terms of the lease. These include provisions for required dilapidations along with provisions where leasehold
improvements have been made that would reguire reinstatement back to the original status on exit. These are
uncertamn in timing as leases may be terminated early or extended. To the extent that exits of premises are expected
within 12 months of the end of the year they are shown as current

Professional indemnity provisions relate to complaints agamnst the Group. The amount provided 1s based on
management’'s best estimate of the likely liability. These are recognised as a gross amount, with any amounts covered
by Insurance recognised as an asset within current assets, in line with |1AS 5/,

Social security cost provisions represent estimates of the Group's National Insurance contributions liability on the cost
of the Group’s Performance and Deferred Share Plans

Share capital
Crdinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Retirement benefits: defined contribution schemes
Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the consolidated statement of compreheansive
mcome in the year to which they relate.

Employee Benefit Trust ('EBT")

As the Group 15 deemed to have control of its EBT, it is treated as a subsidiary and consclidated for the purposes

of the consolidated financial statements. The EBT’s investment in the Group’s shares 1s deducted from equity in the
consolidated statement of financiat position as If it were treasury shares. Consideration paid (or received) for the
purchase (or sale) of these shares is recognised directly in equity. The cost of shares held i1s presented as a separate
raserve (the “investment in own shares”). Any excess of the consideration received on the sale of these shares over the
weighted average cost of the shares soid is credited to retained earmings.

The equity-settled share-based payment expense represents the amount of share awards made by the EBT on behalf
of the Company as instructed by the Company.

EBT equity-settled awards, which vest immediately onissue, are measured at the fair value of the shares 1ssued on
the date of the award, representing the bid price of the shares The share-based payment expense 15 charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Dividends

Dividends are recogmsed when they become legally payable. In the case of interim dividends to equity shareholders,
this is when paid, and, in the case of final dividends, this is when approved by the sharehclders at the Annual
General Meeting.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2023

1 Accounting policies continued

Revenue

Revenue, which excludes value added tax, represents the value of employee benefit consultancy and related business
services supplied. Revenue is derived mainly from sales made in the United Kingdom. Revenue derived from outside
the United Kingdom is immaterial.

Amounts recognised as revenue but not yet billed are reflected in the statement of financial position as accrued
:ncome {contract assets for adjustments relating to fixed fees as described below) Al performance obhgations have
been satisfied. Amounts billed in advance of work performed are deferred in the statement of financial position as
contract liabtlities

Performance obligations and timing of revenue recognition

Perforrmance obligations in contracts with customers are typically satisfied as services are rendered. In most cases,
revenue is recognised on an over time basis. This 1s because effort has been expended by the business on fulfilling the
performance obhgations in the contract and the contracts would require payment for time and effort spent by the
Group on progressing the contracts in the event of the customer canceliing the contract for any reason other than
the Group's failure to perform its obligations under the contract. Invoices are in most cases raised maonthly, based

on timesheet data for pensions actuarial and consulting work and pensions investment consulting For pensions
administration services, invoices are typically raised monthly based on services provided. Payment 1s typically

due 30 days from date of invoice. The services by the Group range from actuarial and investment consultancy to
administration of pension schemes. Additionally, the Group has a SSAS and SIPP business which providas services to
small self administered pension schemes and self invested pension plans, The Group receives income on corporate and
customer bank deposits within the SSAS and SIPP business based on a rate linked to the Bank of England base rate.
The Group also provides a defined contributicn master pension trust for employers offering “full freedom and choice”,
called the Nat onal Pension Trust. Income from th s 15 inked to t~e value of assets under menage~ent.

The Group has a number of customers who are on a fixed price contract. These contracts covers a number of services
(pensicns actuarial, administraticn and investment), most of which are ongoing and therefore require no revenue
recognition adjustment to the regular invoice 1ssued to the customer. These are recognised monthly at the time of
billing, as the benefit the customer receives as the work is done 1s largely in line with the amount billed each month.

For some fixed price customers, an element of the fixed fee includes the triennial valuation of their defined benefit
pension schemes, which is a distinct performance obligation Under IFRS 15, the Group has assessed these contracts
and has determined that an adjustment is needed to recognise the revenue for the performance obligation relating to
the triennial valuations in the specific periods that the work 1s undertaken.

Additionaliy, some cf the fixed fee contracts include an element for investment strategic reviews. This s a distinct
performance obligation, which has been assessed under IFRS 15 and it was determined that an adjustment 1s required
to recognise the revenue for this performance oblhgation in the specific periods that the work is undertaken.

For the fixed fee customers where an adjustment is required, payment is made monthlfy over a three-year period.
The revenue recognition for trienrial valustions takes place over the "5-month period a“ler the valuation date, so
there can be up to 35 months' variance between the date of billing and revenue recognition. For strategic reviews,
the variance can also be up to 35 months, depending on the timing of the review within the three-year contract
window Any variance between the timing of payment and the timing of revenue recognition wil be recognised as
erther a contract asset (where the performance obligations met to date exceed the value billed from the contract to
date), or as a contract hability (where the value billed to date from the contract exceeds the performance obligations
met to date).

Determining the transaction price and allocating amounts to performance obligations

For the contracts where an adjustment s required, the Group has identified the element of the fixed fee that 1s
attributable to the trienmial valuation and/or the strategic review. This has been calculated based on the expected
time requred to perform these obligations for each specific customer. To ensure that the revenue is a'located to the
relevant period, the Group has determined the timespan for the triennial valuat'on work, and the separate stages

of this wark. A percentage has been app'ied o each stage, based cn the proportion of total effort. For strategic
reviews, which are a smaller piece of work, the Group makes an assessment at the end of each relevant pericd of the
percentage complete for each review

Judgement s reguired for these contracts n determining the value attributable to the triennial valuation work and the
strategic reviews, and also to the stage of completion at each reporting penod. The judgements made are based on
experience, and have been validated by comparison to timeshee: data

The remainder of revenue from fixed fee contracts is recognised on a monthly basis, as the services provided tend to
be evenly spread cver the life of the contract.

Services provided under contracts which do not include a fixed fee are recogmised at a price guoted with n the
contract which typically varies depending on the level of senionity of the employee providing the service Commission
'ncome s recogn sed on renewal of scherme membership, as the performance obhgations are met at the time the
contract 15 won or renewed with the insurer
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1 Accounting pelicies continued
Expenses

Excepticnal and non-traging items

To assist in understanding its underlying performance, the Group has defined the following items cf pre-tax income
and expense as exceptional or non-trading as they either reflect items which are exceptionat in nature or size or are
associated with the amortisation of acquired intangibles. Iltems treated as non-trading or exceptional include:

+ profits or losses on disposal of assets or businesses;

« corporate transaction and restructuring costs,

+ amortisation of acquired intangibles;

* changes in the fair value of contingent consideration,

« expenses relating to deferred consideration deemed as post-acquisition remuneration under IFRS 3;
* share-based payments; and

+ the related tax effect of these items

Any other non-recurring items are considered individually for classification as non-trading or exceptional by virtue of
their nature or size.

The separate disclosure of these items allows a clearer understanding of the trading performance on a consistent and
comparable basis, together with an understanding of the effect of non-recurring or large individual transactions upcn
the overall profitability of the Group.

The non-trading items have been included within the appropriate classifications in the consolidated income statement.
Further details are given in note 6

L eases and payments

identifying leases
The Group accounts for a contract, or a portion of a contract. as a lease when it conveys the right to use an asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Leases are those contracts that satisfy the following criteria:

(a) there 15 an identified asset,
(b) the Group obtains substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset, and
(c) the Group has the nght tc direct use of the asset.

The Group considers whether the supplier has substantive sutstitution rights. If the supplier does have those nights,
the contract is not identified as giving rise to a lease

In determining whether the Group obtains substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset, the Group
considers only the economic benefits that arise from use of the asset, not those incidental to legal ownership aor other
potential benefits

In determining whether the Group has the right to direct use of the asset, the Group considers whether it directs

how and for what purpose the asset s used throughout the period of use. If there are no significant decisions to be
made because they are predetermined due to the nature of the asset, the Group considers whether it was involved in
the design of the asset in & way that predetermines how and for what purpose the asset will be used throughout the
period of use. If the contract or portion of a contract dees not satisfy thase criteria, the Group applies other applicable
IFRSs rather than IFRS 16.

All leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and a lease lability except for:
+ leases of low value assets; and
+ leases with a duration of 12 months or less.

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the contractual payments due to the lessor over the lease term,
with the discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent In the lease unless (as is typically the case) this is
not readily determinable, in which case the lessee company’s incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the
lease ‘s used. Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at the amount of the lease hability, reduced for any lease incentives received,
and increased for the amount of any provision recognised where the Group 1s contractually required to dismantle,
remove or restore the leased asset (typically leasehold dilapidations - see note 26).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2023

1 Accounting pelicies continued
Leases and payments continued

ldentifying leases continued

Subsequent to Initial measurement lease liabilities increase as a result of interest charged at a constant rate on the
balance outstandihng and are reduced for lease payrnents made. Right-of-use assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the remaining taerm of the lease or over the remaining economic life of the asset if, rarely, this is judged to
be shorter than the lease term. When the Group revses its estimate of the term of any lease (because, for example, it
reassesses the prebability of a lessee extension or termination option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount
of the lease lability to reflect the payments to make over the revised term, which are discounted at the same discount
rate that appled on lease commencement The carrying value of lease liabilities s glso revised when the variable
element of future iease payments dependent on a rate or :ndex is revised; however this will use the onginal discount
rate. In both cases an equivalent adjustment s made to the carrying value of the nght-of-use asset, with the revised
carrying amount being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting depends on the nature
of the modification,

» If the renegotiation results in che or more additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate with the
standalone price for the additional rights of use obtained, the modification 1s accounted for as a separate lease in
accordance with the above policy;

« In all other cases where the renegotiated lease increases the scope of the lease (whether that 1s an extension to the
loase term, or one or more additional assets being leased), the lease liability 1s remeasured using the discount rate
applicable on the modfication date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount; and

« If the renegctiation results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amount of the lease liability
and right-of-use asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease with
any difference recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability 1s then further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount
reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments over the renegotiated term, wth the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicable on the modification date. The right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount

For contracts that both convey a right to the Group to use an identified asset and require services te be provided to
the Group by the lessor, the Group has elected to account for the entire contract as a lease, i.e. it does not allocate any
amount of the contractua’ payments to and account separately for any services provided by the suppler as part of
the contract

when the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease (because, for example, it reassesses the probability of @
lessee extension or termination optien being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect
the payments to make aver the revised term, which are discounted at the same discount rate that apphed on lease
commencement.

Where the lease liability changes due to change in lease term (for example, due to utilisation of an extension option) a
new discount rate is used. This rate is determined as the interest rate implicit in the lease for the remander of the lease
term, if that rate can be readily determined, or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of reassessment if
the interest rate implicit In the lease cannot be readily determined The same rate 1s used far changes in index rates

Foreign exchange policy
Transactions entered into by Group entities in a currency other than the functional currency (GBF) are recorded at the
rates ruling when the transactions occur

Any exchange rate differences are recognised immediately through the statement of comprehensive income
Finance income and expense

Finance costs comprise interest payable, fareign exchange losses and costs cirectly related to the ra:sing of loans.
Finance income compri:ses interest recevable on own funds, and foreign exchange gains

interest income and interest payable are recogrused n prafit or ‘oss as they accrue, using the effective

nterest method

Share-based payment costs - Performance Share Plan and Deferred Share Plan

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensat-on glan, under which the entity receives services from
the Executive Directors and key management personnel in consideration for equity instruments of the Group The fair
va'ue of the services received in exchange for the grant of the awards s recognised as an expense The total amount
o be expensed 15 determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted:

v including any market performance cond tions (for example, an ent ty's share prce); and

« excluaing the impact of any service ang non-market performance vesting condit ons (for example, prof.zab ity
a~dremannga Drec:or for 2 scecf ed ner od of time),
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1 Accounting policles continued

Share-based payment costs - Performance Share Plan and Deferred Share Plan continued
The Deferred Share Plans (DSPs) do not have any market performance conditions ¢r non-market performance vesting
conditrons; they only have service vesting conditicns. The fair value for DSPs is the share price on the date of grant.

The total amount expensed to the Group 1s recognised over the vesting period of the award. Where a share award 1s
cancelled, the share-based payment charge is accelerated at that point in time and all remaining unvested charge is
immediately expensed to the Group

Where a share award includes dividend equivalents, these are included within the iFRS 2 charge described above. The
Group may settle these via cash or shares

See the Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) policy above for information on the Employee Benefit Trust element of share-
based payment costs.

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax i1s recognised in profit and loss in the
statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in equity, in which case it
15 recognised In equity.

Current tax i1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities for

financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following temporary differences are
not provided for: the initial recegnition of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business combination and differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabihties,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised.

Changes in accounting policies - new standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 April 2022
New and amended standards and interpretations i1ssued by the IASB that apply for the first time in these annual
financial statements do not impact the Group as they are either not relevant to the Group's activities or require
accounting which is consistent with the Group’s current accounting policies. These include:

+ onerous contracts - cost of fulfiling a contract (amendments to |AS 37,

« property, plant and equipment: proceeds before intended use (amendments to IAS 16);

+ annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 (amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS &, IFRS 16 and IAS 41); and

« references to conceptual frameweork (@mendments tc IFRS 3).

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations are not effective for 2023, and therefare
have not been applied in preparing XPS Pensions Group's financial statements. They are not expected to have a

material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. These include the following amendments effective
for the year beginning 1 April 2023:

* Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to I1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2);

* Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to I1AS 8); and

» Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities ansing from a Single Transaction (Amendments to 1AS 12).

The following amendments are effective for the year beginning 1 April 2024,

» IFRS 16 Leases (amendment - liability in a sale and leaseback),

* IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements (amendment - classification of liabilities as current or non current), and
* [AS 1 Presentation of financial statements (amendment - non-current liabiities with covenants).

The Group 1s currently assessing the impact of these new acccounting standards and amendments, but currently does
not anticipate that these will drive any material changes (o the Group's consalidated financial statements.

The other standards, interpretations and amendments issued by the IASB (of which some are still subject to
endorsement by the UK) but not vet effective are not expected to have a materiai impact on the Groug's consol dated
financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2023

1 Accounting policies continued

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated based on histerical experience and other facters, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonakble under the circumstances The estimates and underlyng assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis, with revisions to accounting estimates applied prospectively. In the future, actual experience may differ frem
these estimates and assumptions. Significant judgements are separately identified where applicable. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Falr values of intangible assets (note 17)

Goodwll is tested for impairment cn an annual basis at the year end and between annual tests If an event occurs or
circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair vaiue of the cash-generating unit below its
carrying value These events or circumstances could include a significant change in the business climate, legal factors,
operating performance indicators, competition, or sale or disposition of a significant portion of a reporting unit.

Application of the goedwill impairment test reguires jJudgement, incluaing the identification of cash-generating units,
assignment of assets and habilities to such un'ts, assignment of goodwill to such units and determination of the fair
value of a unit. The fair value of each cash-generating unit or asset is estimated using the income approach, on a
discounted cash flow methodology. This analysis requires significant estimates, including estimation of future cash
flows, which is dependent on internal forecasts, estimation of the long-term rate of growth for the business, estimation
of the useful life over which cash flows will occur and determination of our weighted average cost of capital. See note
17 for mere detail

Intangible assets are tested for impairment f an indicator of impairment exists. Similar to goodwlll, the incicator could
be a significant change to the business climate, legal factors, operating performance indicators, competition, changes
to the technological environment, or another external or intarnal factor observed by management As with goodwill,
application of an impairment test here will require judgement and the use of estimates.

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s recognised once the perfarmance obligations of the contract with the customer have been met, In

Ine with IFRS 15, This may be at a point in time or over time according to when control passes to the customer.
Dependent upon the income stream and nature of the engagement, revenue Is recognised on either a time cost
incurred, fixed fee or rateably over the penod of providing the service basis. Revenue s billed on a monthly, quarterly
or, in the case of certamn SSAS and SIPP services, on an annual basis. Services may be billed in arrears, as n the

case of pensions advisgry work, or in advance, as 1s the case with SSAS ana SIPP revenues. As a result of such
arrangements, judgements are made In determining the timing of revenue recognition. The significant jJudgements
relate to identifying individual performance obligations and then allocating an appropriate amount of revenue to those
obligations which largely depends on the time incurred in providing the services. Management applies jJudgement

N assessing timesheet data to ensure that revenue 15 allocated proportionally to effort There are also judgements
involved in determining the level of performance obl.gations met as part of the triennial valuation work. These have
been recognised on the basis of work completed through the 15-month valuation process.

Daferred tax (note 18)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be
avaitable aganst which the losses can be utilised. Significant management estimates are required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Throughout the current and prior pericds the Directors consider
tha: the |AS 12 recognition critena have been satisfied. The recognised deferred tax assets for the Group relate to
share-based payments, whereby a corporation tax asset will arise in the future on the exercise of share options 1ssuea
10 Executive Directors and senior staff under performance share plans ana deferred share plans. See note 18 for
details of the carrying amount of the deferred tax assets.

Provisions (note 26)

Dilapidations provisions have been made for properties which the Group current'y leases based upon the cost to
make good the property in accordance with lease terms where appl-cable. Provis ons are made for claims in respect
of compiaints against the Group. The amount provided 1s based on management’s best estimate of the likely liability
The cost to the business 15 capped to the excess on the Group's professional ndemnity insurance in respect of each
ndividuaal claim
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1 Accounting policies continued
Critical accounting estimates and judgements continued

Useful hives of intangible assets (note 17)

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated usefut lives with the charge recorded in administrative expenses.
Useful lives are based on management's estimates of the period that the assets will generate revenue, which are
periodically reviewed for continued appropriateness. Changes to estimates can result :n significant variations in the
carrying value and amounts charged to the consolidated income statement in specific perods

Exceptional costs (note 6)
Exceptional costs are recognised 1o the extent that they meet the definition outlined in the accounting policy above.
The judaement of whether an expense is exceptional or not reqguires consistent application by management.

Contingent consideration (note 273

Contingent considerat:on is recognised in cost at its acquisition date fair value, and 1s classified as a financial liability.
At each reporting period the hability 1s remeasured at fair value through profit or loss. This remeasurement is based
on management's expectation of future performance Therefore, judgement 1s necessary in assessing the amount of
consideration that will be payable in the future. Because of the inherent uncertainty in th:s evaluation process, actual
gains or losses may be different from the originally estimated consideration.

When a business is acguired, contingent consideration clauses in the share purchase agreement are assessed against
the criteria in IFRS 3 Business Combmations Judgement is necessary to determine whether to account for contingent
consideration as deferred consideration, forming a part of the goodwill calculation, or whether under IFRS 3 the
consideration should be treated as post-acquisition remuneration.

Business combinations (note 7)

The Directors determine and allocate the purchase price of an acguired business to the assets acguired and liabilities
assumed as of the business combination date. The purchase price allocation process reguires the use of significant
estimates and assumptions, including the estimated fair value of the acquired intangible assets

While the Directors use their best estimates and assumptions as part of the purchase price aliocation process to
accurately value assets acquired and Liabilities assumed at the date of acguisition, the estimates and assumptions are
inherently uncertain and subject to refinement. Examples of critical estimates in valuing certain of the intangible assets
acquired or which may potentially be acquired in the future include hut are not imited to

» future expected cash flows from customer relationships and brands; and
* discount rates.

The accounting for the businass combination discussed in note 7 was preliminary in the interim accounts to

30 September 2022, and adjus:ments have been made to this foilowing the concius.on of the full purchase price
allocation process. IFRS 3 allows for any factors present at the date of the business combination but not previously
included in the calculation of the value of intangible assets to be adjusted for within tweive months of the acquisition
date. It 1s therefore possible that the intangible assets acguired could be adjusted by a material amount, with the
offsetting impact in goodwill.

2 Financial risk management

The XPS Pensions Group's operations expose it to a vanety of financial risks including credit risk, hguidity risk, market
risk and the effacts of changes in interest rates on debt The Group has in place a risk management programme that
seeks to Imit the adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group by monitoring levels of debt finance and
the related finance costs.

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise sterling cash, lease habities, bank deposits and bank loans
together with trade receivables and trade pavables that arise directly from its cperations

Risk management policies are established for the XPS Pensions Group of companies and the Group Audit Committee
oversees how management monitors compliance with these policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of
the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. Further details relating to the current year
position are provided in nete 30

Credit risk
Credit rnisk 1s the risk of financial l1oss to the Group if a customer or counterparty, including brokers, to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers

Due to the nature of the business, the majority of the trade recevables are with trustees of pension schemes and large
institutions and losses have occurred infrequently over previous years.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2023

2 Financial risk management continued
Liguidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group's

approach to managing liguid:ty 1s te ensure, as far as pessible, that the Group will have sufficient llaudity to meet 'ts
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions.

Market risk
Market risk 1s the risk that changes in market prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its financial
instruments. Market risk comprises three elements - interest rate risks, foreign exchange risks, and pricing risks.

interest rate risks are discussed in the cash flow interest rate risk below The Group is exposed 1o movements in
Interest rate In 1ts net finance costs and also in a smail element of its operating revenue. Senior loans are linked to
SONIA. The Group earns income 1n relation to chent as well as interest income on Its own deposits

The Group’s financial instruments are currentiy in sterling; hence foreign exchange movements do not have a material
effect on the Group’s performance

The Group does not hold its own position in trading securities, being involved only in arranging transactions on behalf
of 1ts clients

The Group does not engage in holding specutative financial instruments or derivatives Further quantitative disclosures
are included throughout these consolidated financial statements.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The XPS Pensions Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in two mamn respects: firstly, corporate and client
bank deposits, which earn interest at a variable rate. although not at a material level, and secondly. interest expense
arising on bank facilities at a margin over SONIA.

3 Capital risk management

The Group 1s focused on delivering value for its shareholders whilst ensuring the Group 15 able to continue effectively
as a going concern. Value adding opportunities to grow the business are continually assessed, although strict and
careful criteria are applied.

The policy for managing capital is to increase shareholder value by maximising profits and cash. The policy 15 to set
budgets and forecasts in the short and medium term that the Group feels are achievabie. The processes for managing
capital are regular reviews of financial data to ensure that the Group is tracking the targets set and to reforecast as
necessary based on the most up-to-date information This then contributes to the XPS Pensions Group's forecast
which ensures future covenant test points are met The Group continues to meet these test points and they have been
achieved over the last year.

Due to the nature of some of the services provided, two subsidiaries within the Group were regulated by the Financia!
Conduct Authority (FCA) during the year. They are reguired to hold a minimum level of capital and this is menitored
on a monthly basis. Formal compliance returns are submitted to the FCA in ine with their reporting requirements.
The Group was compliar: witn its caoital requiremnents througro.ot the year

4 Other operating income

Other operating income arose from the revaluation of the contingent consideration for the MJF acguisition in
February 2022. Ihe balance of the cortungent consideration 1s expected to be paid by the Group in July 2023 Since
this is not considered to be part of the main revenue generating activities of the Group, the Group presents this
income separately from revenue

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 Marcr

2023 2022
£'000 E'000
Contingent consideration write back (note 27) 197 —
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5 Auditor’s remuneration
During the period the following services were obtained from the Group's auditor at a cost detailed below:

Year ended Ycoar onded
31 March I1 Marck

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

Audit services
Fees payable in respect of the Parent Company and consclidated accounts 328 197
Fees payabie in respect of the subsidiary accounts 252 151
580 348
Audit-related services 78 45
Total 658 393

& Non-trading and exceptional items

Year ended Yecar ended
31 March 31 Marcn

2023 2022
Note £000 £'000

Corporate transaction costs’ (2,871) (3200
Other exceptional costs? - 966
Exceptional items {2,871) 646
Contingent consideration write back?® 27 197 —
Share-based payment costs® 13 (4,660) (3,875)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles® 17 (6,882) (6,579
Non-trading items (11,345) (10.454)
Total before tax (14,216) (5.808)
Tax on adjusting items® 2,910 (2,530)
Ad]usting items after taxation (1,306) (12.338)

1

The Group Incurred corporase lransac: on costs of £2,871,000 in the year (2022 £320000. re ai'ng to acqu'sitions by the Group} Included
wth rn that s £845 000 of cont ngen: consideration in respec: of the acqu siion of Penfida L mited. The maximum contingen: cons derat on
of £3,379.000 would be payable on the second anmversary of the acguis mion subject Lo business performance which includes retent on

of ¢ ents as wel as continued employment of key emp oyees As contnued employment s one par: o the contingent consideralion

test accerding to IFRS 3, Lhe entire conuingent consideration must be treated as & pos: ransact on emg oyment cost accru.ng over the
deferment per od of two years The contingen: cons deration 1s materal nsze and 't s one-off in nature As such, .n hing w'th the Group's
accounting po' cies. it has been c'assifed as an except ona term ¥ the entire contingent censideration 1s not payable at Lthe end of the two
year period, any resJyitng credit will also flow through the exceptional categery The remanng £2.026 000 o corporate ransaclion costs
re ate to the acquiss on of Penfida Lim:ted and orther potenta M&A opportunities explarced by the Groug n the year

The prior vear cred © of £968.000 relates to the reversan of the except onal holday pay accrual in the previous year The one-o'f non-cash
ho. day pay accrdal in the year ended 31 March 2021 argse as the houday cyc e was disrupted by the pandemic and a higher than norma
level of ho'iday wes carred forward at the end o' Lhe holiday year in December 2020 Pror te the pandem ¢ the ho'iday pay accrual had
been stab e In the year ended 31 March 2022 the Group changed its ho'iday year to al'gn with 11s accodnt ng year, and as a result there was
no cash outflow as a resJlt 0F the charge n the year ended 31 March 2021 Due to its one-off nature and the size o the ho. day pay accrua
n he pror year, as weli as the correspond.ng reversal n the year end ng 31 March 2022, 't was deemed appropr.ate to d sc ose the amoun:
separate y ‘rom the underly ng bus ness perormance

The cont ngent consideration wriie back relates 1o the revalual gn of the contngent cons'deration for the MJF acqu sition (note 273

Share-based payment expenses are ncluded nnon-Trading and except onal cosis as they are a sign f'cant non-cash cost which are
exciuded from the resais “or the purposes of measuring performance “or PSP awards and dividend amounts Add ronally, the argey
ron-cash-related creaits go directly to equity and so have a 'm ted 'mpact on the reserves of the Group They are there*ore shown as a
non-trading :lem to g ve clenty Lo users o the accounts on the pro®it figures that dividends and PSP performance are pased on

Dur.ng the year Lhe Group ncurred £6,882 000 of amaor: sat an charges nrelat on to acguired intangib e assets (customer relal onships
and brand) (2022 £6,579,000)

The tax credi: on non-trad ng tems of £2.910.000 (2022 charge of £2,530.000) represents 20% (2022 26%) of the nan-trad ng tems
nearred of £14,216.000 (2022 £9.808 000) Th s s d'fferen: to the cxpected tax credit ©°19% (2022, 19%) as var ods ad ustmenis are
made 10 tax nciud ng “or deferred tax and the exclusion of amounts not a lowable for tax The tax on nen-trad ng and excepuonal items
was a large tax charge in the year ended 31 March 2022 nstead of a tax cred:t, because of the tax rate ncrease ‘rom 18% to 25% from
1Apnl 2073, whicr was erqactea ia tre year 1o 47 Maceh 2027 As a result tne Groap incurren alarge aeferred tax charge nthe prior yoar
(E4 4 mi on)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2023

7 Business combinations during the period

On 21 September 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Penfida Limited from the shareholders of
Penfida Limited for £8.64 million in cash upon completion, and a further payment of £3.38 miltion in September
2024, subject to the achievement of a client retention target, and the sellers still being in employment with the Group.
Because this element s only payable to the sellers who remain in employment at the end of the two-year period,
under IFRS 3 the £3.38 miltion 1s treated as post-acauisit:on remuneration and will be an expense to the business over
the two-year period to September 2024, Th s expense will be treated as an exceptional cost, as it meets the Group's
definition of an exceptional item (see note 6).

Penfida Limited provides employer covenant advisory services. The transaction will strengthen the covenant advice
offering of XPS and gives the Group the resource to expand this offering to both existing clients and new prospects.

Details of the fair value of identifiablie assets and liabilities acquired, purchase censideration and goodwill are
as ‘ollows

Book value Adjustment Fair value

£'000 £'000 £'000 i
Right-of-use asset - 686 686
Non-current asset 55 - 55
Trade and other receivables 1,899 (67) 1,832
Cash 373 - 373
Lease habihty - (534) (534)
Provisions (162) [&1)] (193)
Trade and other payables (1,031) 50 (981)
Corpaoration tax payable (272) (20) (292)
Customer relationships -— 5,215 5,215
Brand - 295 295
Deferred tax - (1,364) (1,364)
Total net assets 862 4,230 8,092

The fair value and the gross value of acguired receivables are the same The receivables have been reviewed and It I1s
expected that all contractual cash flows will be collected.

Fair value of consideration paid

£'000
Cash 8,641
Total considerat.on 8,641
Goodwll| (note 17} 3,549

The main factors leading to the recogn-tion of gocdwlll are the presence of cértain intangible assets, such as the
assembiled workforce of the acquired entities, synergies and potential future cost savings, and the expected growth
I~ the cusiress generated by new customers which do not quah®y for separate recognition.

The goodwili arising from the above acquisition 1s not deductible for tax purposes

Since the acauisit on date, Penfida Limited has contributed £2.3 million to Group revenues and £0 4 million to Group
profit before tax, before taking into account the past-acauisition remunerat:on referred to above Including this figure,
Penfida has contributed a loss of £0.3 milion since the acquisition date

If the acguisition had occurred on 1 Aprit 2022, Group revenue would have been £:68.8 million and Group profit
before tax woulg have been £20 7 milion, excluding the impact of the post-acquisitron remuneration disclosed above
Including this, and assuming the transaction had taken place on 1 April, Group profit before tax wou'd have been

£19 0 million.

Acquisition expenses
Costs relating to the above acauisition (exctuding the post-acquisition remuneration) totailed £474 000 and are
ncluded within exceptional costs as corporate transaction Costs.
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8 Operating segments

In accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments, an operating segment is defined as a business activity whose
operating results are reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (CODM) and for which discrete information
s avalable, The Group's CCDM s the Board of Directors.

The Group has one operating segment and one reporting segment due to the nature of services provided across
the whole business being the same. pensions and employee benefit soluticns. The Group's revenues, costs, assets,
llabilities and cash flows are therefore totally attributable to this reporting segment. The table below shows the
disaggregation of the Group's revenue, by product line.

Year ended Year erded
31 March 31 March

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

Pensions Actuarial & Consulting 77,388 652171
Pensions Administration 57,444 52,339
Pensions Investment Consulting 18,009 13.678
National Pension Trust (NPT) 4,332 4,353
SIP! 9,423 6,081
Total 166,596 138622

1 Se “invested Pens ons (519} business, incorporating both SIPP and SSAS products.

In the year, there was a change in the way that divisional revenues are reported to the CODM which 1s more reflective
of the respeonsibilities and operations of the business. As a result related revenue of £1.5 million has been reallocated
from the Pensions Actuarial & Consulting division to the Pensions Administration division.

The prior year comparative have been restated to enable fair comparability against the current year results
amounting to a reallocation of £1.5 millon revenue from the Pensions Actuarnal & Consulting division to the Pensions
Administration division.

9 Administrative expenses
Included in the operating profit for the year are the following:

Year ended Year ended
3t March 31 Margn

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

Expenses by nature

Staff costs (note 10) 101,436 383060

Depreciation and amortisation 12,386 11,922

Short-term and low value lease costs 224 31

Premises costs (excluding rent accounted for under IFRS 16 Leases) 2,868 2,651

Exceptional items (note B) 2,871 (646)
Other general business costs 24,280 22616

Total 144,065 119,634

10 Staff numbers and costs
The average number of people employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year, analysed by category,
was as follows:
Year ended VYearended
31 March 31 Marcn
2023 2022

Number of Numger of
employees employees

Operational 1,435 1,309
Adrministration 125 106
Sales and marketing 24 20

1,584 1,435
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2023

10 Staff numbers and costs continued
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 Maren

2023 2022

£'000 £'000
wages ang salaries 81,142 66.719
Sociat security contributions and similar taxes 8,913 7454
Defined contribution pension cost 4,009 3509
Other long-term employee benefits 1,867 1,503
Post-acguisition remuneration (note 7) B45 -
Share-based payment costs (note 13) 4,660 3,875

101,436 83060

11 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan
The Company operates a defined contribution pension plan. Outstanding contrbutions at the year end were £nil
(2022 £nil).

12 Directors’ emoluments
The Directors were remunerated for their services by the Group and their emoluments are disclosed below.

Yearended ‘Year ended
31 March 31 Maren

2023 2022

£'000 £000

Aggregate emolurnents excluding gain on exercise of share options 2,626 2,256
Gain on exercise of share options 987 451
Company contributions to money purchase pension plans 30 30
3,643 2737

The share-based payment expense for Directors was £894,000 (2022, £433,000)

Year ended Yearended
31 March 31 Marcn
2023 2022
Number of Number of
Directors Directors

At 31 March 2023, retirerrent benefits are accruing to the following number of Directors under:

Money purchase schemes 3 3

Yearended Yearcnded
31 March 31 Maren

2023 2022
E'000 F Qo0
The emoluments of the highest paid Director, inciuding berefits and share-pased payments 1,194 270

13 Share-based payment costs

The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-based remuneration schemes for employees' Performance Share
Plans (PSPs) for Executive Directors and other key senior personnel, and Deferred Share Plans (DSPs) for key senior
personnel from July 2020 All employees are also eligible to participate 'n the Save as You Earn (SAYE) scheme, the only
vesting condition beaing that the individual rerrains an employee of the Group over the savings period.

The Executive PSP award expense relates to annual awards over shares that vest subject to certain stretching
performance conaitions, measured over a three-year perncd. Maximum “norma’” grant level 1s 150% of salary, capped at a
maximum of 200% in exceptiona! circumstances. Malus and clawback provisions appiy The fair value of awards granted
during the year was determined using certan assumptions around vesting More information about the Executive PSP
can be found n the Remuneration Report section of this Annual Report

The only vesting criteria for the DSP 15 a service critera The fair value of awards under this scheme was determined
using the share price on the date of grant.
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13 Share-based payment costs continued

Year ended Yogr ended
31 March 31 Marce

2023 2022

£000 £'C00

Performance Share Plan awards, Deferred Share Plan awards and SAYE scheme 3,892 2,543
Sccial security cost on Performance Share Plan awards and Deferred Share Plan awards 768 532
Total share-based payments 4,660 3.875

The fair value of Executive PSP options granted during the period was calculated using different methods for different
elements - the Black-Scholes method for the EPS element, the Stochastic method for the TSR element, and the Chaffe
method for the holding period (2022 Black-Scholes methed for the EPS element. the Stochastic method for the TSR
element, and the Finnerty method for the holding period} The inputs to the model were as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2023 Year gnded 31 Margn 2022
25% 25%
relative relative
75% total 75% total
earnings shareholder Two-year earnings  shareholder Two-year
per share return holding per share returr "oldinrg
(EPS) (TSR} period (EPS) (TSR) period
Weighted average exercise price of options 1ssued
during the period (pence) 0.05 0.05 0.08 0.05 00S 005
Expected volatility (%) n/a 38.80% 37.03% nfa 4900% 40 70%
Expected life beyond vesting date (years) 3.00 3.00 2.00 301 Ix 2.00
Risk-free rate (%) n/a 1.81% 1.77% n/a 0.16% 0 34%

Dividend yield (%) —_ — — _ _ _

The Staff DSP options granted during the year had no performance criteria, other than a service condition. Therefore,
the fair value of this award was the market value of shares on the date of the awarg.

The fair value of SAYE options granted during the period, and tha prior period, was calculated using the Black-Scholes
valuation method. The inputs to the model were as follows:

Year ended Ycar ended
31 March 31 Marcn

2023 2022
Weighteo average exercise price of options issued during the period {pence} 104.0 1.0
Expected volatility (%) 47.95% 47.63%
Expected life beyond vesting date (years) 3.34 3.35
Risk-free rate (%) 1.61% C28%
Dividend yield (%} 4.90% 5.00%

The volatility assumption has been calculated over the period of time commensurate with the expected award term
immediately prior to the date of grant. Due to the very high level of volatility in 2020 due to the Covid-12 pandemic,
which we do not believe is reflective of the long-term average future volatiity, we have excluded the geriod from

1 March to 3% Marc~ 2020, being the most volatile.

As at 31 March 2023, in respect of the Group’s ardinary shares of 0.05p each, 2,915,816 Executive PSP options had
been granted and remained outstanding, at an exercise price of 0.05p per share, 318,109 Staff PSP options had
been granted and remaned outstanding, at an exercise price of 0.05p per share, 6 054,667 Staff DSP options had
been granted and remained outstanding, at an exercise price of 0.05p per share, 20,306 SAYE options had been
granted and remained outstanding, at an exercise price of 78p per share, 817,870 SAYE options had been granted
and remained outstanding, at an exercise price of 1Mp per share, and 2,335,793 SAYE options had been granted and
remalned outstanding, at an exercise price of 104p per share. The table below includes dividend eguivalent shares
or the PSP and DSP option figures where agclicable.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2023

13 Share-based payment costs continued

2023 2022
Weighted Weigrted
avera‘ge avergge
exercise exercise
price 2023 arice 2022
pence Number pence Number
Executive PSP Outstanding at 1 April 0.05 3,098,236 Q05 2918849
Granted dyring the year 0.05 1,084,873 [eX 813 964,133
Forfeited during the year 0.05 (572,818) 0.05 (235.198)
Exercised during the year 0.05 (553,445) 0.05 (46,101
Cancelled during the year 0.05 (19,371) 005 (403,447)
Cutstarding at 31 March 0.05 3,037,475 005 3098236
Staff PSP Qutstanding at 1 April 0.05 3,335,675 005 50459n
Forfeited quring the year 005 (752,892) 0.05 (474 375)
Exercised during the year 0.05 (2,177,334) GOs (194,069
Cancetled during the year 0.05 (76,207) G O5 (41,792)
Outstanding at 31 March 0.05 329,242 005 3335675
Staff DSP Qutstanding at 1 April 0.05 3,976,462 005 2331278
Granted during the year 0.05 2,392,868 0.05 1795090
Farfeited during the year 0.05 {63,316) 005 (149.3806)
Outstanding at 31 March 0.05 6,306,014 0.05 39764672
SAYE Outstanding at 1 Aprl B88.61 4,430,966 8022 35883505
Granted during the year 104.00 2,381,306 moo 975.889
Forfeited during the year 94.91 (70,384) 82.74 (171,814)
Exercised during the year 78.01 (3,405,601 8764 (37.421)
Lapsed durnng the year 82.51 (39,784) 14475 (M3.015)
Cancelled during the year 106.14 (122,534) @174 (106.178)
Outstanding at 31 March 110.79 3,173,969 8861 4,430,966

The exercise price of options outstanding at 31 March 2023 ranged between £0 0005 (1.e. the nominal value of

an ordinary share} 1~ the case of the PSPs and £1.71 'n ke case of the SAYE scheme (2022: £0.CO0S to £1.4723.

Treir weignted average contractual life was trree years (2022 tnree years) and their weightec average exercise grice
was £0.04 (2022, £C.01).

Of the total number of options outstanding at 31 March 2023, 356,263 (2022. 447,454 had vested and were exercisable.

The weighted average farr value of each option granted during the year was £1.24 (2022 £1 31). The weighted average
exercise price for exercisable options was O 26p per share (2022 514p per share)
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14 Finance income and expense

Year ended Year erded
31 March 31 March

2023 2022

£'000 £'000
Interest income on bank deposits 10 -
Finance income 10 —
Interest expense on bank loans 2,758 1108
Other costs of borrowing 498 602
Interest on leases 290 2N
Other finance expense 50 46
Finance expenses 3,596 2,047

Other costs of borrowing largely represent the amortisation expense of capitalised loan arrangement fees on the
Group's bank debt.

15 Income tax expense

Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
31 March 3 Marck

2023 2022
£7°000 £'000
Current tax expense
Current year 5,153 4,864
Adjustment in respect of prior year (223) (205)
Total current tax expense 4,930 4,659
Deferred tax (credit)/expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences {1,403) {1,399
Effect of tax rate changes (222) 4.258
Total income tax expense 3,305 7,518

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2t Marcn

2023 2022

£000 £'000

Profit for the year 15,837 9,423
Total tax expense 3,305 7.518
Profit before income tax 19,142 16,941
Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2022: 19%) 3,637 3219
Non-deductible expenses 74 648
Fixed asset differences 39 (55)
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (223) (205)
Amounts charged/(credited) directly to equity or otherwise transferred - th
Excess relief on exercise of share options - (340)
Effect of tax rate change (222) 4258
Total tax expense 3,305 7,518

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK was 19% (2022: 19%). Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
measured at the rate they are expected o unwind at, using a rate substantively enacted at 31 March 2023, which 3
not lower than 25% (2022:19%). Defarred tax not recognised relates to £6 7 mithion of finance expense losses ina pricr
year and their future recoverability is uncertain At 31 March 2023 the total unrecognised deferred tax asset in respect
of these losses was approximately £1.7 million (2022 £1.1 million).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 March 2023

16 Property, plant and equipment

Leasenald Office Fixtures
Improvements  equipme~t and fittings Total
F'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
Balance at 1 April 2022 3,217 1,472 891 5,580
Acguired through business combinations — 59 7 76
Additions 285 5N (7 789
Disposals — 4473 — 447y
Balance at 31 March 2023 3,502 1,595 901 5,998
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 April 2022 1440 639 314 2,393
Acquired through business combinations — 59 17 76
Depreciation charge for the year 315 488 94 897
Disposais - 447) — (447)
Balance at 31 March 2023 1,755 739 425 2,819
Net book value
Balance at 1 April 2022 1777 833 577 3187
Balance at 31 March 2023 1,747 856 476 3,079
Leasehold Office Fixtures
Improvements  equigrrent  and fittings Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
Balance at 1 April 2021 3128 1723 832 5683
Acguired through business combinations — 2 — 2
Additions 174 59! 66 831
Disposals (85) (844) (7} (936)
Balance at 31 March 2022 3217 1,472 8N 5,580
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 Aprit 2021 1,254 1,000 232 2,486
Acquired through business combinations — 1 — 1
Depreciation charge for the year 271 482 89 842
Dispesals (85) (844) N (936)
Balance at 31 March 2022 1440 639 314 2,393
Net book value
Balance at 1 April 2023 1.874 723 600 3,197
Balance at 31 March 2022 1.777 833 577 3187
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17 Intangible assets

Customer
Goodwiil relationsmips Brands Soltware Total
Groun F'000 £'000 £'000 £:000 £:000
Cost
Balance at 1 April 2022 121,818 125,269 65.036 10,807 263930
Acquired through business combinations 3,549 5.215 295 - 9059
Additions - - - 4,879 4,879
Disposals - — (6,036) (1.097) (7133
Balance at 31 March 2023 125,367 130,484 295 14,589 270,735
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1 April 2022 — 48,527 5,880 2623 57130
Amaortisation for the year — 65,727 155 1,753 8,635
Disposals - - (6,036) (1,.097) (7133)
Balance at 31 March 2023 — 55,254 99 3,279 58,632
Net book value
Balance at 1 April 2022 121,818 78,742 56 8184 206,800
Balance at 31 March 2023 125,367 75,230 196 11,310 212,103
Customer
Goodwill relatigrships Brards Software Total
£'000 £'000 £:000 £:000 £'000
Cost
Balance at 1 April 2021 120,343 123,305 6,036 5076 254,760
Acqurred through business combinations 1475 1,964 — — 3,439
Additions — — — 6,611 6,61
Disposals - — — (B8 880
Balance at 31 March 2022 121,818 125,269 6,036 10.807 263,930
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1 April 2021 — 42,0M 5,917 2,048 49976
Amortisation for the year — 6,516 63 1,455 8,034
Disposals — — - (B80) (880)
Balance at 31 March 2022 — 48,527 5,980 2623 57130
Net book value
Balance at 1 April 2021 120,343 81,294 19 3028 204,784
Balance at 31 March 2022 121,818 76,742 56 8,184 206,800
Material customer relationship assets are broken down as follows.
Remaining Net hook Remamning Net oook
UVEL value JEL value
years £'000 years £'000
31 March 31 March 31 Marcn 3t Maren
2023 2023 2022 2022
Acauisitions prior to January 2018 (CGU 1) 10 17,820 N 19.623
Punter Southall actuarnal (CGU 2) 15 40,869 16 43,634
Punter Southall administrative (CGU 3) 5 4,677 3] 5,655
Kier (CGU 3} 6 1,734 7 2,044
XPS Pensicns (RL)Y Limited (CGU 1) 7 1,879 8 2,184
XPS Pensions (Trigon) Limited (CGU D 7 1,417 8 1632
Michael J Field (CGU D 9 1,743 G 1,931
Penfida Limited (CGU 43 20 5,085 - —
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements continued
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17 Intangible assets continued

The brands disposed of in the year included the rights to use the Punter Southall brands for two years as part of

the Punter Southall acquisition in 2018 - these were fully amortised in the year ended 31 March 2019, following the
successful integration of the businesses. As the period the rights were held for has since expired, the brand was
disposed of in the year to 31 March 2023. The brand had a cost of £5,408.000 and a NBV of £nil at 31 March 2023 and
1 April 2022. The remaining £628,000 relates te brands acguired on 21 February 2013 by the Group. These brands had
a useful life of ten years, and are no longer in use by the Group. They had a NBV of £nil at 31 March 2023 and a NBY of
£57.000 at 1 Aprnil 2022.

Software assets held by the Group cemprise internally generated or enhanced software for use in providing services
to customers The largest group of software assets relates to the administration business, specifically the development
of an in-house administration system. Software disposals in the year related to software which has reached the end of
its useful economic life and is no longer In use.

Impairment test

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration over the fair value of the net assets acauired on the purchase of
the subsidiary companies sted n note 3%, as well as goodwill which has ansen on the purchase of trade and assets by
the Group. In accordance with IFRS, this balance is not amortised and is subject to annual impairment reviews.

The carrying value of goodwill was assessed based on the three cash-generating units that were identified in prior
years, and g new cash-generating unit comprising the Penfida acguisition in the year.

The four CGUS to which goodwill has been allocated are:

CGU 1 - former Xafinity businesses, Royal London, Trigen, and Michael J Field acquisitions;
CGU 2 - PS Actuanal;

CGU 3 - PS Admin; and

CGU 4 - Penfida Ltd.

The cash-generating unit at each year end was assessed on the basis of value In use using the following assumptions,
which reflect the past experience of the Group:

2023 2022

cGU1 CGU 2 [V cGU 4 CGUT CGU 2 CGJ3
Discount rate pre-tax 13.1% 13.1% 13.1% 13.1% 93% S.3% S 3%
Terminal rate after Del’lod 8 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 20% 20% 2.0%
Period on which detalled forecasts are based 3years 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years Jyears 3 years
Growth rate dunng detalled forecast period
{average) 7.7% 8.8% 31.2% 9.4% 10 4% 7 4% 27 3%
Growth rate appled beyond
acproved forecast oeriod to year 8 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%

The discount rate comprises two elements, the cost of debt and the cost of equity, to derve a blended cost of capital
dernanded by all providers of capital. The cost of eguity is based on the following components:

* beta: calcuiated to estimate how volatiie the Group's equity 1s compared to the FTSE Smal!Cap index;

risk-free rate: using a ten-year UK government bond yield as a proxy for the risk-free rate;
* equity rnisk premium: the implied rate as at 31 March 2023 1s used to assess the price of nsk in equity markets; and

* smail company premium. an addit'onal size premium 15 applied to the Group's cost of eauity In to account for
extra rsk

The cost of debt reprasents the cost of capital for the Group’s drawn Revolving Credit Facility and 1s based on average
borrow ngs dur ng the year.

The cash flows used for the value in use calculations incorporate the impact of inflation, and future assumptions
regarding inflation which are based on the atest outlook from the UK government

The growth rate beyond the forecast period s based on a blend of average growth rates experienced by the Group
and management’s assessmeant of industry and macroeconomic outlooks Such forecast rates have been accurate in
the past, so the Direciors believe they will be suffic ent.y representative of actual results

The growth rate is apphed up to eight years, this is due to the longevity of the customer relationshups held by the
Group The growth rate of 5% 15 higher than the terminal rate due to expectat-ons of market conditicns and higher
~flat or ntre Mmed u~ term,
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17 Intangible assets continued

Impairment test continued
The mpairment exercise demonstrated that there was significant headroom in all CGUs on this basis, so the Directors
are satisfied that no impairment has arisen during the financial period.

2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Goodwill allocated to cash-generating units:
Goodwill - XPS Pensions Consulting Limited, XPS SIPP Services Limited, Xafinty Pensicns Consultinrg
Limited and subsidiaries, XPS Pensions (RL) Limited, XPS Pensions (Trigon) Limited (CGU 1) 30,007 30,007
Goodwill - XPS Investment Limited, XPS Pensions Limited (CGU 2) 79,314 79,314
Goodwill - XPS Holdings Limited, XPS Administration Holdings Limited, XPS Administrat.on Limited (CGU 3) 12,497 12,497
Goodwill - Penfida Limited (CGLU 4) 3,549 —

125,367 121.818

Sensitivity analysis of assumpfions

The Group performed further sensitivity analysis by recalculating the fair value of the net assets of the Group on a
“worst-case” basis. For the Group, the worst case would be breaching the banking covenants on leverage, as that could
lead to the Group's Revolving Credit Facility being withdrawn. The size of the impact on revenue to reach this point
was considered, alongside mitigating factors that the Group would take if necessary. This analysis showed that ths
potential worst case scenario s considered unlikely to matenal:se, and so there was no reguirrement for impairment.

18 Deferred income tax
Analysis of the breakdown and movement of deferred tax during the year is as follows:

Balance at Recognised Recognised Acquired 31 March

1Apnl 2022 i ircame Inequity in period 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000

Praperty, plant and eguipment 90 136 — — 226
Capital gains 943 — - - 943
Short-term temporary differences (1,099 (459) (258) — (1,816)
Business combinations 19032 (1,304) — 1,364 19,092
18,966 (1,627) (258} 1,364 18,445

Balance at Recogrised Recogrised Acquired 31 March

1A 2021 11 income Ineauity in period 2022

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £:000

Property. plant and eguipment 5l 39 — — =le)
Cap:tal gains 77 226 — — S43
Short-term temporary differences (767) (339) 7 - (1.099)
Business combinations 15,622 2933 - 477 19,032
15,623 2,859 7 477 18,966

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been measured at the rate they are expected to
unwind at, using a rate substantively enacted at 31 March 2023, which 1s not lower than 25% (2022:19%)

In prior years, deferred tax assets and labilities were disaggregated and presented gross in the statement of financial

positicn; per |AS 12 these are now netted off and presented as a deferred tax hability. The pricr year has been restated
There is no iImpact on the income statement as a result of this; it purely impacts the presentation on the statement of

financial position of deferred tax, decreasing deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilities by £1,092,000 (£767,000

as at 1 April 2021).

19 Other financial assets

The non-current financial asset relates to restricted cash held by the Group as securnty for the National Pension Trust
(NPT). For the NPT to gain approval to operate by the Pens'ons Regulator, the Group is required to demonstrate it can
support the NPT in any eventuality. The Group has therefore placed £1,847,000 (2022 £1,814 000) nto a restricted
bank account, which the trustees of the NPT are able to access in certain circumstances.

There are no lifetime expected credit losses associated with this cash balance.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 March 2023

20 Trade and other receivables

31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£7000 £'000

Trade receivables 21,642 17,925
Less: provision for impairment of trade recenvables (363) (3303
Net trade receivables 21,279 17,595
Accrued income 16,407 13,240
Contract assets 1,475 1,322
Total financial assets other than cash and cash equivalents carried at amortised cost 39,161 32157
Prepayments 4,498 6,292
Other receivables 106 327
Total trade and other recelvables 43,765 38,776
The carrying value of trade and other recewables carried at amortised cost approximates to fair value.

Past due

Past due Past due more than Total

31 March 2023 Current 0-30 days 31-90 days 90 days £'000
Expected loss rate 0% 1% 4% 18%
Gross carrying amount 16,402 3,395 1,177 668 21,642
LOss provision 32 Fal 5 123 227
Amendment for specific bad debt provision (32) (21) [¢1)] 240 136
Total - - - 363 363

Past due

Past due Past due  moretna” Totai

31 Marcn 2022 Current  (0-30days 31 90 days 80 days [yelele)
Expected loss rate 0% 0% 2% 24%
Gross carrying amount 13,018 3,089 876 942 17,925
LOSS provision 13 =] 15 226 263
Amendment for specific bad debt provision 3 9) (5) 04 67
Total - - - 330 330

The Group apples the IFRS 8 simplfied approach to measuring expected credit losses using a lifetime expected credit
loss provision for trade recevables and contract assets. The expected loss rates are based on the Group's historical

credit losses experienced over the three-year period prior to the pericd end. The historical loss rates are then adjusted
for current and forward-locking information affecting the Group's customers

Once the IFRS 9 apprcach has been calculated, the Group then calculates a specific debt provision based on age
of debr and specific chert krowledge, The provision s then adjusted 1o ta<e this cetall nto account.

Of the March 2022 contract asset balance of £1,322.000. €1,014,000 was billed 1in the year, reducing the brought
forward amount A further £1,i67,000 of revenue was recegn-sed In the year. There are no other significant movements
in the contract assets balance .n the year The March 2023 contract asset balance is expected to be billed in the year
end-ng 31 March 2024 {(£1,230,000), the year ending 31 March 2025 (£242,000), and the year ending 31 March 2026

(£3,000).

21 Cash and cash equivalents

I1 March 31 Marc

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

Cash and cash eqguivalents per statement of #nancia 0os ion 13,285 0,150
Cash and cash equivalents per statement of cash flows 13,285 10,150

The palance s comprsed soley of cash at bank and cn hand.
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22 Loans and borrowings

Due
Due within between Sub-total
1year tand 2 Due after (non-
(current) years 2 years current) Total
31 March 2023 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Drawn Revolving Credit Faciiity - - 68,000 68,000 68,000
Capitalised debt arrangernent fees - - (690) (690) (690)
Total - - 87,310 67,310 67,310
Due Due
within botweer Suo-total
1year land 2 Due after (non-
(current) years 2 years current) Total
31 Margn 2022 F'000 £°:000 E'Q00 £000 £'000
Drawn Revolving Credit Facility — —  £4.000 64000 64000
Capitalised debt arrangement fees — (276) (4153 (691) (69D
Sub-total — (276) 63585 83,309 63,309
Capitalised debt arrangement fees shown as current assets on balance
sheet (276) — — - (276}
Total (276) (276) 63585 £3.309 63,033
The book value and fair value of loans and borrowings are not materially different.
Terms and debt repayment schedule
Amount Year of
31 March 2023 £'000 Currency Nominal interest rate maturity
Revolving Credit Facility 68,000 GBP 1.85% above SONIA 2025
Amount Norminal irterest Year of
3 March 2022 £'000 Currency rate maturity
Revolving Credit Facility 54,000 GBP 1.65% above SONIA 2025

At 31 March 2023 the Group had drawn down £68,000,000 (2022 £64,000,000) of its £100,000,000 Revolving
Credit Facility. The Group's Revolving Facility Agreement is for £100 milhien with an accordicon of £50 millien. This
facility has a four-year term which started in October 2021, In Agrl 2023, a one-year extension tc the term was agreed,
extending it to October 2026 Interest Is caiculated at a margin above SONIA, subject to a net leverage test. The
related fees for access to the facility are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Capitalised loan-related costs are amortised over the life of the loan to which they relate.

Bank debt is secured by way of debentures in the Group companies which are cbiigors to the lcans. These are XPS
Reading Lim:ted, XPS Consulting (Reading) Limited, XPS Pensions Consulting Limited (and its subsidiaries), Xafinity
Pensions Consulting L'mited (and 1ts subsidiaries), XPS SIPP Services Limited, and XPS Heldings Limited (and its

subsidiaries). The security is over all the assets of the companies which are obligors to the loans.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 March 2023

23 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Non-casn
crange
Non-casr rew leases/
31 March Casn cnange Interest 31 March
2022 flows amortisation tris year 2023
F'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Long-term borrowings 654,000 4,000 - — 68,000
Capitalised debt arrangement fees (967} — 277 - (690)
Interest payable on long-term borrowings 57 {2.985) — 2977 49
Lease habllities 1,680 (3.267) — 1.522 9,935
Total liabilities from financing activities 74770 (2,.252) 277 4,499 77,294
Nor-cash
Non-cash charge
change new leases/
31 Marcn Cash liaothity Interast 31 Mareh
2021 flows to asseat tnis year 2022
£000 £'000 £'000 [a(e]ele] E'000
Long-term borrowings 59000 5,000 — — 64000
Capitalised debt arrangement fees (310} (1105) 276 172 (967}
Interest payabie on long-tarm borrowings 10 0.222) — 1,269 57
Lease hablities 12,706 (3,042 — 2,016 1,680
Total liabilities from financing activities 71,406 (369) 276 3,457 74770
24 Trade and other payables
31 March 21 Marcn
2023 2022
£7000 E'000
Trade payables 4,752 8,635
Accrued expenses 15,406 8.867
Interest payable 49 57
Other payables an 390
Total financial liabilities excluding leases, loans and borrowings, classified as financial liabilities
at amortised cost 20,678 17,949
Other payables - tax and social security payments 2,178 1,846
Other pavables - VAT 5,892 4,233
Contract habilities 3,315 3,247
Total trade and other payables 32,063 237275
Due within one year or less 31,218 27,275
Due between one and three years 845 —

The carrying value of trade and other payables classified as financial llabilites measured at amortised cost

approximates to fair value.

The March 2023 contract 1ability balance is expected to be recognisea in the year ended 31 March 2024 (£3,011,000),
31 March 2025 (£251,000), and 31 March 2026 (£53.000). Of the March 2022 contract liabiity balance of £3.247.000,
£3 041,000 was recognised In revenue In the year to 31 March 2023, £150,000 will be recogrised 1n the year to

3" March 2024 arg £56.000 1~ the year 1o 31 March 2025,

The non-current trade and cther pavables relate tc post-acqgusition remuneration for the Penfida acauisition,

which s payab e n Seotember 2024,

25 Current income tax liabilities

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

£'000 £000

Tax payable 2,280 2,207
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26 Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Social

security

costs on

Performance Professional
Share Plan Dilapldations indemnlty Total
31 March 2023 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 April 2022 985 1,631 39 3,017
Provisions made during the year 765 247 558 1,570
Provisions used during the year (605) (44) (93) (742)
Provisions released unused during the year - (116) {44) (160)
On acquisition _— 193 -_ 193
Balance at 31 March 2023 1,155 1,91 :1¥4 3,878
Due within one yvear or less 658 539 812 2,009
Due after more than one year:

Between one and three years 497 288 - 785
QOver three years -_ 1,084 - 1,084
1,155 1,91 812 3,878

Social

securty

costs on

Performarce Professional
Shaqe Plar Dilapidations indemmity Total
21 Maren 2022 £000 £000 E'000 £'000
Batance at 1 April 2021 746 1.712 604 3,062
Provisions made during the year 532 20 3327 884
Prowvisions used during the year (283) - (350) (633)
Provisions released unused during the year — aon (195) (296)
Balance at 31 March 2022 395 1,631 3N 3017
Due within one year or less 594 251 297 1,236
Due after more than cne year:

Between one and three years 401 442 - B43
Over three years — 938 — 338
995 1,631 N 3,017

Social securnity costs (National Insurance) are payable on gains made by employees on the exercise of share options
granted to them. The eventual liability to National Insurance 1s dependent on:

+ the market price of the Group’s shares at the date of exercise;
« the number of options that will be exercised, and
+ the prevailing rate of National Insurance at the date of exercise.

Dilapidations relate to the estimated cost of returning a leasehold property te its original state at the end of the lease
In accordance with the lease terms The cost I1s recognised within the depreciation of the right-of-use asset over the
remaining term of the lease. The main uncertainty relates to estimating the cost that will be incurred at the end of
the lease

The dilapidations provision will be utilised after the end of the lease of the asset to which it relates.

The Group 15 iInvelved in a small number of potential professional indemnity clams. The amount provided represents
the Directors’ best estimate of the Group’s hiability, after having taken legal advice. Uncertainties relate to whether
claims wiil be settled out of court or if not whether the Group is successful in defending any action. Because of the
nature of the disputes, the Directors have not disclosed future information on the basis that they believe that this
would be seriously prejudicial to the Group's position in defending the cases brought against it. The provision rerating
to potential professional iIndemnity claims is updated depending cn the status of each individual claim
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2023

27 Deferred consideration

Balance at

lAprit  Farr value 31 March

2022 adjustrrmenrt 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000

Contingent cash consigeration 765 (1973 568
Balarce at

1Apn 31 March

2021 Acaustion 2022

£000 £'000 £'000

Contingent cash consideration — 765 765

The contingent cash consideration liability recognised at 31 March 2023 relates to the Michael J Field acguisition in
February 2022 Theiiabilities have been calculated based on terms agreed in the business purchase agreemeant for
Michael J Field, which are dependent on certain revenue and cost targets being met in the 12 months following the
acguisition date. The fair value adjustment in the year related to the assessment of performance of the acquisition

™ Ccomparnson to targets set out 'n the busimess purcnase agreement. The contingent cash consideration is expected
to be pad r Jjuly 2023,

28 Share capital
Ordinary Ordinary Qradinary Qrdirary

shares shares shares snares

000 £'000 Lele]e) €000

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2023 2023 2022 2022

Inissue at the beginning of the year 205,151 103 205117 103
Issued during the year 2,292 1 34 —
\nissue at the end of the year 207,443 104 205751 103

31March 31 March 31 Marcr 31 March

2023 2023 2022 2022
000 £000 ‘000 £'000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 0.05p (2022 O 05p) each 206,427 103 201982 101
Shares held by the Group’s Employee Benefit Trust
Ordinary shares of 0 05p (2022: 0 Q5p) each 1,016 1 3169 2
Shares classified in sharehaolders' funds 207,443 104 205157 103

The Group has mvested in the shares for its Employee Benefit Trust (EBT). These shares are he'd on behalf of
employees and legal ownership will transfer to those employees on the exercise of an award This investment in
own shares held in trust s decucted from ecoty v the corsohdated staternent ¢F changes \n eauty.

29 Reserves
The following describes the nature end purpese of each reserve within equity

Reserve Descriotion and purpose
Retained earnings/ All net gains and losses recognised through the consohdated statement of comprehensive
accumuiated deficit Income. In the year a share premium reduction exercise was undertaken, and as a result

£116.804,C00 was moved from share premium to retained earnings

Share premium Amourts subscribed for share capital In excess of normnal value .n the year a share prem:um
reduction exercise was undertaken, and as a result £116.804,000 was maved from share
prem-um to retaned earnings

Merger relief reserve The merger relief reserve represents the afference between the fair value and nominal value
of shares 1ssued on the acquisition of subsid ary comrpanies

Investment i own shares: Cost of own shares neld by the EBT
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30 Financial instruments
The fair values and the carrying values of financial assets and liabilities are the same.

Financial assets and financial liabilitres measured at fair value In the statement of financial position are grouped Into
three levels of a fairr vaiue hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the
measurement, as follows:

* level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

» level 2: inputs other than guoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

« level 3 unobservable inputs for the asset or habihity.

The Group's finance team performs valuations of financizl items for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair
values, in consultation with third-party valuation specialists for complex valuations Valuation techniques are selected
based on the characteristics of each instrument, with the overall cbjective of maximising the use of market-based
information The finance team reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer

The Group currently holds level 3 financial assets and habilities.

Contingent consideration 1s a levet 3 financial liability and is measured based on performance compared to targets
agreed in the relevant business transfer agreement. The amount s not discounted as this would be immaterial.

The contingent consideration balance is made up of £568,000 relating to the Michael J Field acauisition in
February 2022, which is payable in July 2023, Th s amount has been calculated based on acnievement of both
arevenue anc cost target.

Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was
Carrying Carryirg

amount amount

31 March 31 Marcn

2023 2022

£°000 £'000

Trade receivables 21,642 17,925
Provision for impairment of trade receivables (363) (330}
Net trade recelvables due 21,279 17,595
Accrued income 16,407 13,240
Contract assets 1,475 1,322
Cash and cash equivalents 13,285 10,150
Non-current financial asset 1,847 1,814

54,293 4412

Credit risk mitigation
The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date was
31 March 31 March

2023 2022
£'000 £C00
Not past due 16,402 13,018
Past due 0-30 days 3,395 3.089
Past due 31-90 days 1,177 876
Past due more than 90 days 668 942

21,642 17925

Movement in impairment ailowance for trade receivables:

Balance at start of the year 330 350
Increase during the year 359 121
Recevable written off during the year as uncollectable (105) (57)
Reversal of allowances (221) (84)
Balance at end of the year 363 330
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2023

30 Financial instruments continued

Credit risk mitigation continued

The Group prepared a forward-looking impairment model using a provisicn matrix based on historical data. Using
this, the Group believes that an impairment allowance of £363,000 (2022 £330,000) is adeqguate in respect of
trade receivables. Those debts which have not bean provided against are considered recoverable by the Group.
in accordance with IFRS 9. the expected crecit loss (ECLY model was used to calculate the imoarrment loss.

The Group has considered whether any provision needs to be made for credit losses on contract assets and accrued
income, and concluded that there are none

Cash flow risk

The Group Is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk In two main respects: firstly, corporate and client bank deposits,
which earn interest at a variable rate. although not at a material level, and secondly, interest expense arising on bank
facilities at a margin over SONIA.

Interest rate risk
The interest rate onong-term borrowings i1s a margin over SONIA and as such the Company is at risk from SONIA
increases. The sensitivity of the interest rate risk has been assessed and it 1s not matenal.

Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the Group’s working capital and the finance charges and principal repayments on its debt
instruments It 1s the risk the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fail due.

The following table sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted cash flows) of financial liabilities:

Between Between Between

Upto3d 3and12 1and 2 2and 5 Over 31 March

months months years years S vears 2023

£'000 £'000 £7000 £'000 £'000 £°000

Trade and other pavables 20,678 - - - - 20,678
Leases 1,009 2,067 1,926 4,337 1,500 10,839
Loans and borrowings - - - 68,000 — 68,000
Bank interest 1,000 3,425 3,936 2,364 - 10,725
Deferred consideration 568 - - - - 568

23,255 5,492 5,862 74,701 1,500 110,810

RBatween Between Between

Jieto 3 Tand12 land 2 2a7d5s Over 31 Marcr

rmontas months YEArS years S years 2022

£'000 £'000 £'000 £Q00 E'000 £:000

Trade and other payables 17,849 — — — — 17.849
Leases IRIE) 1.9n 2537 4,479 2,608 12,648
Loans and borrowings — — — 84,000 — 64,000
Bank interest 375 1.06° 1,236 2,367 — 5.039
Deferred consideration — 765 — — — 765

19,439 3737 3773 70.846 2606 100,401

The Group does not have any cencerns over meeting its habilities as they fal due, as the forecasts preparea indicate
sufficient cash receipts in each period to cover habilities

Capital risk
The Group’s cbjectives when managing capital are to maximise shareho!aer value whi'st safeguarding the Group's
ability to continue as a going cencern. Totai capita! 1s calculated as total equity in the statement of financial position

Management of capital
31 March 3" Marcn

2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Total equity 149,284 144 435
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31 Leases

Nature of leasing activities {in the capacity as lessee)

The Group leases a number of properties in the UK. In some instances the rent is reviewed and may be reset

periodically to market rental rates. In other cases the periodic rent is fixed over the lease term. The Group also leases
certain items of equipment (photocopiers). Leases of photocopiers comprise only fixed payments over the lease
terms. The percentages in the table below reflect the current proportions of lease payments that are either fixed or
variable. The sensitivity reflects the impact on the carrying amount of lease habilities and right-of-use assets if there

was an uplift of 5% on the balance sheet date to lease payments that are variable.

Lease Fixed Variable
contracts payments payments Sensitivity
31 March 2023 Number % £7000
Property leases with periodic uplifts to market rentals 7 - a3 * 309
Property leases with fixed payments n 16 - -
Leases of plant and equipment 1 1 —_ —
19 17 83 + 309

Lease Fixed Variable
contracts payments paymerts Sensitivity
31 Marcn 2022 Number % % £'000
Property leases with periodic uplifts to market rentals 9 — 82 + 334
Property leases with fixed payrments 8 17 — —
Leases of plant and equiprment 2 1 - —
19 18 82 £ 334

The Group sometimes negotiates break clauses in its property leases. On a case-by-case basis, the Group wili consider
whether the absence of a break clause would expose the Group to excessive risk. Typically, factors considered in

deciding to negotiate a break clause include:
+ the length of the lease term, and

» whether the location represents a new area of operations for the Group.

At 31 March 2023, the carrying amounts of lease habilities are not raduced by the amount of payments that would be
avoided from exercising break clauses because on both dates it was considered reasonably certain that the Group
would not exercise its right to break the lease. Total undiscounted lease payments of £6,170,938 (2022 £6,689,469)
are potentially avoidable were the Group o exercise break clauses at the earliest opportunity.

Lard and Office

bulldings  equipment Total
Rignt-of-use assets £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 April 2022 10,824 103 10,927
Additions 616 — 616
Depreciation (2,795) (5MD (2,854)
Effect of modification to lease terms 309 - 309
On acquisition 686 — 686
At 31 March 2023 9,640 44 9,684

Land and Cffice

oulidings  equipment Total
Rigrt-of-use assets 000 £:000 Fo00
ALl April 2021 12,063 165 12,228
Additions 1,745 — 1,745
Depreciation (2,984} (62) (3,048
At 31 March 2022 1¢,824 103 10,927
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2023

31 Leases continued

Nature of ieasing activities (in the capacity as lessee) continued

Land and Offrce
oulldings  equiprrent Total
L ease liabilities £'000 £°000 E'0Q0
At 1 Apnl 2022 11,565 ns 1,680
Additions 616 - 616
Interest expense 287 3 290
Effect of modification to lease term az — 8z
On acgusition 534 — 534
Lease payments (3.204) (63> (3.,267)
At 31 March 2023 9,880 55 9,935
Land and Office
bulldings  eguioment Total
Lease laoihtues £'Co0 £'¢00 £'000
At1 April 2021 12,528 178 12,706
Additions 1,725 — 1,725
Interest expense 286 5 291
Lease payments (2,974 (68) (3.042)
At 31 March 2022 11,665 15 11,680
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Short-term lease expense 21 30
Low value lease expense n 8
Aggregate expense for short-term and low value leases 222 38
The maturity of the lease habilities are as follows.
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 Marcr
2023 2022
E'000 000
Up to 3 months 817 1,039
Between 3 and 12 months 1,884 17086
Between 'and 2 years 1,742 2,327
Between 2 and 5 years 4,135 4192
More than 5 years 1,357 2,427
9,935 1,680
32 Notes supporting statement of cash flows
Cash and cash eguivalents for the purposes of the statement of cash flows comprise:
Year Year
ended crded
31March I Marer
2023 2022
£'000 £000
Cash at bank avallable on demand 13,285 10,150
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23 Related party transactions

Key management emoluments during the year

Year Year

ended ended

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

£'000 E'000

Emoluments 3,310 2.377
Share-based payment 894 433
Company contnbutions to money purchase pension plans 30 30
Social security costs 376 255

4,610 3.095

Non-executive emoluments during the year

Year Year

ended ended

3t March 31 March

2023 2022

£'000 £°000

Emocluments 303 330
Soclal security costs 39 4]
342 37

34 Earnings per share
31 March 31 March

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

Profit for the year 15,837 9,423
000 ‘000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue 205,448 203,742
Diuted weighted average number of ordinary shares 216,07 212,519
Basic earmngs per share (pence) 7.7 46
Dituted earnings per share (pence) 7.3 4.4

The calculation of basic earnings per share 1s based on the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders
divided by the weighted average number of shares inissue during the peried.

Reconciliation of weighted average ordinary shares in issue to diluted weaighted average ordinary shares:

Year Year

ended e~ded

31 March 31 Marcn

2023 2022

‘000 000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue 205,448 203742
Dilutive impact of share options vested up to exercise date 802 329
Dilutive impact of PSP and DSP options not yet vested 7,920 5954
Dilutive impact of dividend yield shares for PSP and DSP options 1,069 BO3
Dilutive impact of SAYE options not yet vestad 832 1,697
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares 216,071 212,519

Share awards were made to the Executive Board members and key management personnel in each year since the
year ended 31 March 2017, these are subject to certain conditions, and each tranche of awards vests three years after
the award date. Dividend yield shares relating to these awards will also be awarded upon vesting of the main awards.
Further shares have been issued under SAYE share schemes in the years ended 31 March 2020, 2022 and 2023, these
will vest In the years ending 31 March 2023, 2025 and 2026 respectively. These shares are reflected in the diluted
number of shares and diluted earmings per share calculations.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2023

34 Earnings per share continued

Adjusted earnings per share

Total Total

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

Adiusted profit after tax 27,143 21,761
Adjusted earnings per share (pence) 13.2 10.7
Diluted aqjusted earnings per share (pence) 12.6 02

35 Subsidiaries

The following is the list of wholiy owned companies consolidated within the financial statements of XPS Pensions

Group plc.
Comrpany

Company namre Aumoer Princioal activity Registered address

XPS Pensions Group plc 08279139 Holding company Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reading, Berkshire RG11NB

XPS Financing Limited 08279274  Holding company Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reading, Berkshire RG1 INB

XP5 Reading Limited 08279362 Holding company Phoenix House, 1 Statron Hili, Reading, Berkshire RG1TNB

XPS Consulting (Reading) Limited Q8287502 Holdng company Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reading, Berkshire RG11NB

XPS Pensions Consuiting Limited 02459442  Employee benefit Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reading, Berkshire RG1 INB
consultancy

XPS SIPP Services Limited SC069096 Emplovee benefit Scotia House, Castle Business Park, Stirling, Stirlingshire
consultancy FK94TZ

Xafinity Pensions Consulting 04436642 Dormant Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reading, Berkshire RG1 INB

Lrimited

Xafimty PT Limited Q0232565 Dormant Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reading, Berkshure RGTINB

Entegria Limited 05777554  Dormant Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reading, Berkshire RG1 INB

Xahnity Pension Trustees Limitedd  0'450089 Dormant Phoenix House, 1 Station —ill, Reading. Berksnire RG1INB

Hazell Carr (AT) Services Limited  SC420031  Employee benefit Scotia House, Castle Business Park, Stirling, Stirlingshire
consultancy FKS4TZ

Hazell Carr (SG) Services Limited 01867603 Dormant Phoenix House, 1 $tation Hill, Reading, Berkshire RG1INB

Hazell Carr (E$) Services Limited 02372343  Dormant Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reading, Berkshire RG1iNB

Haze!l Carr (PN) Services Limited 00236752 Dormant Pheoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reading, Berkshire RG1INDG

Hazel' Carr (SA} Services uimited  SCO86807  Dormant Scotia House, Castle Business Park, Stiriing, Strrlingshire

FKS 4717

Xafirty Trustees Limited 0430550C Dormant Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reading, Berkshire RG1INB

Xafinity Emp'oyee Benefit Trust  N/A Trust JTC Trustees Lirmited, Elizabeth House, 9 Castle Street,

2013 St Feler, ersey JE4 2Q°

¥PS Holdings wimited 0480795 Holding company Phoenix Houss, 1 Station il Reading, Berkshire RGY INB

XPS Administration Holdings Lirmited 09655671 Holding company Phoenix House, 1 Stat:on Hil', Read ng, Berkshire RG1 iINB

XPS Administration Limited 09428346 Employee benefit Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reading. Berkshire RG1ING
consultancy

XPS Investment Limited 06242672 Empioyee benefit Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reading, Berkshire RG1INB
consultancy

XPS Pensiors Limited (03842603 Employee pe~efit Phoenix House, 1 Station HIl', Read'ng, Berkshire RG1INB
consultancy

XPS Pensions (RL) Limited 05817042  Employee nenefit Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reading, Berkshire RG1TINB
consultancy

XPS Pensions (Trigor)y Lmited 12085392 Errployee benefit Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reading, Berkshire RG1INB
consu tancy

MJF Pension Trustees Lim-ted 03394648 Dormant Phoen.x House, 1 Station il Reading. Berkshire RGiINB

MJIF SSAS Trustees Limited 4089958 Dormart Phoenix House, 1 5tat.on Hil, Reading, Berxshire RG1 INB

Pensions Software Solutions Ltd 11482474 Software Phoenix House, 1 Stauon Hill, Reading, Berksh.re RG11INB
development

Penfida Lim teg 08020393 Ermrpoyee benefit Phoenix House, 1 Stat-on Hill, Reading, Berkshire RG1INS

consu'tancy
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35 Subsidiaries continued

Subsidiary audit exemptions

The following UK subsidiary undertakings are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act”)

relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of Section 479A of the Act.

Compary name Company numbe-
XPS Financing Limited 08279274
XPS Reading Limited 08279362
Hazell Carr (AT) Services Limited SC42003]
XPS Holdings Limited 0480795
XPS Administration Holdings Limited 02655671
XPS Pensions (RL) Limited 05817C49
XPS Pensions (Trigon) Lirnited 12085382
Pensions Software Solutions Limited 11482474
Penfida Limited 08020393
The Company will guarantee all outstanding habilities that these subsidiaries are subject to at the financial year ended

31 March 2023 1in accordance with Section 479C of the Act, as amended by the Companies and Limited Liability

Partnerships (Accounts and Audit Exemptions and Change of Accounting Framework) Regulations 2012 In
the Company will guarantee any contingent and prospective liabilities that these subsidiaries are subject to.

addition,

36 Dividends
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders of the Parent in the year
31 March 31 Maren
2023 2022
£'000 £000
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 4 .8p per share (2021 4 4p per share) 9,763 8,948
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 2 7p (2022 2 4p) per ordinary share was pad
during the year 5,568 4 883
15,331 13,831
The recommendead final dividend payable in respect of the year ended 31 March 2023 1s £11.8 million or 5.7p per share
(2022 £9.696.000).
The proposed dividend has not been accrued as a llability as at 31 March 2023 as it is subject to approval at the Annual
General Meeting.
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£000 £000
Proposed final dividend for year ended 31 March 2023 1,766 9,686
The Trustee of the Xafinity Employee Benefit Trust has waived its entitlement to dividends.
The Company statement of changes in equity shows that the Company has positive reserves of £161.040,000.
Therefore there are sufficient distributable reserves in XP5S Pensions Group plc in order to pay the proposed
final dividend.
37 Ultimate controlling party
The Directors do not consicer that there is an ultimate controlling party
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Statement of financial position - Company
as at 31 March 2023

31 March 31 March

2023 2022
Note £'000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments 5 33,831 29,681
Trade and cther recewvables 6 251,335 233857
285,166 263,538
Total assets 285,166 263,538
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Trade ang other payables 7 39,307 40,309

39,307 40,309

Current liabilities

Current tax Laklities a8 1,273 744

1,273 744
Total liabilities 40,580 41.053
Net assets 244,586 227485

Equity and liabilities

Share capital Q9 104 103
Share premium Hej 1,786 116,804
Merger relief reserve 10 48.687 48.687
Other reserve 10 32,969 28818
Retained profit 10 161,040 28,073
Total equity 244,586 222485

The notes on pages 153 to 156 form part of these financial statements.

Under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company s exempt from the requirement to present its own
statement of comprehensive income The profit for the financial year, of the holding company, as approved by the
Board, was £31.494 000 (2022, £29,349,000).

These finangial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 June 2023 and were signed on its behalf by

e

Snehal Shah
Chief Financ:al Qfficer
21 June 2023

Registered number: 08279139

150 XPS Pensions Group Annual Report 2023



Statement of changes in equity - Company
for the year ended 3t March 2023

Merger

Snare Share relhef Other Retained

capial premium reserve reserye arofit Total

£000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Balance at 1 Aprit 2021 103 16,797 48 687 25483 12 555 203625
Comprehensive income and total comprehensive income
for the year — — — — 29,349 29,348
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Share capital 1ssued - 7 — — — 7
Share-based payment expense - equity settled from
Employee Benefit Trust — - — 26 — 26
Share-based payment expense - IFRS 2 charge — — — 3316 — 3316
Deferred tax movement in respect of share-based payment
expense — — — (7 - )
Dvidends paid — — — — (13.831) (13,831
Total contributions by and distributions to owners - 7 — %335 (13,831} (10489
Balance at 31 March 2022 103 116,804 48687 28.818 28073 222485
Batance at 1 April 2022 103 16,804 48,687 28,818 28,073 222485
Cormprehensive income and total comprehensive iIncome
for the year — - — — 31494 21,494
Contrnbutions by and distributions to owners
Share capital 1ssued 1 1,786 — — — 1,787
Share premium reduction — (16,804 — — 116,804 —
Share-based payment expense - IFRS 2 charge — — — 3.893 - 3,893
Deferred tax movement in respect of share-based payment
expense - - - 258 — 258
Dividends paid — — — - (5 331y (15,331
Total contributions by and distributions to owners 1 (115,018 — 4151 101,473 (9,393
Balance at 31 March 2023 104 1,786 48,687 32,969 161,040 244,586

The appropriate filng of interim accounts showing sufficient reserves to pay the £13,831,000 dividend was undertaken

The notes on pages 153 to 156 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows - Company
for the year ended 31 March 2023

The Company does not operate a bank account and therefore there were no cash flows during the year
All moverments of “unds have been deall wth throug- subsidiary compan es.

The notes on pages 153 to 156 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements - Company
for the year ended 31 March 2023

1 Accounting policies
XPS Pensions Group plc (the "Company”) is a public company incorporated in the UK. The principal activity of the
Company is that of a holding company. The registered office 15 Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reacing RG1INB

Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards.
The financial statements have been prepared under the going concern basis.

The preparaticn of financial statements in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") reguires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies The Company makes certain estimates anag
assumptions regarding the future. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances
There are no critical judgements or estimates to disclose

Measurement convention
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsicharies are carried at cost, plus capital contributions to the Group's subsidiary cecmparnies in
respect of share-based payment charges, less any provisions for impairment.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new shares or options
are shown In eguity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. In the case of interim dividends to equity shareholders,
this 1s when paid and, in the case of final dividends, this 1s when approved by the shareholders at the Annual

Generai Meeting.

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the pernod compnises current and deferred tax. Tax 1s recogmsed in profit and loss in the
statement of comprehensive iIncome except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in eguity, in which
case it 1s recognised In equily.

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Changes in accounting policies - new standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 April 2022
New and amended standards and interpretations issued by the |ASB that apply for the first time In these annual
financial staterments do not impact the Company as they are either not relevant to the Company’s activities or reguire
accounting which 1s consistent with the Company’s current accounting paolicies.

New standards and interpretations adopted and not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not effective for 2023, and therefcre
have not been applied in preparing XPS Pensions Group plc's financial statements. These standards, interpretations
and amendments issued by the IASB {of which some are still suzject to endorsement by the UK) but not yet effective
are not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.

2 Financial risk management

The Company 1s a holding company and has imited exposure to financial risks. Details of the financial risks’
management are containad in the Group accounts (note 2) and details of their application te the Company are
reiuded in Compeny note 17,

3 Capital risk management

The Company is a holding company and will apply the risk management polcies of the Group contained in the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements - Company continued
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4 Staff numbers and costs

The Company had no employees other than Directors in the year to 31 March 2023 (2022 nil).

No Directors received remuneration for therr services to the Company during the year. Directors were remunerated

for tner services Lo the Group oy a sabsid ary company.

Pens:on contributions of £n11 (2022, £nil) were paid on behalf of the Directors.

5 Investments in subsidiaries

31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
At the beginning of the year 29,681 26.345
i relation to XPS Pensions Consulting Limited 2,403 1884
In retation to XPS SIPP Services Limited 100 89
In relation to XPS Pensions Limited 983 818
In relation to XPS Adrministration Limited 560 454
In relation to XPS Investment Limited 80 65
In refation to XPS Pers:ons (RL) Limited 14 n
In relation to XPS Pensions (Trigen) Limited 10 5
At the end of the year 33,831 29681
Class of
Country ot snares Prircioal

Sunsidiary Qwnersrig  Ircorporation reld activities Registered address

XPS Financing Limited 100% England and Wales Ordinary Holding Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill,

company Reading, Berkshire RGY ING

The additions to investments during the vear represents amounts in respect of Performance Share Plan awards
and SAYE schemes, and an equity-settied award made by the Employee Benefit Trust to subsidiary companias as

nstructed by the Company

All other subsidiaries disclosed in note 35 of the Group accounts are indirectly owned by other Group companias.

6 Trade and other receivables

31 March 31 Maren
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Recewvables due from related parties 251,335 233857
Non-current receivable 251,335 233857
Current receivable - —
251,335 233857

7 Trade and other payables
31 March 21 Marcn
2023 2022
E'000 £000
Payables due to related parties 39,307 40,309
Total trade and other payables 39,307 40,309
Non-current payable 39,307 40 309
Current payable —_ —
39,307 40,309
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8 Current tax liabilities

31 March 31 March

2023 2022
E'O00 FO00
Corporation tax payable 1,273 744

9 Share capital

Details on the share capital of the Company are contained in the Group financial statements.

10 Reserves

Reserve

Description ard purpose

Share premium

Amount subscribed for share capital In excess of nominal value. In the year a share premium reduction
exercise was undertaken, and as a result £116 804,000 was moved from share premium to retained profit

Other reserve;

The other resarve reprasents the amount in respect of the equity-settied awards made by the Employee
Benefit Trust to subsidiary companies as instructed by the Company

Merger relief
reserve

The merger relief reserve represents the difference between the fair value and nominal value of shares
1ssued on the acauwsition of subsichary companies

Retained profit:

All other net gains and losses and transactions with owners (e g. dividends} not recegnised elsewhere. In
the year & share premium reduction exercise was undertaken, and as a result £116,804 000 was moved

from share premium to retained profit

1t Financial instruments
The fair values and the carrying values of financial assets are the same

Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credrit risk at the reporting date was
Carrying Carrying
amount amount
31 March 31 Marcn
2023 2022
£'000 E'CCD
Rereivahles due fram related parties 251,335 2733857

Loans from related partias are repayable on demand Credit risk for receivables due from related parties has not

increased significantly since their initial recognition.

Liquidity risk

The Company does not have any significant hguidity risk, as 1ts receivables and payables are all with related parties.

Interest rate risk
The Company does not have any significant interest rate risk, as 1ts receivables and payables are all with
related parties.

Capital risk management

As part of the XPS Pensions Group. the Company s focused on delivering value for its shareholders whilst ensuring
the Group is able to continue effectively as a going concern. Total capital for the Company comprises total equity

The policies for managing capital are to increase shareholder value by maximising profits and cash. The poticy is to
set budgets and ferecasts in the short and medium term that the Company ensures are achievabie The processes for
managing capital are regular reviews of financial data to ensure that the Company 1s tracking the targets set and to
reforecast as necessary based on the most up-to-date information. This then contributes to the XPS Pensions Group's
forecast which ensures future covenant test points are met The XPS Pensions Group continues to meet these test
points and they have been achieved over the last 12 months Further information can be found within the consolidated

financial statements of XPS Pensions Group plc.

31 March 31 Marcn

2023 2022

Management of caoital E’000 E'0C0

Total equity 244,586 222485
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Notes to the financial statements - Company continued
for the vear ended 31 March 2023

12 Related party transactions

Amounts receivable from/(payable to) related parties at the balance sheet date
31 March 31 Marcn

2023 2022

£'000 £:000
Loans to related parties 251,335 233,857
Loans from related parties (39,307) (40,309

212,028 193,548

Transactions with related parties during the year
31 March 31 March

2023 2022

£000 £000

Interest Income 7080 3,565
Interest expense (1,295) (690}
Increase in loans to related parties {15,905) (15.145)
Decrease n lpans from related parties 1,788 7
intercompany dvderd 26,800 27000
18,478 14,757

Ail transactions with related parties are made in the ardinary course of business and balances outstanding at
the reporting date are unsecured iLoans are repayable on demand and accrue interest at a rate in line with the
Group's bank borrowing rate. 3.96% was applied in the year (2022 168%). All related parties are part of the
XPS Pensians Group.

13 Ultimate controlling party
The Directors do not consider that there 1s an utimate controlling party
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Reading -
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